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NOTICE OF TWENTY-SECOND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Twenty-Second Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held entirely 
through live streaming from the broadcast venue at L1-95, KSL City, 33, Jalan Seladang, Taman Abad, 80250 
Johor Bahru, Johor Darul Takzim on Thursday, 26 May 2022 at 11.00 a.m. for the following purposes:- 

 
AGENDA 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS  

 
 1. To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 

December 2021 together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon.  

 

 

 2. To approve the payment of the Non-Executive Directors’ Fees of RM90,000 and 
Benefits of RM20,000 for the financial year ending 31 December 2022 until the next 
AGM of the Company. 

 

RESOLUTION 1 

 3. To re-elect the following Directors who are retiring in accordance with Article 93 of 
the Company’s Constitution:- 

 

 

 (a) Mr. Ku Hwa Seng 
 
(b) Mr. Tey Ping Cheng 

RESOLUTION 2 
 

RESOLUTION 3 

 
 4. To re-appoint Messrs. ECOVIS MALAYSIA PLT, the retiring Auditors of the 

Company and to authorise the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.  

 

RESOLUTION 4 
 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS  

 
 

 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Ordinary Resolutions:- 

 
 

 5. AUTHORITY TO ALLOT AND ISSUE SHARES PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 75 
AND 76 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016  

 

RESOLUTION 5 
 

 
 “THAT pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the Companies Act 2016 and subject 

to the approval of the relevant authorities, the Directors be and are hereby 

empowered to allot and issue shares in the Company from time to time and upon 

such terms and conditions and for such purposes as the Directors may, in their 

absolute discretion, deem fit provided that the aggregate number of shares issued 

pursuant to this resolution does not exceed 10% of the total number of shares of 

the Company (excluding treasury shares) for the time being and that the Directors 

be and also empowered to obtain approval for the listing of and quotation for the 

additional shares so issued on the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad AND THAT 

such authority shall continue in force until:- 

(a)    the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting held next after the approval 

was given; or  

(b)   the expiry of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting is 

required to be held after the approval was given,  

 

whichever occurs first.” 
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NOTICE OF TWENTY-SECOND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (Cont’d) 
 
 6. AUTHORITY FOR MR. GOW KOW TO CONTINUE IN OFFICE AS 

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR  

 

RESOLUTION 6 
 

 
 “THAT Mr. Gow Kow who has served as an Independent Non-Executive Director 

of the Company for a cumulative term of more than twelve (12) years, be and is 

hereby authorised to continue to act as Independent Non-Executive Director of 

the Company until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting in 

accordance with the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance.”  

 

 

 7. AUTHORITY  FOR  MR.  GOH  TYAU  SOON  TO  CONTINUE  IN  OFFICE  
AS INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR  

 

RESOLUTION 7 

 

 “THAT Mr. Goh Tyau Soon who has served as an Independent Non-Executive 

Director of the Company for a cumulative term of more than twelve (12) years, 

be and is hereby authorised to continue to act as Independent Non-Executive 

Director of the Company until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting 

in accordance with the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance.”  

 

 

 8. AUTHORITY  FOR  MR.  TEY  PING  CHENG  TO  CONTINUE   IN   OFFICE   

AS INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR  

 

RESOLUTION 8 

 

 “THAT Mr. Tey Ping Cheng who has served as an Independent Non-Executive 

Director of the Company for a cumulative term of more than twelve (12) years, 

be and is hereby authorised to continue to act as Independent Non-Executive 

Director of the Company until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting 

in accordance with the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance.”  

 

 

 9. PROPOSED RENEWAL OF AUTHORITY FOR DIRECTORS TO ALLOT AND 
ISSUE NEW ORDINARY SHARES OF THE COMPANY (KSL SHARES) IN 
RELATION TO THE DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN THAT PROVIDES 
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY WITH AN OPTION TO REINVEST 
THEIR CASH DIVIDEND IN NEW KSL SHARES (DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT 
PLAN)  

RESOLUTION 9 

 

 

“THAT pursuant to the Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRP) as approved by 

the Shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 28 November 

2014, approval be and is hereby given to the Directors to allot and issue such 

number of new KSL Shares, from time to time as may be required to be allotted 

and issued pursuant to the DRP until the conclusion of the next Annual General 

Meeting, upon such terms and conditions and to such persons as the Directors 

may, in their sole and absolute discretion, deem fit and in the best interest of the 

Company PROVIDED THAT the issue price of the said new KSL Shares shall be 

fixed by the Directors at not more than ten percent (10%) discount to the adjusted 

five (5) day volume weighted average market price (VWAMP) of KSL Shares 

immediately prior to the price-fixing date, of which the VWAMP shall be adjusted 

ex-dividend before applying the aforementioned discount in fixing the issue price;  

 
AND THAT the Directors and the Secretary of the Company be and are 
hereby authorised to do all such acts and enter into all such transactions, 
arrangements and agreements and to execute, sign and deliver for and on 
behalf of the Company, all such documents and impose such terms and 
conditions or delegate all or any part of its powers as may be necessary or 
expedient in order to give full effect to the DRP, with full powers to assent to any 
conditions, modifications, variations and/or amendments (if any) including 
amendments, modifications, suspension and termination of the DRP as the 
Directors may, in their absolute discretion, deem fit and in the best interest of the 
Company and/or as may be imposed or agreed to by any relevant authorities.” 
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NOTICE OF TWENTY-SECOND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (Cont’d) 
 
10. To transact any other business appropriate to an Annual General Meeting, due 

notice of which shall have been previously given in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2016 and the Company’s Constitution. 

 

 

 

 
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD  
 
LIM PEI CHENG  
(SSM PC No. 201908003202) (MAICSA 7071988)  
Company Secretary  
 
Johor Bahru  
28 April 2022 
 

Notes: - 

A.  Live Streaming Meeting  
 
(i)  In light of the coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak, governmental decrees, and the encouragement of the Securities Commission Malaysia, as well 

as in the best interest of public health and the health and safety of our Board of Directors, employees and shareholders, the Annual General 
Meeting (“AGM”) will be held virtually and online remote voting using the Remote Participation and Voting Facilities (“RPV”).  

 
(ii)  Please follow the procedures provided in the Administrative Guide for the 22nd AGM in order to register, participate and vote remotely via the 

RPV.  
 
(iii)  No Members/ Proxies will be physically present at the Broadcast Venue on the day of the 22nd AGM. 
 
B.  Appointment of Proxy  
 
(i)  Members whose names appear in the Record of Depositors as at 12 May 2022 shall be eligible to attend, speak and vote at the 22nd AGM. 
  
(ii)  A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint not more than  two  (2)  proxies to attend and vote on his behalf.  Where  
 a member appoints two (2) proxies, the member must specify the proportions of shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.  
 
(iii)  The instrument appointing a proxy shall  be in writing under the  hand of the member or of his attorney duly authorised  in writing or if the member  
 is a corporation, shall either be executed under its common seal or under the hand of an officer, or its attorney duly authorised in writing.  
 
(iv)  Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in 

one securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorized nominee may appoint in 
respect of each omnibus account it holds.  

 
(v)  Where a member of the Company is an authorised nominee as defined under Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991, it shall not be 

entitled to appoint more than two (2) proxies to attend and vote at the 22nd AGM.  
 
(vi)  The instrument appointing a Proxy may be made as follows and must be deposited not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time for the 

Meeting: 
 

In Hardcopy  

The instrument appointing a Proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at Wisma KSL, 148, Batu 1 ½, Jalan Buloh Kasap, 

85000 Segamat, Johor Darul Takzim not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time for the Meeting.  
 

Electronically  

Kindly refer to the Administrative Guide – Appointment of Proxy  
 
C.  Explanatory notes  
 

Audited Financial Statements  
 

The audited financial statements are laid in accordance with Section 340(1)(a) of the Companies Act (“CA”) 2016 for discussion only under item 1 
of the agenda. They do not require shareholders’ approval and hence, will not be put for voting.  
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NOTICE OF TWENTY-SECOND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (Cont’d) 
  
Directors’ Fees and Benefits (Resolution 1)  

 

The Directors’ remuneration (excluding Directors’ fees) comprises the allowances and other emoluments payable to Non-Executive Directors.  

Benefits of RM20,000 are to reimburse Non-Executive Directors’ travelling expenses to attend meetings of Company. Payment of benefits to the  

NEDs will be made by the Company as and when incurred, after they have discharged their responsibilities and rendered their services to the 

Company of the Relevant Period, based on the proposed benefits, if the proposed Resolution 1 is passed at the forthcoming Annual General 

Meeting.  

 

Section 230(1) of the CA 2016 provides amongst others, that “the fees” of the directors and “any benefits” payable to the directors of a listed 

company and its subsidiaries shall be approved at a general meeting. In this respect, the Board agreed that the shareholders’ approval shall be 

sought at the 22nd AGM on the Directors’ remuneration in resolution as below:  

 

•  Resolution 1 on payment of Non-Executive Directors’  fees and benefits  in respect of  the current  year 2022  and until  the next AGM  of the  

Company (“Relevant Period”).  

 

The Board decided that the Non-Executive Directors’ fees for financial year (“FY”) ended 31 December 2021 be maintained as the previous FY 

subject to the performance of the Company and the current global economy. The remuneration policy for Non-Executive Directors fees is clarified in 

page 49-50 of the Corporate Governance Overview Statement.  

 

Re-election of Directors who retire in accordance with Article 93 of the Company’s Constitution (Resolutions 2 and 3)  

 

Article 93 of the Company’s Constitution provides that one-third (1/3) of the Directors of the Company for the time being shall retire by rotation at an 

AGM of the Company, or if their number is not three (3) or a multiple of three (3), then the number nearest to one-third (1/3). With the current 

Board’s size of seven (7), two (2) Directors are to retire in accordance with Article 93 of the Company’s Constitution.  

 

For the purpose of determining the eligibility of the Directors to stand for re-election at the 22nd AGM, the Nominating Committee (“NC”) has 

considered the following:  

 

(1)  The assessment of the individual Director’s level of contribution to the Board through each of their skills, experience and strength in qualities;  

 and  

(2)  The level of independence demonstrated by each of the Non-Executive Directors (“NEDs”), and their ability to act in the best interests of 

 the Company in decision-making, to ensure that they are independent of management and free from any business or other relationship which 

 could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement or the ability to act in the best interests of the Company.  

In line with the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (“MCCG”), the Board has conducted an assessment of independence of the NEDs,  

and also other criteria i.e. character, integrity, competence, experience and time commitment in effectively discharging their respective roles  

as Directors of the Company. The individual Directors were assessed based on performance criteria set in the areas of Board dynamics and  

participation, competency and capability, independence and objectivity, probity and personal integrity, contribution and performance together  

with their ability to make analytical inquiries and offer advice and guidance. Each of the NEDs has also provided his/her annual declaration/  

confirmation of independence bi-annually.  

The Board accepted the NC’s recommendation that the Directors who retire in accordance with Article 93 of the Company’s Constitution are 

eligible to stand for re-election. All these retiring Directors had abstained from deliberations and decisions on their own eligibility to stand for 

reelection at the relevant Board meeting.  

 

Appointment of Auditors (Resolution 4)  

Pursuant to Section 273(b) of the Act, the term of office of the present Auditors, Messrs. Ecovis Malaysia PLT, shall lapse a t the conclusion of 

this AGM unless they are re-appointed by the shareholders to continue in office. Messrs. Ecovis Malaysia PLT have indicated their willingness to 

continue their service. The re-appointment of Messrs. Ecovis Malaysia PLT as Auditors has been considered against the relevant criteria 

prescribed by Paragraph 15.21 of the MMLR. This proposed Resolution 4, if passed, will  also give the Directors of the Company, the authority to 

determine the remuneration of the Auditors.  
 

Authority to Directors to allot and issue shares pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the Companies Act 2016 (Resolution 5)  

The proposed Resolution 5 above, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company, from the date of the 22nd AGM, with the authority to allot 

and issue shares in the Company up to an amount not exceeding in total 10% of the total number of issued shares of the Company (excluding 

treasury shares) for such purposes as the Directors consider would be in the best interest of the Company. This authority, unless revoked or 

varied at a general meeting, will expire at the next Annual General Meeting.  

The general mandate sought to grant authority to Directors to allot and issue shares is a renewal of the mandate that was approved by the  

shareholders at the 21st Annual General Meeting. The renewal of general mandate is to provide flexibility to the Company to issue new 

shares without the need to convene a separate general meeting to obtain shareholders’ approval so as to avoid incurring cost and time. The purpose 

of this general mandate is for possible fund raising exercises including but not limited to further placement of shares for purpose of funding current 

and/ or future investment projects, working capital and/ or acquisitions which the Directors deem necessary and feasible.  

Up to date of this Notice, the Company has not issue any shares pursuant to the mandate granted to the Directors at the 21st Annual General 

Meeting as there was no need for any fund raising activity for the purpose of investment, acquisition or working capital.  
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NOTICE OF TWENTY-SECOND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (Cont’d) 

Authority to continue in office as Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company pursuant to the Malaysian Code on Corporate 

Governance (Resolutions 6, 7 and 8)  

(a)  Mr. Gow Kow  

Mr. Gow Kow was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company on 19 November 2001 and has therefore served for 

more than twelve (12) years as at the forthcoming 22nd AGM. However, he has met the independence criteria as set out in Chapter 1 of the Main 

Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“MMLR”). The Board based on the review and recommendation made by the 

Nominating Committee, therefore, considers him to be independent and recommends that he should continue to act as Independent Non-

Executive Director. Further rationale for his retention as Independent Non-Executive Director can be found on Pages 47-48 of the Annual Report 

and Practice 5.3 of the Corporate Governance Report.  
 

(b)  Mr. Goh Tyau Soon  

 

Mr. Goh Tyau Soon was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company on 1 April 2002 and has therefore served for 

more than twelve (12) years as at the forthcoming 22nd AGM. However, he has met the independence criteria as set out in Chapter 1 of the 

MMLR. The Board based on the review and recommendation made by the Nominating Committee, therefore, considers him to be independent 

and recommends that he should continue to act as Independent Non-Executive Director. Further rationale for his retention as Independent Non-

Executive Director can be found on Pages 47-48 of the Annual Report and Practice 5.3 of the Corporate Governance Report.  

 

(c)  Mr. Tey Ping Cheng  

 

Mr. Tey Ping Cheng was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company on 15 April 2002 and has therefore served for 

more than twelve (12) years as at the forthcoming 22nd AGM. However, he has met the independence criteria as set out in Chapter 1 of the 

MMLR. The Board based on the review and recommendation made by the Nominating Committee, therefore, considers him to be independent 

and recommends that he should continue to act as Independent Non-Executive Director. Further rationale for his retention as Independent Non-

Executive Director can be found on Pages 47-48 of the Annual Report and Practice 5.3 of the Corporate Governance Report.  

Proposed renewal of authority for Directors to allot and issue new ordinary shares of the Company (KSL Shares) in relation to  the 

Dividend Reinvestment Plan that provides shareholder of the Company with an option to invest their cash dividend in new KSL 

SHARES (Dividend Reinvestment Plan) (Resolution 9)  

 

The proposed Ordinary Resolution 9, if passed, will give the authority to the Directors to allot and issue new KSL Shares pursuant to the Dividend 

Reinvestment Plan in respect of the dividends declared from time to time until the next AGM.  
 

GENERAL MEETING RECORD OF DEPOSITORS  

 

For the purpose of determining a member who shall be entitled to attend this meeting, the Company shall be requesting the Bursa Malaysia 

Depository Sdn Bhd in accordance with Article 63(3) of the Company’s Constitution and Section 34(1) of the Securities Industry (Central 

Depositories) Act 1991, to issue a General Meeting Record of Depositors as at 12 May 2022. Only a depositor whose name appears on the 

Record of Depositors as at 12 May 2022 shall be entitled to attend this meeting or appoint proxy/proxies to attend, speak, participate and/or vote in 

his stead. 
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KSL HOLDINGS BERHAD 
REGISTRATION NO. 200001008827 (511433-P) 

(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

 

 
Administrative Guide for General Meeting (“the Meeting”) 
 
 
Meeting Day and Date : Thursday, 26 May 2022  

Time  :  11.00 a.m.   

Broadcast Venue  :  L1-95, KSL City, 33, Jalan Seladang, Taman Abad, 80250 Johor Bahru  

Meeting Platform  :  www.vpoll.com.my (Domain Registration No. D1A457149) 

 
1. Virtual Meeting  
 
1.1 As a precautionary measure amid Coronavirus Disease pandemic and having regard to the well-being of 

the safety of the Company’s shareholders, employees and Directors, the Board of Directors (“the Board”) 

and Management have decided that the meeting will be conducted entirely virtual through live streaming 

and online remote voting via Remote Participation and Voting (“RPV”) facilities. 

 

1.2 Kindly ensure that you are connected to the internet at all times in order to participate and/or vote at our 

virtual Meeting. Therefore, it is your responsibility to ensure that connectivity for the duration of the Meeting 

is maintained. Kindly note that the quality of the live webcast is dependent on the bandwidth and stability 

of the internet connection of the participants. The Company, the Board and its management, registrar and 

other professional advisers (if any) shall not be held responsible or be liable for any disruption in internet 

line resulting in the participants being unable to participate and/or vote at the Meeting.  

 
2.  Entitlement to Participate and Vote  
 

Only depositors whose names appear on the Record of Depositors as at 12 May 2022 shall be entitled to 
participate and/or vote at the meeting or appoint proxy/corporate representative(s) to participate and/or 
vote on his/her behalf by returning the duly executed Form(s) of Proxy.  

 
3.  Appointment of Proxy  
 
3.1 If you are unable to attend and participate at the meeting via RPV facilities, you may appoint a proxy or the 

Chairman of the Meeting as your proxy and indicate the voting instructions in the Form of Proxy in 
accordance with the notes and instructions printed therein.  

 
3.2 Please ensure that the hard copy of the original Form of Proxy is deposited at the Company’s Registered 

Office not less than forty eight (48) hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting i.e. latest by 
24 May 2022 at 11.00 a.m. Details of our Registered Office can be found in the enquiry section of this 
document.  

 
3.3 All appointed proxy need not register for remote participation on Virtual eAGM e-Portal.  Upon processing 

of your Form of Proxy, we will grant your proxy access to remote participation at the Meeting to which 
he/she is appointed for instead of you, with the login credentials.  

 
 
 
  

http://www.vpoll.com.my/
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4.  Submission of Questions  
 
4.1  Members and proxies may submit their questions via the real time submission of typed texts through a text 

box within Virtual eAGM e-Portal at www.vpoll.com.my before the start or during the live streaming of the 
AGM. The questions and/or remarks submitted by the shareholders and/or proxies will be broadcasted and 
responded by the Chairman/Board/ relevant adviser during the meeting.  

 
5.      Voting Procedure  
 
5.1  Pursuant to Paragraph 8.29A of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities 

Berhad, voting at the Meeting will be conducted by poll.  
 
5.2  For the purpose of the Meeting, e-Voting can be carried out using personal smart mobile phones, tablets, 

personal computers or laptops. 
 
5.3  The polling will commence from the scheduled starting time of the Meeting and close ten (10) minutes after 

the Chairman announces the final ten (10) minutes for voting towards the end of the Meeting after the 
question and answer session.  

 
5.4  The Independent Scrutineer will verify the poll results reports upon closing of the poll session by the 

Chairman. Thereafter, the Chairman will announce and declare whether the resolutions put to vote were 
successfully carried or not.  

 
 
6.      Remote Participation and Voting (“RPV”)  
 
6.1  Please note that all shareholders including (i) individual shareholders; (ii) corporate shareholders; (iii) 

authorised nominees; and (iv) exempt authorised nominees, and proxies shall use the RPV facilities to 
participate and/or vote remotely at the meeting [(ii) to (iv) through their authorised representatives].  

 
6.2  If you wish to participate in the Meeting, you will be able to view a live webcast of the Meeting, pose 

questions and/ or submit your votes in real time whilst the Meeting is in progress.  
 
6.3  Kindly follow the steps as set out in Appendix I to register for RPV. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

http://www.vpoll.com.my/
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Appendix I  
VIRTUAL EAGM USER GUIDE  
 

STEP 1: Please go to url www.vpoll.com.my to go to the Login Page as shown below to 

a.  Sign up 

 
b. Log in 

 
 
Notes:  
1)  This is a ONE-TIME Registration. If you are already a registered user of the e-Portal, you need not register 

again.  
2)  Your email address is your User ID.  
3)  All users must register latest by 25 May 2022 at 11.00 a.m., as ONE (1) working day is required to process 

all e-Portal user registrations. 
*  For body corporates, the appointed Corporate/Authorised Representative must upload the evidence of his/her authority 

(e.g. Certificate of Appointment of Corporate Representative, Power of Attorney, letter of authority or other documents 
proving authority). The original evidence of authority, if required, has to be submitted to KSL Holdings Berhad at Wisma 
KSL, 148, Batu 1 ½, Jalan Buloh Kasap, 85000 Segamat, Johor Darul Takzim by Tuesday, 24 May 2022 at 11.00 a.m. 

 
 
 
 
  

http://www.vpoll.com.my/
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STEP 2: You will see a DASHBOARD screen as shown below. Click on event icon.  
 

 
 
Notes:  
1) You can start to log in one hour (1) hour before the commencement of the meeting. i.e. 26 May 2022 at 10.00 

a.m.  
2) The quality of the live streaming is dependent on the stability of the internet connection at the location of the 

user. 
3) Log in to  www.vpoll.com.my  with  your  registered  User ID  (email address)  and  password.  
    For prox(ies) holders, use the login credential that was sent by Smartual. 

 

STEP 3: Click on EVENT NAME ICON, you will see the following screen.  

 

 
 
To watch live streaming, please click on the BLUE BUTTON as shown in the top right corner. If you are facing 
issues in watching live, click the “Click Here” to open the Zoom application directly.  

 
  

http://www.vpoll.com.my/
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STEP 4: The screen will open in a new tab as shown below: 
 

 
 
ASKING QUESTIONS FEATURE 
 
To ask questions, please click on your Q&A icon at the bottom of your screen and type your questions. 
  

 
 
If you have any questions to raise at the meeting, type the question in the text box below. The 
Chairman/Board/Management/relevant adviser(s) will endeavour to respond to your question during the Meeting. 
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STEP 5: To vote, please go back to your earlier tab as shown below.  
 

 
 
Upon confirmation of your name, event details, NRIC and CDS number, please click on the VOTE button.  

 

STEP 6: Vote accordingly and click on the CONFIRM DETAILS AND SUBMIT VOTE button. 
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STEP 7: To view the voting results, please click the “RESULTS” 
 

 

 
 
 
e-Services Assistance  
 
If you have any enquiry relating to Virtual eAGM e-Portal, please contact the following persons during office hours 
from Mondays to Fridays from 9.00a.m to 5.00p.m (except public holiday):-  
 
The Poll Administrator  
 
AI Smartual Learning Sdn Bhd 
 
Address  : 1-23-5, Menara Bangkok Bank 
  Berjaya Central Park 
  Jalan Ampang, 50450 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia 
   

Email  :  davidcheng@aismartuallearning.com   
 

Contact person : Mr. David Cheng  
 

Telephone No.  : 6017 7700887 

 
  

mailto:davidcheng@aismartuallearning.com
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Registration No. 200001008827 (511433-P)  

 (Incorporated in Malaysia)  

 

FORM OF PROXY  

I/We, ___________________________________________________________________________________    (Full Name), 

NRIC/Passport/Company No. ________________________________________________________________________ 

of_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

being a member/members of KSL HOLDINGS BERHAD, hereby appoint * the Chairman of the meeting or:  
 

Name: NRIC/Passport No.: Proportion of Shareholdings 

No. of Shares % 

Email: 

 

Address: 

 

 

Contact: 

 

  

Address: 

or failing him/her,  

Name: NRIC/Passport No.: Proportion of Shareholdings 

No. of Shares % 

Email: 

 

Address: 

 

 

Contact: 

 

  

Address: 

* Strike out if not applicable  

 

as my/our Proxy(ies) to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 22nd Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held 

entirely through live streaming from the broadcast venue a L1-95, KSL City, 33, Jalan Seladang, Taman Abad, 80250 Johor Bahru, 

Johor Darul Takzim on Thursday, 26 May 2022 at 11.00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.  

My/Our Proxy(ies) is(are) to vote as indicated below: - 
 

No. Ordinary Resolutions For Against 

1. Approval for the payment of the Non-Executive Directors’ Fees and Benefits 
  

2. Re-election of Mr. Ku Hwa Seng 
  

3. Re-election of Mr. Tey Ping Cheng 
  

4. Re-appointment of Messrs. Ecovis Malaysia Plt as Auditors of the Company 
  

5. Authority to Issue and Allot Shares 
  

6. Retention of Mr. Gow Kow as Independent Non-Executive Director 
  

7. Retention of Mr. Goh Tyau Soon as Independent Non-Executive Director 
  

8. Retention of Mr. Tey Ping Cheng as Independent Non-Executive Director 
  

 9. Renewal of Authority to Issue and Allot Shares for Dividend Reinvestment Plan 
  

[Please indicate with (X) in the spaces provided how you wish your vote to be casted. If no specific direction as to voting is given 

above on the Proxy will vote or abstain at his(her) discretion.]  
 
 
 

Dated this ………..… day of ……………………..…… 2022  

 

_________________________________ 

Signature/Common Seal of Member

Email  

Contact No.  

CDS Account No.  

No. of Shares Held  
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Fold this flap for sealing  
 
 
 

A.   Live Streaming Meeting  

 

(i)    In light of the coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak, governmental decrees, and the encouragement of the Securities Commission 

Malaysia, as well as in the best interest of public health and the health and safety of our Board of Directors, employees and 

shareholders, the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) will be held virtually and online remote voting using the Remote Participation 

and Voting Facilities (“RPV”).  

(ii)   Please follow the procedures provided in the Administrative Guide for the 22nd AGM in order to register, participate and vote 

remotely via the RPV.  

(iii)   No Members/ Proxies will be physically present at the Broadcast Venue on the day of the 22nd AGM.  

 

 

 

 

 

Then fold here  
 
 
 
 

B.   Appointment of Proxy  

 

(i)    Members whose names appear in the Record of Depositors as at 12 May 2022 shall be eligible to attend, speak and vote at the 

22nd AGM.  

(ii)   A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint not more than two (2) proxies to attend and vote on 

his behalf. Where a member appoints two (2) proxies, the member must specify the proportions of shareholdings to be represented 

by each proxy.  

(iii)   The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the member or of his attorney duly authorised in writing or if 

the member is a corporation, shall either be executed under its common seal or under the hand of an officer, or its attorney duly 

authorised in writing.  

(iv)  Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple 

beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt 

authorized nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.  

(v)   Where a member of the Company is an authorised nominee as defined under Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991, 

it shall not be entitled to appoint more than two (2) proxies to attend and vote at the 22nd AGM.  

(vi)  The instrument appointing a Proxy may be made as follows and must be deposited not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the 

time for the Meeting:  
 

In Hardcopy  

The instrument appointing a Proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at Wisma KSL, 148, Batu 1 ½, Jalan 

Buloh Kasap, 85000 Segamat, Johor Darul Takzim not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time for the Meeting.  

Electronically  

Kindly refer to the Administrative Guide – Appointment of Proxy  

 

 

 

1s
t fold here  

 

The Company Secretary  

KSL HOLDINGS BERHAD  
Registration No. 200001008827 (511433-P) 
Wisma KSL, 148, Batu 1½  
Jalan Buloh Kasap  
85000 Segamat  
Johor Darul Takzim  

 

 

  

STAMP 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
 
1. Overview of the Group’s Business and Operations 
 

In 2021, the Covid-19 pandemic continued to influence the performance of the global economic 
landscape. With the adaptation of the new norm and the rolling out the vaccination program 
worldwide, the global economy was gradually recovered. However, the recovery route was uneven 
across the countries depended heavily on the success rate of vaccination program and the ability 
to ease up the restriction measure. The global economy also was confronted with financial market 
volatility, supply chain disruptions, higher commodity price and labour shortages. 
 
With no exception, Malaysia is riding its own challenge, where the resurgence of the local Covid-
19 cases and the rapid spread of the new variant of concern caught every one off-guard. This has 
dampened the recovery progress. However, the rapid rollout of the National Covid-19 
Immunisation Programme has enabled economic sector to open gradually in the third quarter of 
the year. Strong exports and continued policy aid for households and businesses also lent support 
for domestic growth.  
 
The Malaysian economic saw a moderate recovery with GDP growing 3.1% in 2021 (2020: -5.6%). 
Headline inflation averaged higher at 2.5% (2020: -1.2%). The higher cost was due to the rising 
global oil process and supply chain disruption led to some upward price pressure for certain 
categories of consumer goods and services. Nevertheless, underlying inflation remained subdued 
for the year amid the gradual recovery in demand and weak labour market conditions. 
 
In 2022, Malaysian GDP is projected to rebound to between 5% and 6.5% based upon the wider 
relaxation of restriction of economic and social sectors, as well as increased external demand from 
major trading partners. Other growth drivers include higher commodity prices, improved labour 
market conditions, a rapid transition to digitalisation and the implementation of infrastructure 
projects with multiplier effect. Monetary policy remains accommodative in cushioning the adverse 
effect of the prolonged nationwide lockdown on the economy while simultaneously supporting 
recovery. These policies also ensure that inflationary pressure remains manageable. The 
Overnight Policy Rate (OPR) and Statutory Reserve Requirement (SRR) were held steady during 
the first seven months of 2021 at 1.75% and 2.00% respectively. 
 
(Source: BNM Annual Report) 

 
For property development sector in year 2021, property sales continued to be affected by 
affordability issues, slower economic growth and high level of unsold stock. In year 2022, however, 
with the easing up most of restriction on economic sector and opening of country border during 
the endemic phase transition, domestic economic are expected to improve. This is expected to 
become the driving factors for property market to gain its momentum amid a challenging 
environmental background. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Cont’d) 
 

2. Financial Results and Financial Condition 
 
Group’s revenue increase by 37% to RM468 million, compared to RM341 million in the previous 
year.  Easing up of the restriction on construction work in year 2021 has seen more project was 
able to be completed comparing to year 2020.The Group profitability expanded, pre-tax profit 
recorded at RM140.7 million, in the year under review comparing to the loss of RM51.7 million 
previously. The Group’s net profit recorded at RM114.4 million, increased by 280% comparing to 
the loss recorded at RM 63.5 million in 2020, the increase was mainly due to the fair value 
adjustment on investment property. 
 
On segmental basis, the Group’s property development segment emerged as the majority revenue 
contributor with 89% of total FY2021 group revenue, while property investment made up the 
balance 11%. 
 
The Group financial position as at end of December 2021 also expanded with our retained profit 
and profitability, with shareholders’ equity increased to RM 3,116 million from RM 3,002 million in 
the previous year end. 
 
The Five-Year Group Financial Highlights are set out on page 29 of this Annual Report. 
 
The Group did not purchase any of its issued ordinary shares from the open market during the 
year 2021. 

 
 
3. Operating Activities, Risks and Future Outlook 
 

3.1 Property Development 
 
In 2021, the property market performance showed a slight improvement but has yet to 
surpass the pre-pandemic level recorded prior to 2020. More than 300,000 transactions 
worth nearly RM145 billion were recorded, indicating an increase of 1.5% in volume and 
21.7% in value compared to previous year. 
 
The recovery of the property market was supported by the following implementation of 
various stimulus provided by the Government via Short-term Economic Recovery Plan 
namely Pelan Jana Semula Ekonomi Negara (PENJANA) and Prihatin Rakyat Economic 
Stimulus Package (PRIHATIN). These stimulus help to sustain the confidence of the 
industry and households at large in coping with the impact of the pandemic. In addition, 
the initiative introduced under Budget 2021 remained supportive to the property market. 
Among the initiatives included: 
 
i) An allocation of RM1.2 billion for providing comfortable and quality housing especially 

for the low-income group. 
 

ii) Full stamp duty exemption on instruments of transfer and loan agreement for the first-
time home buyers will be extended until 31 December 2025, effective for sale and 
purchase executed from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2025. 

 
iii) Stamp duty exemption on loan agreement and instruments of transfer given to 

rescuing contractors and original house purchasers is extended for five years. This 
exemption is effective for loan agreements and instruments of transfer executed from 
1 January 2021 to 31 December 2025 for abandoned housing projects certified by 
Ministry of Housing and Local Government (KPKT). 

 
iv) Collaboration with the selected financial institutions to provide Rent-To-Own scheme. 

The programme will be implemented until 2022 involving 5,000 units PR1MA houses 
with total value of more that RM1 billion. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Cont’d) 
 
3. Operating Activities, Risks and Future Outlook (Cont’d) 
 

3.1        Property Development (Cont’d) 
 
For PENJANA, the financial initiatives introduced by the government which have helped 
soften the impact on the property market included. 
 
a) Re-introduction of Home Ownership Campaign (HOC) – stamp duty exemption on 

the instruments of transfer and loan agreement for the purchase of residential homes 
priced between RM300,000 to RM2.5 million subject to at least 10% discount 
provided by the developer. The exemption on the instrument transfer is limited to the 
first RM1 million of the home price while full stamp duty exemption is given on loan 
agreements effective for sales and purchase agreements signed between 1st June 
2020 to 31 May 2021. 

 
b) RPGT exemption for disposal of residential homes from 1st June 2020 to 31st 

December 2021 (limited to the disposal of 3 units of residential homes per individual). 
 

c) The lifting of the current 70 percent margin of financing limit applicable for the third 
housing loan onwards for property valued at RM600,000 and above during the period 
of HOC, subject to internal risk management practices of financial institution. 

 
The residential property market saw an increase of 3.9% in volume as it recorded 198,812 
transaction worth of RM76.90 billion in 2021 compare to 191,354 transactions with value 
at RM65.87 billion in 2020, Most developers had deferred the new launches to focus on 
selling remaining unsold inventories; the primary market saw lesser release of the new 
launches. Sales performance was moderate at 39.3% in 2021. 
 
In 2022, the property market is expected to regain its momentum despite the challenging 
economic background. The opening of all economic sectors, relaxation of containment 
measure and re-opening of country borders are seen as the driving factor that could lead 
to domestic economic activities improvement and income stability. Various incentive 
outlined under Budget 2022 also hopes to provide liveliness to the property market with 
specific focus to residential sector. Under Budget 2022, government has come up with 
“Initiative 2: Home Ownership” which include:- 
 
i) RM1.5 billion allocation for low-income groups housing projects i.e rumah mesra 

rakyat and maintenance assistance programmes. 
 

ii) Lifting the imposition of Real Property Gains Tax on the disposal of properties in 
the 6th year onwards by Malaysians citizens, permanent residents and other than 
companies. 

 
iii) Guarantees of up to RM2 billion to bank via Skim Jaminan Kredit Perumahan in 

assisting gig works small entrepreneurs and farmers in obtaining home financing. 
 

Proper execution of incentives, strategies, and measures outlined under Budget 2022 and 
RMK-12 and accommodative policy by government is expected to support the growth of 
property sector. 

  
(Source: National Property Information Centre (NAPIC)) 

 
Moving forward, the Group will continue to do what we always do to build affordable houses 
because we see the potential of this market sector. However, against the cautious market 
backdrop and uncertainty of the economies, the Group has reduced and delayed all major 
activities and launching of new projects. 
 
We hope that the cooling measures together with other measures taken by Government to 
rehabilitate the economy will stabilize the property market and restore buyer purchasing 
power. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Cont’d) 
 
3. Operating Activities, Risks and Future Outlook (Cont’d) 

 
3.2    Property Investment  
 

The impact of Covid-19 pandemic on tourism sector was disastrous as many hotel and 
resorts are forced to shut down temporarily with some of the establishment are closed 
permanently where the operator are not able to sustain the operating cost. According to the 
Tourism Malaysia, the average occupancy recorded for period from January 2021 to 
December 2021 has dropped to 21.8% comparing to 31.6% during the same period in 2020. 
Retails and office property segment also continue to soften throughout 2021. Occupancy 
rates for shopping complex recorded at 76.3%, down from 77.5% in 2020 while occupancy 
rate for office declined to 78.3% in 2021 comparing to 80.2% in 2020 

 
The reopening of country borders to tourist and relaxation of most of restriction through the 
transition from Covid-19 Pandemic to Endemic phase effective 01st April 2022 are expected 
to drive the improvement in the economic sector and provide the much needed boost to the 
tourism sectors. 

  
The retail and office segment, however, are expected to continue to face stiff challenges as 
industries and societies embrace the new norm of working at home and digitalize marketing. 

 
(Source: NAPIC and BNM Annual Report) 
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 
 
Despite the prevailing headwinds in the property sector, KSL Holdings Berhad (“KSLH”) performed 
commendably in the year under review. 
 
A. PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT 

 
Property development continued to be the main top line contributor for the Group in the year 
under review. Revenue from this segment was recorded at RM414 million for FY2021 (2020: 
RM263 million). 
 
For the year under review, KSLH has the following highlighted on-going projects under various 
construction stages in Johor and Klang. 

 
 
 A.1   JOHOR BAHRU 
 
          A.1.1 Taman Bestari Indah 
 

Taman Bestari Indah is mixed development township of residential and commercial buildings. 
The Project is situated just 20 kilometres from the Johor Bahru City Centre. It boasts of easy 
accessibility to the Tebrau Highway, Pasir Gudang Highway and Senai-Desaru Highway. 
 
Residents in the township also enjoy a wide variety of features and amenities in the vicinity, 
including shopping complexes such as AEON and Tesco, recreational clubs such as Johor Jaya 
Sports Complex, Austin Hill Country Club, Ponderosa Golf & Country Club, medical centres such 
as Hospital Sultan Ismail as well as educational institutions such as Sunway College and Institute 
KTC. 
 
Taman Bestari Indah Zone D Phase 2 partially completed during the year consists of 137 units of 
double-storey terrace houses. Another 147 units of double-storey terrace houses is under active 
constructions. It is targeted to complete in 2nd Quarter of 2022. Zone A Phase 15 which consists 
of 84 units of double storey cluster houses, 4 units of Semi-D and 4 units of link bungalow are 
also under active constructions and is targeted to complete in 2023. 

 
          A.1.2 Taman Mutiara Bestari 
 

Mutiara Bestari is located in Skudai, next to Iskandar Puteri, Johor. The entire Iskandar 
Development Region, stretching from the new State Administrative Capital at Nusajaya, the 2nd 
link, the Senai International Airport, the Customs, Immigration Quarantine Complex (CIQ) of 
Johor Bahru can be conveniently accessed by expressways or highways. 
 
This development spans approximately 100 acres and is to be developed progressively in 3 
phases comprising of a total of 704 units of luxurious houses. Mutiara Bestari is targeted at 
urbanites who seek the convenience of city living within an upscale neighbourhood complete with 
heightened security of CCTV along with parameter fencing for peace of mind and comprehensive 
community amenities such as education, shopping and entertainment hubs which meet the 
residents’ needs. 
 
Phase 3 of Mutiara Bestari was launched on August 2020, consist of total 268 units of 2 storey, 
3 storey cluster and 2 storey semi-detached are under active construction and is targeted to 
complete in 3rd Quarter of 2022. 
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (Cont’d) 
 

A.  PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (Cont’d) 

 
A.1   JOHOR BAHRU (Cont’d) 

 
 A.1.3 KSL Residences 2 @Kangkar Tebrau 
 
KSL Residences 2 @ Kangkar Tebrau is a high-rise residential development located at Kangkar 
Tebrau which consists of 5 Towers of Service Apartments with 2,068 units, which size ranging 
from 463 sq.ft to 883 sq.ft. Currently 3 Towers of the Service Apartment are open for sales. 
 
KSL Residences 2 @ Kangkar Tebrau is generally located within the locality known as Kangkar 
Tebrau, Johor Bahru of Pasir Gudang highway and lies about 13 kilometres due north of the 
Johor Bahru city centre. Linked with several main road and easy accessibility from Johor Bahru, 
Pasir Gudang and Plus highway. Access to the subject property from Johor Bahru city centre is 
via Jalan Tebrau then onto Jalan Kangkar Tebrau leading to the subject property. It is also 
accessible from Pasir Gudang highway via Taman Daya Interchange, Jalan Daya and Jalan 
Kangkar Tebrau. 
 
The location of this apartment was carefully picked to reflect elements of convenience and 
functionality which are its focus. The amenities available in the surrounding complements the 
range of facilities provided in-house ensuring that both the everyday and recreational needs of 
the resident are properly met. 
 
The project is under active construction and targeted to complete in year 2024. 

 
A.2   KLUANG 
 
        A.2.1 Taman Mengkibol 
 

Taman Mengkibol is a 249-acre development township featuring single storey terrace houses, 
double storey terrace houses and affordable houses known as “Rumah Mampu Biaya Johor 
(RMBJ)”, double storey and three storey shop offices. Taman Mengkibol is located 3 kilometres 
from Kluang Town. The township is also accessible through the North-South Highway and linked 
with several main roads with easy accessibility. The subject property is easy to access from Ayer 
Hitam via Jalan Batu Pahat, Jalan Besar and Jalan Mengkibol. Furthermore, it is also accessible 
from Simpang Renggam via Jalan Simpang Renggam and Jalan Kluang Renggam. Nearest 
commercial complexs are Songmart, Kluang Mall, Kluang Parade, Aeon Big Hypermarket and 
Econsave which located within 5-8 km away. In addition, there will be upcoming Target 
Hypermarket which located within 2 km away. 
 
The group plans to develop the project in various phases. There is a phase completed during 
year 2021, which consists of 66 units double storey terrace houses. As at the year-end of 2021, 
we have launched two phases of development which consist of 80 units of single storey terrace 
houses and 29 units double storey terrace houses. They are under active constructions and 
targeted to complete by end of the year 2022.  
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (Cont’d) 
 
A. PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (Cont’d) 

 
A.3  SEGAMAT 
 

All those projects are situated at prime location and easily accessible through main road and 
adjoined with existing matured housing estate. 

 
   A.3.1 Taman Tasik Sejati @ Yayasan 
 

Spread over approximately 100 acres, Taman Tasik Sejati is an exciting township which is 
sprouting in the rapidly growing area of Taman Yayasan, Segamat. Located merely 10 minutes 
away from Segamat main town and accessible to Kuantan Highway, this project is much sought 
after due to its strategic location and is situated at established neighbourhood. It’s definitely a 
liveable place with lots of good food and a good living environment as well as amenities for daily 
needs such as Billion and Nirwana Supermarket. It is accessible to the main highways to Kuantan, 
Kuala Lumpur and to Segamat town. The project comprises an enviable cluster of quality homes, 
consisting of Double Storey Cluster House as well as Double and Single Storey Terrace House 
that will appeal to discerning buyers. 

  
During the year of review, the Group has launched 2 phases of residential development, of which 
consisting of 48 units of single storey cluster houses and 66 units of single storey terrace houses. 
Both phases have been completed with CCC in 2021. 

 
Currently, the Group plan to launch 144 units single storey cluster houses and now in active 
construction and estimated to complete in year 2024. 

 
     A.3.2 Taman Bukit Mutiara @ Buloh Kasap  
 

Taman Bukit Mutiara is located about 10km away from Segamat main town. This project provides 
safe & secure environment as it is adjoined with Police Station. An added plus point is that a 
secondary school just beside the police station. 

 
As at the year-end 2021, 78 units of double storey terrace houses remain under active construction 
and plan to complete in 4th Quarter of 2022. 

 
A.4  KLANG, SELANGOR 
 
        Bandar Bestari 
 

The Bandar Bestari is a 448-acre self-integrated township located in Klang with an exclusive blend 
of premium landed residential homes, strata properties commercial business centre. 

 
Besides that, the 90-acre retail and commercial hub boasts of various facilities to foster community 
living, including a private community clubhouse, commercial zone and schools. The subject project 
is located within the integrated development of Bandar Bestari, Klang which is approximately 44 
km due to south-west of Kuala Lumpur City Centre and approximately 8 km from Klang town 
centre. 

 
It is accessible from Kuala Lumpur City centre by of KESAS Highway into Jalan Klang Banting for 
approximately 3 km where the project is located on the right side by Jalan Klang-Banting. 
 

 Nearby residential development includes Bayuemas, Bandar Parklands, Taman   Perindustrian Air 
Hitam Phase 1 & 2, Taman Sijangkang Jaya, Taman Perwira and Taman Seri Medan, Landmarks 
within the locality include Indah Water Konsortium, Pangsapuri Arista and Orchids Apartment. 

 
Shopping, marketing, educational, recreational amenities and public facilities are available in the 
neighbourhood. 
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (Cont’d) 
 
A.  PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (Cont’d) 

 
A.4   KLANG, SELANGOR (Cont’d) 

 
    A.4.1 Canary Garden @ Bandar Bestari 
 

The Canary Garden Homes depicts residences for the luxurious lifestyle. Designed to showcase 
the delicate balance between serenity and convenience, some of the primary features include a 
52-acre French-inspired Garden for nature-focused recreation. 
 
Phase 2(D) consists of double storey semi-detached is under active constructions and is targeted 
to complete 2023. 

 
    A.4.2 18 Madge 
 

18 Madge is a high-rise residential development located at Jalan Madge @ Ampang Hilir Kuala 
Lumpur. 
 
It comprise of 10-storey high-end residence with 50 units in eight classic designs with facilities 
such as infinity lap pool, playground and barbeque area, meditation court, gymnasium and Zen 
Sky lounge and others. 
 
The development project was under active constructions and completed in year 2021 and expects 
to obtain CCC in 2nd Quarter 2022. 

 
 
B. PROPERTY INVESTMENT  

 
During the year under review, property investment continues to be an important driver for the 
Group, contributing RM51 million in revenue, which makes up for 11% of the Group’s total 
revenues. 
 
The movement restriction measure and the closure of international border have seen tremendous 
reduction in the hotel and the mall patronage. During MCO and CMCO, the hotel has received 
major cancellation of rooms booking and events which has caused huge loss in revenue.  The Mall 
business also been affected by the containment measure taken to control the widespread of the 
Covid-19 virus. 

 
B.1 KSL City Mall 
 

 KSL City Mall has a gross floor space of 1 million sq ft, making it one of the largest mall in Johor. 
Featuring 500 upmarket lifestyle outlets which consist of 442 retail shops, 50 F&B outlets and 8-
cineplex. 

 
 B.2 KSL Hotel & Resort 

 
KSL Hotel & Resort Johor Bahru is the largest integrated resort in Johor, located at the heart of 
the city centre and sits strategically within Iskandar Puteri Malaysia, Johor’s second city. The 904 
hotel rooms with choices of Superior, Deluxe, Premier Deluxe King, Grand Super King & Suites 
room meet the requirements for leisure and business travellers alike. 
 

The hotel also features a Grand Ballroom which seats up to 800 persons, two secondary ballrooms 
and 9 meeting rooms to cater every need and group size. Not only that, the hotel also features 
other facilities such as an international cuisine restaurant, lounge & bar, dinosaur themed park, 
rooftop pool, golf simulators, gymnasium and sauna. It is also seamlessly integrated to a wide 
array of retails outlets and cinema in KSL City Mall which is linked to the hotel for an enhanced 
‘shop & stay’ experience. 
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (Cont’d) 
 
B. PROPERTY INVESTMENT (Cont’d) 
 

B.3 KSL Hot Spring Resort 
 

KSL Hot Spring Resort comprises 308 rooms with 4 types of rooms & suites featuring urbanized 
and modern environment which provides a relaxing and rejuvenating experience from hectic 
lifestyle. 
 

KSL Hot Spring is proud to be the first hospitality establishment to provide healthy living through 
“onsen water” with its natural essences. 

 
B.4 KSL Esplanade, Klang 

 
It is an integrated commercial podium which consists of retails shops, departmental store, 
cinemas, car parks, 4 Star-Hotel and Serviced Apartment. 
 
The KSL Esplanade Mall will be complemented by over 300 local and international stores, 
shopping, dining, entertainment and public Park as well as the alfresco dining that connects the 
mall to the park. 
 
The KSL Esplanade Mall is expected to give impact not only to the social-economic but also to 
community uplift with the job opportunities which will be created for the locals. 
 
The whole integrated complex is expected to be completed in 3rd Quarter of 2022. 

 
 

C.      GROWTH STRATEGIES 
 

The Group property development and property investment segment has been deeply affected by 
the economic crisis brought by the Covid-19 pandemic. The sluggish market condition is 
unprecedented that there is hardly any past reference that can be use as guidance to ease the 
way of recovery. 

 
As precaution against the uncertainty, the Group had opted for more prudent strategies by scaling 
down all business and promotional activities. 

  
      C.1 Property Development 
 

       With the current unstable economy environment, the Group opines that customer demand and 
buying power would be toned down tremendously. 

 
      C.2 Property Investment  
 

   In the property investment segment, the Group is also taking the same cautious step. All major 
launching and promotional activities will be delayed until the pandemic is fully contained and 
stability is restored. 

 
 

D.      LAND BANKING  
 

   As at 31 December 2021, KSLH has approximately of 2,400 acres of land bank throughout Johor 
and Klang. The land bank is strategically located at different prime locations of Segamat, Batu 
Pahat, Muar, Mersing, Johor Bahru, Kuala Lumpur and Klang. Supported by our strong balance 
sheet, the Group intends to acquire lands at strategic locations in the future, in order to safeguard 
our property development arm to generate a continuous pipeline of projects. 

 
 
E.      CONCLUSION 
 
          We will continue to work hard to enhance future shareholders’ value. 
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FIVE YEARS GROUP FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

 
 

Financial Year Ended 31 December 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

      

INCOME STATEMENT 
 

         

Revenue (RM Million)  697.5 710.2 712.2 340.7 467.8 

Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation (RM Million) *285.5 320.3 323.7 (52.9) 140.7 

Profit/(Loss) Attributable to Shareholders (RM Million)  *224.7 223.2 249.9 (64.4) 114.4 

           

BALANCE SHEET 
 

         

Issued and Paid Up Capital (Million Unit) 1,037.5 1,037.5 1,037.5 1,037.5 1,037.5 

Shareholders’ Equity (RM Million) *2,599.9 2,815.3 3,065.2 3,000.8 3,116.1 

           

SHARE INFORMATION 
 

         

Basic Earnings Per Share (Sen) *21.95 21.91 24.57 (6.33) 11.25 

Dividend Per Share – Gross (Sen) - - - - - 

Net Assets Per Share (RM) *2.54 2.77 3.01 2.95 3.06 

Return on Shareholders’ Equity (%) 9% 8% 8% -2% 4% 

 
 

* restated – effect of transition to MFRS 
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE  

 

                      KU HWA SENG  
 

                      Executive Chairman  

 

 

 

Ku Hwa Seng, aged 66, male, Malaysian, was appointed to the Board on 19 November 2001 as an Executive 

Director and was subsequently appointed as the Executive Chairman of KSL Holdings Berhad (“KSLH” or 

“the Company”) on 24 February 2011. He joined the KSLH Group in 1981 and has since gained vast 

invaluable experience and built a strong business network over the past thirty (30) years in the property 

development industry. Presently, he is involved in the KSLH Group’s business development and 

operations in south Johor. He oversees the day-to-day management, decision-making and operations of 

Johor Bahru office. He is a director of most of the subsidiary companies within the KSLH Group and also 

a director of several other private limited companies.  

 

He is deemed to have certain conflict of interest with the Company by virtue of his interest in certain privately 

owned companies, which are also involved in property development business. However, these privately 

owned companies are not in direct competition with the business of the Company.  

 

Ku Hwa Seng is brother to Khoo Cheng Hai @ Ku Cheng Hai, Ku Tien Sek and Ku Wa Chong, who are the 

Directors and/or the substantial shareholders of the Company. He does not hold any directorships in other 

public companies. He has no convictions for any offences within the past five (5) years other than traffic 

offences, if any.  

 

 

 

                      KHOO CHENG HAI @ KU CHENG HAI  
 

                     Group Managing Director  

                     Members of Risk Management Committee  

 

 

Khoo Cheng Hai @ Ku Cheng Hai, aged 71, male, Malaysian, is the founder of the KSLH Group. He was 

appointed to the Board on 19 November 2001 as the Group Managing Director.  

 

He is the driving force behind the KSLH Group’s development, growth and expansion. He is known for his 

prudence, foresight and business acumen, which has helped to see the KSLH Group through two (2) 

recessions in the last thirty (30) years. With his vast experience, he is responsible for the KSLH Group’s 

business development and day-to-day operations of the KSLH Group. He is a director of most of the 

subsidiary companies within the KSLH Group and also a director of several other private limited companies.  

 

He is deemed to have certain conflict of interest with the Company by virtue of his interest in certain privately 

owned companies, which are also involved in property development business. However, these privately 

owned companies are not in direct competition with the business of the Company.  

 

Khoo Cheng Hai @ Ku Cheng Hai is brother to Ku Hwa Seng, Ku Tien Sek and Ku Wa Chong, who are the 

Directors and/or the substantial shareholders of the Company. He does not hold any directorships in other 

public companies. He has no convictions for any offences within the past five (5) years other than traffic 

offences, if any. 
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE (Cont’d) 
 

                          

                       KU TIEN SEK  
 

                       Executive Director  

 

 

 

Ku Tien Sek, aged 64, male, Malaysian, was appointed to the Board on 19 November 2001 as an Executive 

Director. He has been involved in the management of the KSLH Group since 1981 particularly in KSLH 

Group’s public relations as well as the formulation of the KSLH Group’s strategic plans and policies. 

Presently, he is involved in the KSLH Group’s business development and operations in Klang Valley. He is 

also responsible for the development of the KSLH Group’s future expansion plans. He is a director of most 

of the subsidiary companies within the KSLH Group and also a director of several other private limited 

companies.  

He is deemed to have certain conflict of interest with the Company by virtue of his interest in certain privately 

owned companies, which are also involved in property development business. However, these privately 

owned companies are not in direct competition with the business of the Company.  

 

Ku Tien Sek is brother to Khoo Cheng Hai @ Ku Cheng Hai, Ku Hwa Seng and Ku Wa Chong, who are the 

Directors and/or the substantial shareholders of the Company. He does not hold any directorships in other 

public companies. He has no convictions for any offences within the past five (5) years other than traffic 

offences, if any.  
 
 
 

 

                   LEE CHYE TEE  
 

                   Executive Director  

 

 

 

Lee Chye Tee, aged 58, male, Malaysian, was appointed to the Board on 1 December 2003 as Executive 

Director of the Company. He is a fellow member of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants. He 

is also a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants and the Malaysian Institute of Taxation. He has 

many years’ experience in accounting, auditing, taxation and management consultancy. He is presently 

responsible for the overall accounting and corporate finance functions of the KSLH Group.  

 

Lee Chye Tee does not hold any directorships in other public companies. He does not have any family 

relationship with any Director and/or substantial shareholder of the Company or any business arrangement 

with the Company in which he has personal interest. He has no convictions for any offences within the past 

five (5) years other than traffic offences, if any.  
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE (Cont’d) 

 

                   GOW KOW  
 

                 Independent Non-Executive Director  

                Chairman of Audit Committee and Risk Management Committee  

                Members of Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee  

 

 

Gow Kow, aged 68, male, Malaysian, was appointed to the Board on 19 November 2001 as an Independent 

Non-Executive Director. He is fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and 

the Malaysian Institute of Taxation. He is also a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, the 

Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and 

Administrators. He joined Tan Choon Chye & Co (now known as Gow & Tan), a Public Accounting Firm in 

August 1978 as an Audit Assistant and had been holding various positions in the firm before he was admitted 

as an Audit Partner in October 1985. He assumed the position of managing partner of the firm since January 

1988. He has more than thirty (30) years of public practice experience. His working exposures include 

accounting, auditing, taxation, liquidation and management consultancy. 

 

Gow Kow does not hold any directorships in other public companies. He does not have any family relationship 

with any Director and/or substantial shareholder of the Company or any business arrangement with the 

Company in which he has personal interest. He has no convictions for any offences within the past five (5) 

years other than traffic offences, if any. 

 

 

                    GOH TYAU SOON  
 

                  Independent Non-Executive Director  
                  Chairman of Nomination Committee  

                  Members of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and 

                  Risk Management Committee  

 

 

Goh Tyau Soon, aged 77, male, Malaysian, was appointed to the Board on 1 April 2002 as an Independent 

NonExecutive Director. He holds a Master of Law degree (LLM) from Kings College, University of London; 

Bachelor of Law (LLB) from Hull University and Barrister-at-Law (Middle Temple). He is a practicing lawyer 

and Principal Partner of Andrew T.S. Goh & Khairil, Malacca. He has been in private practice for more 

than forty (40) years principally engaged in conveyance and bank work.  

Goh Tyau Soon does not hold any directorships in other public companies. He does not have any family 

relationship with any Director and/or substantial shareholder of the Company or any business arrangement 

with the Company in which he has personal interest. He has no convictions for any offences within the past 

five (5) years other than traffic offences, if any.  
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE (Cont’d) 

 

                   TEY PING CHENG  
 
                   Independent Non-Executive Director  

                   Chairman of Remuneration Committee  

                   Members of Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and 

                   Risk Management Committee  

 

 

Tey Ping Cheng, aged 53, male, Malaysian, was appointed to the Board on 15 April 2002 as an Independent 

NonExecutive Director. He is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants and the CPA Australia. 

He graduated in 1994 with a degree in Bachelor of Business, majoring in Accounting from Curtin University 

of Technology, Perth, Australia. He has been a Partner of Tey Consultancy, a company secretarial and tax 

consultancy firm since 1992. Currently, he is the Council Member of Malaysian Association of Company 

Secretaries.  

 

Tey Ping Cheng does not hold any directorships in other public companies. He does not have any family 

relationship with any Director and/or substantial shareholder of the Company or any business arrangement 

with the Company in which he has personal interest. He has no convictions for any offences within the past 

five (5) years other than traffic offences, if any. 
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KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT   

 

TANG CHING TONG  
 

Tang Ching Tong, aged 56, Malaysian, joined the KSL Group in year 2001 and was appointed as General 

Manager in year 2009. He holds an Honours Degree in Bachelor of Science with Education from University 

Kebangsaan Malaysia.  

He has more than twenty (20) years of experiences in the property development industry.  Currently he is 

involved in the daily business operations include planning and managerial roles in business development of 

the Group especially in Southern Regions.  

He does not have any family relationship with any Director and/or substantial shareholder of the 

Company or any business arrangement with the Company in which he had personal interest. He has no 

conviction for any offence within the past five (5) years other than traffic offences, if any. He does not hold 

any directorships in public companies.  

 
 

KU KENG LEONG  
 

Ku Keng Leong, aged 46, male, Malaysian, joined the KSL Group in year 2000. He was appointed as the 

Executive Director in most KSL subsidiaries on 1 January 2011. Currently, he is involved in planning, daily 

business operations, as well as designs, implementations, co-ordinations and overseeing all projects 

progress in South Johor.  

Ku Keng Leong graduated from Curtin University of Technology, Perth Australia with a Bachelor of Business 

degree majoring in International Business in 1999. He obtained his MBA in IPE Business School, Paris in 

January 2018.  

He is the son of Ku Wa Chong, nephew of Khoo Cheng Hai @ Ku Cheng Hai, Ku Hwa Seng and Ku Tien 

Sek, who are the substantial shareholder and/or Directors of the Company. He does not hold any 

directorships in public companies. He has no conviction for any offence within the past five (5) years other 

than traffic offences, if any.  
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT   
 

A.  ESTABLISHMENT AND COMPOSITION  

The Audit Committee comprises the following members:- 

Chairman:  

Mr. Gow Kow (Independent Non-Executive Director)  

Members:  

Mr. Goh Tyau Soon (Independent Non-Executive Director)  

Mr. Tey Ping Cheng (Independent Non-Executive Director)  

 

The composition of Audit Committee is in compliance with the paragraph 15.09 of Main 

Market Listing Requirement (“MMLR”), where the Audit Committee consist of three (3) 

Independent Non-Executive Director and one of the member of the Audit Committee, Mr. Tey 

Ping Cheng is a member of Malaysian Institute of Accountants which fulfills the requirement under 

paragraph 15.09(1)(c)(i) and paragraph 7.1 of Practice Note 13 of MMLR.  

 

In compliance with Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance, the chairman of the Audit 

Committee is not the chairman of the Board of Directors during the financial year ended 31 

December 2021 and up to the date of this Report.  
 

The profile of the members can be found presented on page 32 to 33 of this Annual Report.  
 
 

B. TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

The terms of reference of the Committee is published on the Company’s corporate website 
(www.ksl.my) under “News-Others”.  

 
 

C.     MEETINGS  

 

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee held four (4) meetings. 

Details of each member’s meeting attendances are as follows:- 
 

Name of Directors No. of Meetings Attended 

Mr. Gow Kow 4/4 

Mr. Goh Tyau Soon 3/4 

Mr. Tey Ping Cheng 4/4 

The meetings were conducted with the quorum of two (2) of whom the majority of members present 

at the meeting were Independent Directors’ as required by the Committee’s Terms of Reference.  

 
The meetings were appropriately structured through the use of agendas, which were distributed 
together with the minutes of the meeting and relevant papers and reports to the members at least 
five (5) business days before the meeting with sufficient time allowed for review by the members 
for the proper discharge of its duties and responsibilities diligently and effectively in compliance 
with the MMLR and its terms of reference. The secretary of the Company, the appointed 
secretary of the Committee, attended all the meetings during the financial year. 

 

 

http://www.ksl.my/
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (Cont’d)  
 
C.      MEETINGS (Cont’d) 

The External Auditors, Internal Auditors, Executive Directors, Group Financial Controller and 

Corporate Finance Manager, at the invitation of the Committee, attended the Committee meetings 

to present their reports/findings or required information and explanations for the proper deliberation 

of the matters at hand.  

The Audit Committee reported to and updated the Board on significant issues and matters discussed 

during the Committee’s meetings and where appropriate, made the necessary recommendations 

to the Board. Minutes of the Committee’s meetings were made available to all Board Members for 

review and to seek clarification and confirmation from the Audit Committee Chairman where 

necessary.  

 
The Group’s External Auditors attended all the Committee meetings held during the financial year  
under review. 
 
 

D.  SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR  

 

The Committee carried out its duties in accordance with its terms of reference during the financial year 

under review. The summary of works undertaken by the Audit Committee during the financial year 

included the following:- 

 

1.  Reviewed the Quarterly Financial Reports  

 

During the scheduled quarterly meetings, the Finance Director of the Group presented the draft 

unaudited quarterly financial results for Audit Committee’s review, briefed the Committee on the 

contents of the draft financial statements (including the notes to the account) and answered all 

queries raised and clarifications sought by the Audit Committee. The review focused on key 

financial results and comparison to the corresponding quarter of preceding year as well as 

immediate preceding quarter, with the reasons for the variances provided by the Finance Director. 

In addition, the business prospect of the Group for the rest of the financial year was provided by 

the Management to the Audit Committee for discussion.  

 

Further, the Audit Committee assessed the reasonableness of the assumptions and estimates 

made in the draft financial quarterly financial statements based on the updates by the 

Management on the operations and proposed business strategy.  

 

The reviews of the draft financial quarterly financial statements by the Audit Committee during the 

financial year under review were conducted in the presence of the External Auditors with 

clarifications sought from them during the meeting.  

 

The unaudited financial reports reviewed by the Audit Committee were then recommended to the 
Board for approval prior to announcement to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”).  

 

2.  Reviewed the Company’s Compliance with Regulatory, Statutory and Accounting Standards  

During the quarterly Audit Committee meeting, with respect of the quarterly and annual 

financial statements, the Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s compliance with the 

MMLR, accounting standards promulgated by Malaysian Accounting Standards Board and 

other legal and regulatory requirements.  

  



ANNUAL REPORT 2021          I            37 
 

 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (Cont’d)  
 
D.      SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR (Cont’d) 

 

3.  Reviewed the latest changes of pronouncements issued by the accountancy, statutory and 
regulatory bodies.  

At such quarterly meetings, the Audit Committee sought clarification of the application and 

impact of new and revised accounting standards with the External Auditors as necessary. The 

Audit Committee members also underwent briefings by professionals on the updates and 

changes in MMLR and proposed changes in Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 

during the financial year.  

 

4. Reviewed the External Auditors’ Audit Plan, Scope of Work and Audit Fee 
 

During the financial year, the External Auditors presented their audit plan to the Audit 
Committee for review and comment prior to the commencement of the audit to ensure the audit 
scope is adequate and reasonable time was allowed to ensure the audit carried out effectively 
and not under undue time pressure. The audit plan presented includes the audit methodology, 
audit workflow and audit timetable, and significant risk area. The audit plan for the financial 
year was discussed and clarifications sought from the External Auditors prior to approval of the 
said plan by the Audit Committee. During the same meeting, the audit fees and non-audit fees 
was presented by the External Auditors for review by Audit Committee, which was then 
recommended to the Board for approval.  

 

5.  Reviewed of Audited Financial Statements and Audit Results with External Auditors  
 
Prior to announcement of final quarterly financial statements, the External Auditors presented their 
Audit Status Report and briefed the Audit Committee on the audit findings arising.  

During the meeting, the audit findings on the significant risk areas, deficiencies in internal 
control and status of the audit were presented to the Audit Committee for review. The results 
and findings were subsequently presented to the Board by the Chairman of the Audit Committee 
after the review.  

During the financial year, the Audit Committee recommended for the Board’s approval and adoption 
of the audited statutory financial statements of the Company and the Group after it was satisfied 
that the audit had been adequately planned and were carried out in accordance with the 
approved auditing standards after the review with the External Auditors and the Management and 
it was satisfied that the presentation of the financial statements was in compliance with the 
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.  

 

6.  Private Sessions with External Auditors  
 
For the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee has met with the External 
Auditors a total of two (2) times without the presence of the Executive Directors and Management 
in order for the Audit Committee and the External Auditors to freely exchange observations and 
opinion between both parties as well as discuss any significant audit issues.  

 

7.  Reviewed the Independence and Objectivity of the External Auditors  

During the financial year, confirmation on the independence of the External Auditors was 
obtained by the Audit Committee in order for the Audit Committee to review the independence 
and objectivity of the External Auditors.  
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (Cont’d)  
 

D.      SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR (Cont’d) 
 

8.  Review of Internal Audit Functions  
 
During the financial year, the Audit Committee received internal audit report presented by the 
outsourced Internal Auditors that contains the findings, recommendations and agreed 
management action plans for the internal audits conducted based on approved internal audit 
plan. Aside from reporting on the audit findings, the status of agreed management action plans 
for previous internal audit findings and the status of the approved internal audit plan was also 
presented to the Audit Committee. Additionally, the Audit Committee had assessed the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the internal audit functions through the review of the resources, 
experience and continuous professional development of the Internal Auditors for its adequacy.  

During the financial year, the internal audit plan was presented by the outsourced Internal 
Auditors for the review and approval by the Audit Committee.  

The oversights role of Audit Committee on Internal Audit functions is further elaborated in the 
Statement of Risk Management and Internal Control located on pages 60 to 67 of this Annual 
Report.  

 

9. Reviewed Related Party Transactions 

 

During the scheduled quarterly meetings, the Finance Director reported to the Audit 

Committee the value of the transactions (from date of shareholders’ mandate to end of the 

financial period) of individual recurrent related party transactions (“RRPT”) as compared to the 

approved value of transactions per the shareholders’ mandate obtained in the previous general 

meeting to identify RRPT exceeded or about to exceed the approved amount per the 

shareholders’ mandate so that prompt action can be taken to resolve.  

 

During the meeting, the Audit Committee sought confirmation from the Management that there 

was no new RRPT or conflict of interest situation that might arise within the Group including 

any transaction, procedures and course of conduct that might raise questions of management 

integrity.  

 

10.  Reviewed the Annual Report  

 

During the financial year, the Audit Committee reviewed the Annual Report (which includes the 

Corporate Governance Statement, Audit Committee Report, Statement of Risk Management 

and Internal Control and Management Discussion and Analysis), and the Audited Financial 

Statement of the Group and recommended to the Board for approval.  

 
  



ANNUAL REPORT 2021          I            39 
 

 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (Cont’d)  
 

E.  INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION 
 

The Group outsourced its internal audit function to an independent professional firm, namely 
NeedsBridge Advisory Sdn. Bhd. The outsourced internal audit function assists the Board and the 
Audit Committee in providing independent assessment on the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Group’s system of internal control. The outsourced internal audit function reports directly to the Audit 
Committee. The appointment and resignation of the internal audit function as well as the proposed 
audit fees are subject to review and approval by the Audit Committee for its reporting to the Board for 
ultimate approval. 
 
The audit engagement of the outsourced internal audit function is governed by the engagement letter 
and Internal Audit Charter approved by the Board during the financial year under review. Key terms 
of the engagement include purpose and scope of works, accountability, independence, the outsourced 
internal audit function’s responsibilities, the Management’s responsibilities, the authority accorded to 
the outsourced internal audit function, limitation of scope of works, confidentiality, proposed fees and 
engagement team.  
 
On the other hand, the Internal Audit Charter governs the internal audit function by specifying the 
purpose and mission of internal audit function, its roles, professionalism required (including adherence 
to The Institute of Internal Auditors' mandatory guidance including the Core Principles for the 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics, and the 
International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing (hereinafter referred to as 
“Standards”)), its authorities, the reporting structure, independence and objectivity, its responsibilities, 
purpose of internal audit plan, reporting and monitoring, as well as the quality assurance and 
improvement programme. The internal audits are carried out, in material aspects, in accordance with 
the International Professional Practices Framework (“IPPF”) established by the Institute of Internal 
Auditors Global. 
 
The outsourced internal audit function prepared a risk-based internal audit plan and incorporated a 
holistic schedule of assignments to provide independent assurance on the system of risk-management 
and internal control as well as safeguarding of the Group’s assets. The scope of review by the 
outsourced internal audit function, through the internal audit plan, is determined and approved by the 
Audit Committee with feedback from the Senior Management. In addition, the Audit Committee 
enhanced their oversight of the internal audit function by reviewing the resources of the outsourced 
internal audit function provided in terms of qualification, experience and continuous professional 
development of the employees of the outsourced internal audit function tabled by the outsourced 
internal audit function during the financial year under review. The performance, independence and 
objectivity of the internal audit function is formally evaluated by the Audit Committee through 
prescribed evaluation form adapted from Corporate Governance Guide issued by Bursa Malaysia 
Berhad. 
 
To preserve the independence and objectivity, the outsourced internal audit function is not permitted 
to act on behalf of Management, decide and implement management action plan, perform on-going 
internal control monitoring activities (except for follow up on progress of action plan implementation), 
authorise and execute transactions, prepare source documents on transactions, have custody of 
assets or act in any capacity equivalent to a member of the Management or the employee. The 
outsourced internal audit function is accorded unrestricted access to all functions, records, property, 
personnel, Audit Committee and other specialised services from within or outside the Group and 
necessary assistance of personnel in units of the Group where they perform audits.   

 
During the financial year under review, the outsourced internal audit function conducted scheduled 
internal audits in accordance with the internal audit plan approved by the Audit Committee. Areas of 
improvement in internal controls identified together with the risk/ potential implications, 
recommendations, management action plans, person in-charge as well as the target date of 
implementation were presented directly to the Audit Committee during the corresponding Audit 
Committee meetings. In addition, the outsourced internal audit function performed follow up reviews 
to ascertain the status of implementation of the agreed management action plans. The results of the 
follow up reviews were reported to the Audit Committee for their review and deliberation. 
 
The internal audits conducted on the Group did not reveal any weaknesses in the internal control 
system that would result in any material losses, contingencies or uncertainties which are necessary 
to be disclosed in this Annual Report.  
 
Please refer to the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control from pages 60 to 67 of this 
Annual Report for the details of the activities of the outsourced internal audit function during the 
financial year under review. 
 



ANNUAL REPORT 2021          I            40 
 

 
 

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RELATION TO 

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 2021 
 
The Directors are required to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at the end of the financial year and of the 
income statement and cash flows of the Company and the Group for the financial year.  
 
The Directors are of the view that, in preparing the financial statements of the Company and the Group 
for the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company and the Group has adopted recommended 
accounting policies that are consistently applied and supported by reasonable, prudent judgments and 
estimates. The Directors have also considered that all applicable accounting standards have been followed 
during the preparation of audited financial statements.  
 
The Directors are aware of its responsible in ensuring that the Group keeps adequate accounting records 
that disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Company and the Group as to enable 
them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 
the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards.  
 
The Directors have ensured timely release of quarterly and annual financial results of the Group for the year 
2021 to Bursa Securities that enable the public and investors to be well informed of the Group’s constant 
development.  
 
The Directors are also fully aware of their general responsibilities in taking steps which are reasonably open 
to them to safeguard the assets and to detect and prevent fraud and other irregularities within the Group.  
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT 
 
The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of KSL Holdings Berhad (“KSL” or “the Company”) is committed 
to ensure that good corporate governance practices are applied throughout the Company and its 
subsidiaries (“the Group”) and form the fundamental of corporate sustainability pursued by the Group 
for long term shareholders’ value creation. Hence, the Board fully supports the principles and practices 
of good corporate governance practices (including the Intended Outcomes) as promulgated by the 
Malaysian Code of Corporate Governance 2021 (“MCCG”) to direct and manage the business and 
affairs of the Group towards promoting business prosperity and corporate accountability with the 
ultimate objective of realising long-term shareholder value while taking into account the interest of other 
stakeholders. 
 
This overview statement sets out the overview of the manner in which the Company had applied the 
principles set out in the MCCG and the extent of compliance with the Principles of MCCG advocated 
therein in accordance with paragraph 15.25 and Practice Note 9 of the Main Market Listing 
Requirements (“MMLR”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”). 
 
On the other hand, the application of each Practice set out in the MCCG during the financial year are 
disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report prescribed by Bursa Securities (“CG Report“) and 
announced together with the announcement of this Annual Report in accordance with paragraph 15.25 
and Practice Note 9 of MMLR. The CG Report for the financial year under review and previous financial 
years are available for download from “Others” section of the “News” tab of the of Company’s website 

at www.ksl.my as well as an announcement on the website of Bursa Securities.  

 
The Corporate Governance Overview Statement (“CG Overview Statement”) should be read in tandem 
with the CG Report to provide comprehensive disclosure of the application of each principle and practice 
set out in the MCCG during the financial year.  
 
The following disclosure statements provides an overview of the Company’s application of the Principles 
set out in MCCG that has been in place throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2021. 
 
PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS 
 
1.1 Board leadership 

 
The Board strives to collectively lead and is responsible for the success of the Group by providing 
entrepreneur leadership and direction, strategic management, performance measurement and 
monitoring, enterprise risk management and internal control system, standards of conduct, 
sustainability management, critical business issues and decisions as well as management oversight. 
The Board acknowledges that it is the ultimate decision-making body of the Group. The Board 
comprises Directors who are entrepreneurs and experienced professionals in the fields of auditing, 
accounting, taxation, liquidation and management consultancy, secretarial, company laws and legal.  
All these different skills put together enable the Board to effectively lead and control the Group. The 
Board is guided by the Board Charter approved by the Board and led by an Executive Chairman to 
ensure its effectiveness. Together with other Directors, he leads the Board in the discussion on the 
strategies and policies recommended by the Senior Management. A summary of the responsibilities of 
Chairman is disclosed in Practice 1.2 of CG Report. 
 
The Board is responsible for the oversight and overall management of the Company. The Board fully 
understands their responsibilities in the Group in relation to a sound and sustainable operations and 
optimal corporate governance framework in order to safeguard shareholders’ value. The Board had 
reviewed and approved the Group’s charter and policies (including subsequent updates) while the 
Group Managing Director and Executive Directors are delegated with the authorities and responsibilities 
to ensure proper execution of strategies as well as effective and efficient operation throughout the 
Group. The authorisation procedures for key processes are stated in the Group’s policies and 
procedure. 
 
  

http://www.ksl.my/
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT (Cont’d) 
 

PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (Cont’d) 
 
1.1 Board leadership (Cont’d) 

 
As required under the Board Charter, the Board is assuming the following, amongst other roles and 
responsibilities, broad categories of roles and responsibilities: - 
 

• Setting the corporate values, objectives, goals and strategic plan as well as clear lines of 
responsibility and accountability for the Group; 

• Deliberating, approving and monitoring progress of the Company’s strategy, budgets, plans and 
policies; 

• Overseeing the conduct of the Company’s business to evaluate whether the business is being 
properly managed; 

• Retaining an effective Board that consists of competent individuals with appropriate specialized skills 
and knowledge to lead and control the Company; 

• Identifying and manage principal and potential risks and to ensure proper risk management policy 
with appropriate governance structure and process as well as appropriate risk appetite, established 
based on internationally recognised risk management framework, are put in place to manage 
principal risks. A statement featuring the Group’s risk management framework and internal control 
system is included on pages 60 to 67 of this Annual Report; 

• Succession planning including appointing, training, fixing the compensation of and where 
appropriate, replacing any member of the Board, Board Committees and Senior Management; 

• Maintaining an effective system of internal control to safeguard shareholder’s investment and 
Company’s assets; 

• Reviewing the adequacy and the integrity of the Company’s internal control systems and 
management information systems, including systems for compliance in accordance with the laws, 
regulations rules, directives and guidelines; 

• Establishing and maintaining the ethical standards through Code of Conduct, Group Anti-Bribery 
and Corruption Policy and Whistle-Blowing Policy which will be applicable throughout the Group; 

• Promoting good corporate governance culture throughout the Group and reviewing the corporate 
governance standing of the Company; 

• Promoting good sustainability practice throughout the Group; and 

• Establishing sustainability policy and reviewing the management of material sustainability matters 
on frequent interval. 

 
The roles and responsibilities of the Board and the application of the MCCG’s practice are disclosed in 
Practice 1.1 of the CG Report. 
 
Aside from the core responsibilities listed above, significant matters required deliberation and approval 
from the Board is clearly defined by the Board in the Board Charter as matters reserved for the Board 
for consideration and approval during the Board’s meeting. The matters reserved for the Board is 
disclosed in Practice 2.1 of the CG Report. 
 
The Board has delegated specific duties to the Board Committees (i.e. Audit Committee, Remuneration 
Committee, Nomination Committee and Risk Management Committee) which operate within a clearly 
defined Terms of Reference approved by the Board. The relevant Terms of Reference is available for 

download from “Others” section of the “News” tab of the of Company’s website at www.ksl.my. 

 
To ensure that there is a balance of power and authority within the Board, the position of the Chairman 
and the Group Managing Director is separated and there is a clear division of responsibilities between 
the Executive Chairman and the Group Managing Director. The Executive Chairman is responsible for 
the governance, orderly conduct and effectiveness of the Board while the Group Managing Director is 
responsible for managing the Group’s business operations and implementation of policies and 
strategies approved by the Board. A summary of the roles and responsibilities of the Chairman of the 
Board and the separation of the roles of Chairman and Group Managing Director is disclosed in Practice 
1.2 and 1.3 of CG Report, respectively. 

http://www.ksl.my/
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT (Cont’d) 
 

PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (Cont’d) 
 
1.1 Board leadership (Cont’d) 

 
In compliance with MCCG, the Executive Chairman was not a member of the Audit Committee, 
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Risk Management Committee during the 
financial year under review to enhance the independence and oversight roles of the Chairman of the 
Board in leading the Board of the Company. Kindly refer to Practice 1.4 of CG Report for further details. 
 
The Independent and Non-Executive Directors play an important role in ensuring that the strategies 
proposed by the Management are fully deliberated and examined, to ensure that the interest of all 
stakeholders are given due considerations duirng the decision-making process. In addition, Senior 
Independent Non-Executive Director is identified by the Board to whom concerns may be conveyed.  
 
All Board members shall notify the Chairman of the Board before accepting any new directorship or 
significant commitments outside the Company, including an indication of the time that will be spent on 
the new appointment. The Chairman shall also notify the Board if he or she has any new significant 
commitments outside the Company. 
 
In discharging its duties efficient and effectively, the Board is assisted by a licensed Company Secretary 
and the details of the Company Secretary are disclosed in Practice 1.5 of CG Report. 
 
i. Board Charter 
 

The Board is guided by a formal Board Charter approved by the Board. The Board Charter sets 
out the composition, roles, functions, responsibilities and authorities of the Board and the Board 
Committees of the Company as well as roles and responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board, 
the Group Managing Director, the Senior Independent Director and the Company Secretary. The 
Charter further defines the specific responsibilities and matters reserved for the Board, delegation 
of authorities, commitment by the Directors, Independent Directors, tenure of Independent 
Directors, appointment and re-election of Directors, governance structure of Board and Board 
Committee, Board proceedings, financial reporting responsibilities, unrestricted rights to access 
to information and independent advice, Board evaluation and performance, Board remuneration, 
Directors’ training and continuing education, general meetings and attendance and code of 
conduct. 

 
Further disclosure on the details of the Board Charter is disclosed in Practice 2.1 of CG Report. 
 
The Board Charter is available for download from “Others” section of the “News” tab of the of 

Company’s website at www.ksl.my with last review and update performed on 26 August 2021. 

 
ii. Code of Conduct and Whistle-Blowing Policy 

 
The Board is fully committed to the highest standards of integrity, transparency and accountability 
in the conduct of the Group’s business and operations to ensure business sustainability through 
their conducts, individually or collectively, focusing on the key principles of serving with respecting 
others, avoiding conflict of interest, preserving confidentiality and privacy and business 
sustainability. Audit Committee is entrusted with the task to look into ethical practices and 
compliance of the Group. 

  

http://www.ksl.my/
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ii. Code of Conduct and Whistle-Blowing Policy (Cont’d) 

 
The Board incorporated the above key value and principles of expected conducts into the 
Company’s Code of Conduct (“The Code”), last updated on 26 August 2021, to govern the 
standards of ethics and good conduct expected that is applicable to all the Group’s employees, 
customers and vendors worldwide. The Code forms the integrity and ethical value expected from 
the employees which are incorporated in the Employees Handbook. 
 
To further enhance the ethical value throughout the Group, formal Group Anti-Bribery and Anti-
Corruption Policy and Conflict of Interest Framework had been put in place by the Board to 
effectively manage and mitigate risk of bribery and conflict of interest situation while the Related 
Party Transactions and Conflict of Interest Policy and Procedures established to manage related 
party transactions entered or to be entered in accordance with MMLRs and the reporting of 
related party transactions. 
 
Please refer to Practice 3.1 of CG Report for details. 
 
To foster an environment where integrity, and ethical behaviour are maintained, the Board has 
put in place a formal Whistle-Blowing Policy to encourage employees and other interested parties 
to disclose concerns about illegal, unethical or improper business conduct within the Group.  
 
Please refer to Practice 3.2 of CG Report for details.  
  
The Code, Group Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy, Conflict of Interest Framework, Related 
Party Transactions and Conflict of Interest Policy and Procedures and Whistle-Blowing Policy 
are available for download from “Others” section of the “News” tab of the of Company’s website 

at www.ksl.my. 

 
iii. Board’s Meetings 

 
The Chairman of the Board, on the advice of the Company Secretary, determined the agenda of 
the meetings of the Board during the financial year under review and ensure that sufficient time 
was allocated during the meeting proceedings so that each agenda items or issues brought up 
were discussed or deliberated in necessary depth before decisions were made. 
 
Audit Committee meetings of the Company were not combined with the Board Meetings during 
the financial year under review and other directors and employees attended any particular Audit 
Committee meeting only at the Audit Committee’s invitation in order for the Audit Committee to 
discharge its delegated oversight duties by the Board. 
 
The Board meets regularly to perform its main function on the development and implementation 
of strategic plans, formulation of policies, overseeing the conduct and operations of the 
businesses of the Group, sustainability oversight, succession planning and ensuring 
appropriateness of internal control and effectiveness of risk management and is mindful of the 
importance of business sustainability in conducting the Group’s business.  
 

  

http://www.ksl.my/
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iii. Board’s Meetings (Cont’d) 

 
To carry out its functions and responsibilities, the Board met four (4) times during the financial 
year ended 31 December 2021 and the attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings is as 
follows: - 
 

 
The Board plans to meet at least four (4) times a year at quarterly intervals, with additional 
meetings convened when urgent and important decisions are required to be made between the 
scheduled meetings. All meetings of the Board are duly recorded in the Board minutes by the 
Company Secretary. The Company Secretary also attended all the Board Meetings of the 
Company. The Company Secretary ensures that all Board meetings are properly convened, and 
that accurate and proper records of the deliberations, proceedings and resolutions passed are 
recorded and maintained in the statutory register at the registered office of the Company. 
 

iv. Supply of Information 
 
The Board members in their individual capacity have unrestricted access to complete information 
on a timely basis in the form and quality necessary for the discharge of their duties and 
responsibilities.  Prior to each Board meeting, all Board members are furnished with the relevant 
documents and sufficient information, i.e. minutes of previous Board and individual committee 
meeting as well as board papers, no less than five (5) business days before the meeting to enable 
them to have sufficient time in obtaining a comprehensive understanding of the issues to be 
deliberated upon in order to arrive at a decision. 
 
Besides direct access to management staff, external independent professional advisers are also 
made available to render their independent views and advice to the Board, whenever deemed 
necessary and in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.   
 
The Directors also have accessed to the advice and services of the Company Secretary who is 
responsible for ensuring that the Board’s procedures are adhered to. 
 
Please refer to Practice 1.6 of CG Report for details of the Board’s proceedings on meeting 
materials and supply of information. 

  

Director No. of Attendance No. of Meetings 
Eligible to Attend 

Ku Hwa Seng 4 4 

Khoo Cheng Hai @ Ku Cheng Hai 4 4 

Ku Tien Sek 4 4 

Lee Chye Tee 4 4 

Gow Kow 4 4 

Goh Tyau Soon 3 4 

Tey Ping Cheng 4 4 
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v. Board Composition 

 
The appointment and re-election of Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries are governed 
by Policy and Procedure on Nomination and Selection of Director. Nomination Committee shall 
ensure the composition of the Board is refreshed periodically based on the strategies and results 
of the Board evaluation and performance and the tenure of each Director. The tenure of the 
Directors of the Company was evaluated by the Nomination Committee in March 2022 and the 
recommendations for the re-appointment of Directors for the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting were made after the Nomination Committee and the Board were satisfied that the current 
Board composition and the tenure of each Director were able to fulfil the current and future needs 
of the Group, and that performance and contribution of Directors seek for re-appointment were 
satisfactorily to the proper governance and oversight responsibilities of the Board. Please refer 
to Practice 5.1 of the CG report for the detailed disclosure on review of Board composition and 
tenure of individual Directors and that re-appointment is based on satisfactory evaluation of the 
Director’s performance and contribution to the Board. 
 
The Board currently has seven (7) members comprising one (1) Executive Chairman, three (3) 
Executive Directors (including the Group Managing Director) and three (3) Independent Non-
Executive Directors.  The profile of each Director is presented on pages 30 to 33 of this Annual 
Report. The composition of Independent Non-Executive Directors is in compliance with the 
minimum prescribed in Paragraph 15.02(1) of MMLR (i.e. 3/7) which states that “a listed issuer 
must ensure that at least 2 directors or 1/3 of the board of directors of a listed issuer, whichever 
is the higher, are independent directors” to ensure that there is sufficient independent element in 
the Board to provide the necessary check and balance within the Board. 
 
Although, the above composition departed from Practice 5.2 of MCCG which requires that at 
least half of the Board comprise of Independent Directors, the Board is in the opinion that, through 
formal assessments conducted on the Board and Board Committees and the independence of 
the independent directors, the Board concluded that the Independent Directors are professionals 
who have a diverse range of skills, knowledge and experiences in relevant fields, and 
Independent Directors had demonstrated their independence and objectivity during the Board 
and Board Committees’ proceedings. Therefore, adequate degree of independence is 
maintained notwithstanding the fact that only 42.9% of the Board are Independent Directors. 
Therefore, there is no disproportionate imbalance of power and authority on the Board between 
the Non-Independent and Independent Directors. The Board will continue to monitor and review 
the adequacy and effectiveness of the independent and objectivity element within the Board from 
time to time to ensure that it is adequate and effective. Please refer to Practice 5.2 of CG Report 
for further details. 
 

vi. Board Diversity 
 
It is the Board’s responsibility to ensure that the diversity within the Board is preserved so that 
required mix of knowledge, skills, expertise and experience are brought to the Group for business 
excellence while age, ethnic and gender diversity provides different of views points for issues 
under considerations. The Board is satisfied that, through the formal procedure for nomination 
and selection and annual performance appraisal of the Board, the Board Committees and 
individual directors, the current board composition represents a mix of knowledge, skills and 
experience required to discharge the Board’s duties and responsibilities effectively as well as to 
ensure that no individual or small groups of individuals dominate the Board’s decision-making 
process.  
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vi. Board Diversity (Cont’d) 

 
The Board is supporting age, ethnic and gender diversity within the Group including the 
workplace shall such potential candidate is available. At present, the Board does not establish 
formal policy on gender diversity with its targets established and measures formulated to meet 
those targets as the Board believes appointment of members of the Board and Senior 
Management shall be based on merit of the candidates as well as required mix of knowledge, 
skills, expertise and experience to be brought to the Group, instead of purely based on gender 
consideration alone. There was no women representation on the Board but representation of 2 
female management as Directors of the subsidiaries. At present, there was no active politician 
appointed as a member of the Board of the Company and its subsidiaries. 
 
Please refer to Practice 5.5 of the CG Report for the detailed disclosure on the board diversity as 
well as Practice 5.9 and 5.10 of the CG Report for the detailed disclosure on the gender diversity. 
 

vii. Independent Directors 
 
Independence of the candidates to act as Independent Director is assessed by Nomination 
Committee prior to their appointment based on independence assessment as well as nomination 
and selection process practiced with the results of the review reported to the Board for 
consideration and decision. 
 
On annual basis, all Independent Non-Executive Directors are subjected to independence 
assessment based on prescribed criteria on his independence and objectivity and self-
declaration of interests in Group, any corporation, partnership, business transactions and/or 
services with the Group for the Nomination Committee’s review and recommendation to the 
Board to form an opinion on the independence and objectivity of the Independent Non-Executive 
Directors. Based on the above assessment performed in 2021, the Board is satisfied with the 
level of independence and objectivity demonstrated by all Independent Non-Executive Directors, 
and their ability to bring independent and objective judgement to Board deliberations. 
 
The tenure of an Independent Director, as stated in the Board Charter, shall not exceed a 
cumulative term of nine (9) years. The Board is aware of the latest changes to the MCCG 2021, 
whereby upon completion of the nine (9) years, an Independent Director may continue to serve 
the Board subject to such Director re-designated as a Non-Independent Director. In the event 
that such Director is to be remained as Independent Director, the Board shall first justify and 
obtain annual shareholders’ approval. If the Board is to continue to retain the Independent 
Director after the ninth (9th) year, the Board should seek annual shareholders’ approval through 
a two-tier voting process. Therefore, the Board is in the midst of reviewing the relevant 
governance related policies and procedures, including Board Charter, to incorporate the required 
changes, to the extent practical, in upholding the best corporate governance practices while 
ensuring that the Board Charter and other governance related policies and procedures remain 
consistent with the Board’s objectives, current law and practices. 
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vii. Independent Directors (Cont’d) 

 
As at the date of this Annual Report, all Independent Directors (i.e. Mr. Gow Kow, Mr. Goh Tyau 
Soon and Mr. Tey Ping Cheng) had served on the Board for cumulative term of more than ninth 
(9) years. During the year, based on the Independent Directors’ self-assessment and self-
declaration of interests in Group, any corporation, partnership, business transactions and/or 
services with the Group submitted to the Nomination Committee for review and recommendation 
and subsequent review and deliberation by the Board, the Board concluded that all Independent 
Directors (i.e. Mr. Gow Kow, Mr. Goh Tyau Soon and Mr. Tey Ping Cheng) remain objective and 
independent during the deliberations and decision making of the Board and Board Committees 
they are in. The length of their service on the Board did not interfere with their exercise of 
independent judgment and they continue to act in the best interest of the Group. 
 
To be remained as Independent Non-Executive Director, all Independent Directors (i.e. Mr. Gow 
Kow, Mr. Goh Tyau Soon and Mr. Tey Ping Cheng) will be subjected to two-tier voting in the 
forthcoming 22nd Annual General Meeting. 
 
Please refer to Practice 5.3 of CG Report for further details. 
 

viii. Appointment of Directors and Senior Management and Re-Election of Directors  
 
Appointment of new Directors to the Board or Board Committee is recommended to the 
Nomination Committee for consideration and approved by the Board in accordance with the 
nomination and selection processes practiced by Nomination Committee and the Board. It is the 
practice of the Board that highly qualified candidates with sufficient and relevant knowledge, skills 
and competency are sought to serve as members of the Board and the Senior Management to 
effectively discharge its responsibilities and duties and contribute to the governance of the Group 
while at the same time gender and ethic balance are being upheld within the Board and the 
Senior Management shall such potential candidate is available.  
 
The process and criteria for the nomination and selection practiced by the Nomination Committee 
and the Board involves identification of potential candidates, evaluation of suitability of 
candidates based on agreed upon criteria for experience, knowledge, skill and boardroom 
diversity, meeting up with candidates and background check, final deliberation by Nomination 
Committee and recommendation to the Board. Nomination Committee may seek independent 
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities under nomination 
and selection of Directors. The Board endeavours to not solely rely on recommendations from 
existing board members, management or major shareholders for the nomination of new director 
and to expand the source to include recommendation by other professionals and open search. 
 
All Board members who are newly appointed are subject to retirement at the subsequent Annual 
General Meeting of the Company. All Directors (including the Group Managing Director) will retire 
at regular intervals by rotation at least once every three years and shall be eligible for re-election. 
 
The recommendations of re-appointment of retiring directors during forthcoming 22nd AGM was 
only made by the Nomination Committee to the Board and the Board for the shareholders of the 
Company upon satisfactory results of criteria, independence assessment (for Independent 
Directors) and performance evaluation of such Directors by the Nomination Committee. 
 
While it is the intention of the Nomination Committee and the Board to have independent sources 
for the identification of candidates for appointment of Directors, the existing members of the 
Board of the Company were recommended by the Board members and existing shareholders of 
the Company previously before MCCG came into effect. There was no appointment of new 
Director during the financial year ended 31 December 2021. 
 
Please refer to Practice 5.6 and 5.7 of CG Report for the details on the nomination, appointment 
and re-appointment process of the Directors. 
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ix. Performance Assessment and Evaluation of Board 

 
On annual basis, the Company Secretary circulates to each Director the relevant evaluations and 
assessments forms/checklists in relation to the evaluation of the Board, Board Committee, the 
Audit Committee, the contribution of each individual Director and independence assessment of 
Independent Directors with sufficient time for all the Directors to complete in advance of the 
meeting of the Nomination Committee and the Board in order for the Company Secretary to 
collate the assessments/evaluations results for the Nomination Committee to review and report 
to the Board. 
 
The following assessments and evaluations were performed during the financial year:  
 
1. The Board and Board Committees’ performance evaluation; 
2. Individual Directors (including Finance Director) performance appraisal pursuant to 

Paragraph 2.20A of MMLRs; 
3. Self-assessment of independence and self-declaration of interests in the Group, any 

corporation, partnership, business transactions and/or services with the Group, employment 
history and identity of person connected to him by Independent Directors; 

4. Audit Committee Evaluation and Audit Committee members pursuant to Paragraph 15.20 of 
the MMLRs. 

 
In addition, the performance of the Chairman of the Board was assessed by the Nomination 
Committee in March 2022 by using a prescribed form in relation to his discharge of duties and 
responsibilities as the Chairman of the Board of the Company. 
 
With the above evaluation/review processes, the Board, through the Nominating Committee, 
reviewed and assessed its required mix of skills, experience and other qualities, including core 
competencies which Directors should bring to the Board, and the size and composition of the 
Board to ensure that it has the appropriate mix of skills and competencies to lead the Group 
effectively. 
 
Based on the above evaluations conducted for financial year ended 31 December 2021, the 
Board, through reports by the Nomination Committee, were satisfied with the composition, 
performance and effectiveness of the Board, Board Committees and Directors (including Finance 
Director). 
 
Please refer to Practice 6.1 of CG Report for the details on the performance evaluation of the 
Board, Board Committee, the Audit Committee, the contribution of each individual Director 
(including Financial Director) and independence assessment of Independent Directors. 
 

x. Directors’ and Senior Management’s Remuneration 
 
The Board assumes the overall responsibility to establish and implement effective remuneration 
policy for the members of the Board and Senior Management in order to attract, retain and 
motivate Directors and Senior Management positively in pursue of the medium to long term 
objectives of the Group and are reflective of their experience and level of responsibilities.  
 
There is no formalised Directors and Senior Management Remuneration Framework established 
by the Board and published on the corporate website of the Company. The Board is committed 
to formalise the Directors and Senior Management Remuneration Framework in the next five (5) 
years to be in line with the risk strategy and corporate values of the Company to attract and retain 
suitable candidates in the Company. 
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x. Directors’ and Senior Management’s Remuneration (Cont’d) 

 
In brief, it is the practice of the Board that the Executive Directors’ and Senior Management 
members’ remuneration are determined by their performance, service, seniority, experience and 
scope of responsibilities while Non-Executive Directors shall be rewarded by director’s fee based 
on his knowledge, skills, competency, responsibilities assigned to such Director and his 
contributions to the Board and the Board Committees, subject to approval from shareholders (if 
applicable). 
 
The Remuneration Committee is responsible for recommending to the Board the remuneration 
packages of the members of the Board. The Board as a whole determines the remuneration of 
the Directors. Individual Directors are abstained from deliberation and approval of his own 
remuneration. Director who are shareholder and controlling shareholder with a nominee or 
connected Director on the Board will be abstained from voting at general meetings to approve 
the remunerations to be paid to such interested Director. 
 
Please refer to Practice 8.1 of CG Report for the breakdowns of remuneration of individual 
Directors (including fees, salary, bonus, benefits in-kind and other emoluments) on named basis 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2021. 
 
Disclosure on named basis of the Senior Management’s remuneration component in bands of 
RM50,000 is not adopted as the Board is of the opinion that the disclosure may jeopardize the 
personal security of the individual Senior Management and increase the risk of loss of key 
personnel if their remuneration packages are published publicly.  
 
Please refer to Practice 8.2 of CG Report for the explanation on the departure in relation to 
disclosure on named basis of the Senior Management’s remuneration component in bands of 
RM50,000. 
 

xi. Directors’ Training 
 

As per the Board Charter, the Board is assigned with the responsibility to ensure Directors and 
Senior Management to enhance their knowledge and enhance their skills through attending 
training programs as well as to assess the training needs of the Directors and ensure the 
Directors have access to continuing education program. 
 
Upon completion of annual assessment of the Board as a whole, Board committee and individual 
Directors, Nomination Committee Chairman will look into the skillset required for the role of each 
committee chairman and selects the most ideal Independent Director who is capable to meet the 
required expectations within the next five (5) years. The Board identified the training needs of the 
members of the Board through the formal evaluation of skills possessed by individual Directors 
(including members of Audit Committee) and reviewed by Nomination Committee to identify the 
knowledge and skills required by the Board to discharge its responsibilities. 
 
All Executive Directors have been with the Company for several years and are familiar with their 
duties and responsibilities as Directors. In addition, any newly appointed Directors will be given 
briefings and orientation by the Executive Directors and Senior Management on the business 
activities of the Group and its strategic directions, as well as their duties and responsibilities as 
Directors. 
 
All the Directors had completed the Mandatory Accreditation Program prescribed by Bursa 
Securities and they are mindful that they should receive appropriate continuous training and to 
attend seminars and briefings in order to broaden their perspective and to keep abreast with new 
developments for the furtherance of their duties. Specifically, the Audit Committee members 
should undertake continuous professional development to keep themselves abreast of relevant 
developments in accounting and auditing standards, practices and rules. 
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xi. Directors’ Training (Cont’d) 

 
During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, all Directors received regular briefings and 
updates on the Group’s business and operations and received updates on new regulations and 
statutory requirements and all members of the Board have attended training(s) that were 
organised by regulatory bodies or professional organisations. The trainings attended by individual 
Board members are shown in the following table: - 

 

Director Name of Conference/Talk/Seminar 
Attended or Participated 

Organiser 

Ku Hwa Seng EY Budget 2022 Webinar Ernst & Young 

Malaysia Code on Corporate Governance 
2021 

NeedsBridge Advisory 
Sdn Bhd 

Khoo Cheng Hai 
@ Ku Cheng Hai 

EY Budget 2022 Webinar Ernst & Young 

Malaysia Code on Corporate Governance 
2021 

NeedsBridge Advisory 
Sdn Bhd 

Ku Tien Sek EY Budget 2022 Webinar Ernst & Young 

Malaysia Code on Corporate Governance 
2021 

NeedsBridge Advisory 
Sdn Bhd 

Lee Chye Tee EY Budget 2022 Webinar Ernst & Young 

Webinar Series: Modern Meetings The Malaysian Institute 
of Chartered Secretaries 
and Administrators 
(“MAICSA”) 

SSM National Conference 2021 – Governing 
Under New Normal 

Suruhanjaya Syarikat 
Malaysia / Companies 
Commission of Malaysia 

Seminar on “MBRS For Preparers – Financial 
Statements (Fast Track)” 

Suruhanjaya Syarikat 
Malaysia / Companies 
Commission of Malaysia 

Seminar on “Companies Act 2016. Practical 
Guide for Company Directors” 

Suruhanjaya Syarikat 
Malaysia / Companies 
Commission of Malaysia 

Webinar Series : Everything About Dividend The Malaysian Institute 
of Chartered Secretaries 
and Administrators 
(“MAICSA”) 

Malaysia Code on Corporate Governance 
2021 

NeedsBridge Advisory 
Sdn Bhd 

Gow Kow MIA Webinar Series: Audit Quality 
Enhancement Programme for SMPs 

Malaysian Institute of 
Accountants (“MIA”) 

Managing Transfer Pricing in Times of 
Uncertainties 

Chartered Tax Institute 
of Malaysia (“CTIM”) 

National Tax Conference 2021 Chartered Tax Institute 
of Malaysia (“CTIM”) and 
Lembaga Hasil Dalam 
Negeri Malaysia 

Seminar Percukaian Kebangsaan 2021 Lembaga Hasil Dalam 
Negeri Malaysia  

EY Budget 2022 Webinar Ernst & Young 

Malaysia Code on Corporate Governance 
2021 

NeedsBridge Advisory 
Sdn Bhd 

Goh Tyau Soon EY Budget 2022 Webinar Ernst & Young 



ANNUAL REPORT 2021          I            52 
 

 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT (Cont’d) 
 
PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (Cont’d) 
 
1.1 Board leadership (Cont’d) 

 
xi.      Directors’ Training (Cont’d) 
 

Director Name of Conference/Talk/Seminar 
Attended or Participated 

Organiser 

Tey Ping Cheng New Public Rulings in 2020 and 2021  CPA Australia 

Transfer Pricing – Overview and Compliance 
Requirements  

CPA Australia 

Quarterly Tax Updates 2021 Chartered Tax Institute 
of Malaysia (“CTIM”) 

Current Tax Issues on Interest Expense Chartered Tax Institute 
of Malaysia (“CTIM”) 

Practical Guide for The Company Secretaries Malaysian Association of 
Company Secretaries 

Workshop 2021 on The Companies Act, 2016: 
Practical on The Reporting Framework for BO 
of Legal Persons 

Malaysian Association of 
Company Secretaries 

Effective Minutes Writing and Online Meeting Malaysian Association of 
Company Secretaries 

Virtual Forum on ‘Governance in SMEs – 
SMEs, A Key Strategic Business Partner in 
The Supply Chain’ 

Malaysian Institute of 
Corporate Governance 

EY Budget 2022 Webinar Ernst & Young 

Audit Committee Conference 2021 Malaysian Institute of 
Accountants and The 
Institute of Internal 
Auditors Malaysia 

Malaysia Code on Corporate Governance 
2021 

NeedsBridge Advisory 
Sdn Bhd 

 
 
xii. Board Committees 

 
In discharging its fiduciary duties, the Board has delegated specific duties to four (4) 
subcommittees (Audit, Remuneration, Nomination and Risk Management). The Committees 
have the authority to examine particular issues and report to the Board with their 
recommendation. The ultimate responsibility for the final decision on all matters lies with the 
entire Board. 
 
All Committees have written Terms of References and the Board receives reports on their 
proceedings and deliberations. The Chairman of the respective Committees is to brief the Board 
on the matters discussed at the Committee meetings and minutes of these meetings are 
circulated at the Board meetings. 
 

• Audit Committee 
 

The Terms of Reference, the number of meetings held, and activities carried out during the 
financial year and the attendance of each member can be found on page 35 of the Audit 
Committee Report. 
 
Please refer to Practice 9.1, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4 and 9.5 of CG Report on disclosure in relation Audit 
Committee. 
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xii. Board Committees (Cont’d) 

 

• Nomination Committee 
 
The Nomination Committee comprises exclusively of Independent Non-Executive Directors, 
in compliance with MMLR. The Nomination Committee is guided by written Terms of 
Reference duly approved by the Board defining its rights, authorities and responsibilities. 
The Nomination Committee is chaired by a Senior Independent Director.  
 
The Nomination Committee’s Terms of Reference is published in “Others” section of the 

“News” tab of the corporate website at www.ksl.my. 

 
The Nomination Committee members and the attendance records for meeting held during 
the financial year ended 31 December 2021 are as follows: - 
 

 
   Nomination Committee 

No. of  
Meetings Held 

 
Attendance 

   Goh Tyau Soon (Chairman) 1 1 

   Gow Kow 1 1 

   Tey Ping Cheng 1 1 

 
During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee conducted 
evaluations and assessments of the performance of the Board, the Board Committees, the 
Audit Committee (including members), the contribution by each individual Directors 
(including Finance Director) and independence assessment of Independent Directors based 
on the pre-determined processes and evaluation/review criteria. The Nomination Committee 
reported the results of all evaluations and assessments to the Board for review and 
deliberation to enable effective actions (including trainings to be attended) to be formulated 
and implemented for the proper and effective functioning of the Board and its Committees.  
 
Please refer to Practice 5.1, 5.2, 5.3, 5.5, 5.6, 5.7, 5.8 and 6.1 of CG Report for details on 
the Nomination Committee and its activities. 
 

• Remuneration Committee 
 
The Remuneration Committee was formed to assist the Board in determining, developing 
and recommending an appropriate remuneration policy and remuneration package for 
Directors and Senior Management so as to attract, retain and motivate the Directors and 
members of Senior Management. The Remuneration Committee is guided by formal Terms 
of Reference. Further disclosure on the Remuneration Committee (and its activities) and 
remuneration policy and procedure can be found in Practice 7.1 and 7.2 of CG Report. 
 
The Remuneration Committee comprises exclusively of Non-Executive Directors, majority 
of whom are independent. Their attendance records are as follows:- 
 

 
   Remuneration Committee 

No. of  
Meetings Held 

 
Attendance 

   Tey Ping Cheng (Chairman) 1 1 

   Gow Kow 1 1 

   Goh Tyau Soon 1 1 

 
The Remuneration Committee’s Terms of Reference is published in “Others” section of the 
“News” tab of the corporate website at www.ksl.my. 

http://www.ksl.my/
http://www.ksl.my/
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1.1 Board leadership (Cont’d) 

 
xii.     Board Committees (Cont’d) 

 
• Remuneration Committee (Cont’d) 

 
The Remuneration Committee held a meeting during the financial year ended 31 December 
2021 to review the draft service contract of Directors, proposed Directors’ fees for Non-
Executive Directors, proposed remuneration package of Executive Directors and with such 
recommended Directors’ fees and remuneration packages were reported to the Board for 
approval and/or recommendation to the shareholders for approval, if applicable. 
 

• Risk Management Committee 
 
The Risk Management Committee was formed on 26 February 2014 to provide oversight, 
direction and counsel to the Group risk management process and to assist the Board in 
identifying, mitigating and monitoring critical risk highlighted by business units. The Risk 
Management Committee comprises of the Group Managing Director and three (3) 
Independent Directors, in compliance with the Step-Up practice recommended by MCCG: 
 
 
Risk Management Committee 

No. of  
Meetings Held 

 
Attendance 

Tey Ping Cheng (Chairman) 1 1 
Khoo Cheng Hai @ Ku Cheng Hai 1 1 
Gow Kow 1 1 
Goh Tyau Soon 1 1 

 
The Risk Management Committee’s Terms of Reference is published in “Others” section of 
the “News” tab of the corporate website at www.ksl.my. 
 
During the financial year under review, Risk Management Committee met once to review 
and assess the risks associated with all proposed strategic transactions of the Group. 
 
Further disclosure on the risk management activities during the financial year can be found 
in Practice 10.1, 10.2 and 10.3 of CG Report and Statement on Risk Management and 
Internal Control of this Annual Report. 

 
xiii. Sustainability Oversight and Management  
 

In order to promote sustainability of the Group’s businesses, one of the business strategies 
adopted by the Board is to ensure the sustainability aspects of the businesses undertaken are 
well taken care of. The Group upheld the principle to maintain effective sustainability 
management continuously in order to contribute positively to the socio-economic development of 
the communities, to promote environmentally friendly business practices and to uphold good 
social practice. 
 
One of the key responsibilities of the Board of the Company is to establish sustainability policy 
and to review the management of material sustainability matters on frequent interval as well as 
to promote good sustainability practice throughout the Group. The sustainability management of 
the Group is governed by the Sustainability Policy established the Board. Formal governance 
structure, stakeholders’ engagement and process to identify, assess and formulation and 
monitoring of responses to material sustainability issues are prescribed in such policy with the 
assessment results and responses are fed into risk management process of the Group for 
continuous monitoring. As an important communication with stakeholders of the Group, 
Sustainability Report was published along with the Annual Report for the financial year under 
review. 
 
Please refer to Practice 4.1, 4.2, 4.3, 4.4 and 4.5 of the CG Report and the Sustainability 
Statement for the governance structure and process employed as well as the identification, 
assessment, management and reporting of sustainability matters during the financial year under 
review. 

 

http://www.ksl.my/
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PRINCIPLE B – EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Audit Committee is tasked with the oversight role on the effectiveness of Audit and Risk 
Management. The composition and Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee, the number of 
meetings held, attendance, and activities carried out during the financial year under review are available 
in the Audit Committee Report on pages 35 to 39 of this Annual Report and Practice 9.1, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4 
and 9.5 of CG Report. 
 
i. Relationship with Auditors 
 

The Group maintains a close and transparent relationship with its external auditors and internal 
audit function in seeking professional advice and ensuring compliance with the Group’s policies 
and procedures, approved accounting standards as well as the relevant regulations in Malaysia 
and the countries it is operating.  

 
The roles and responsibilities of the Audit Committee in relation to the external auditors and 
internal audit function are prescribed in the Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference. 

 
The engagement of the external auditors is governed by the engagement letter with terms of 
engagement (which includes, amongst others, the scope of coverage, the responsibilities of the 
external auditors, confidentiality, independence and the proposed fees) reviewed by the Audit 
Committee and its recommendation to the Board. Furthermore, the external auditors of the Group 
confirmed to the Audit Committee, prior to the commencement of the audit works and upon 
completion of the audit engagement, on their independence in relation to the audit works and 
their commitment to communicate to the Audit Committee on their independence status on 
ongoing manner. 
 
The Audit Committee met with the external auditors twice during the financial year under review 
to discuss their audit plans, audit findings, financial statements and other special matters that 
require the Audit Committee’s attention. In addition, the Audit Committee met privately with the 
external auditors once without the presence of the Executive Directors and the Management to 
encourage free flow of information and views and for the external auditors to freely express their 
opinion without undue pressure.  

 
The Audit Committee had also considered the nature of other non-audit services provided during 
the year by the external auditors and the quantum of the fees as tabulated in the table below and 
was satisfied that the provision of these services did not in any way compromise their 
independence.  

 
The audit and non-audit fees incurred for services rendered by the external auditors and their 
affiliated firms and companies to the Company and its subsidiaries for the financial year were as 
follows: 

  

 Company Group Description 

Audit Fees (RM) 20,000 218,000   

Non-Audit Fees 
(RM) 

3,000  11,000 Review of Statement on Risk 
Management and Internal Control and 
other non-audit services 

 
The oversight roles of the Audit Committee in relation to the internal audit function are detailed 
in Practice 11.1 and 11.2 of CG Report as well as the Audit Committee Report and Statement on 
Risk Management and Internal Control on pages 35 to 39 and pages 60 to 67 of this Annual 
Report, respectively. 
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ii. Risk Management 
 

The Board recognises the importance of Risk Management in pursuing its Company’s objective 
and has in place a formal Group Risk Management Policy. The details of the Group Risk 
Management Policy and risk management process are disclosed in Practice 10.1 and 10.2 of CG 
Report and the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control on pages 60 to 67 of this 
Annual Report. 

 
iii. Internal Control and Internal Audit Function 
 

The Board recognises the importance of having a sound internal control system for good 
corporate governance. As such, the internal audit function is established to perform the review 
of the adequacy and integrity of the internal control system in managing the principal risks of the 
Group. The internal audit function is outsourced to a professional firm to assist the Audit 
Committee in reviewing the state of internal control of the Group and to highlight areas for 
management and operational improvements.   

 
The state of internal control system and internal audit function of the Group are explained in 
greater detail in the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control on pages 60 to 67 of 
this Annual Report and Practice 11.1 and 11.2 of CG Report. 

 
iv. Uphold Integrity in Financial Reporting 
 

The Directors strive to ensure that a balanced, clear and meaningful assessment of the financial 
positions and prospects of the Group are made in all disclosures to shareholders, investors and 
the regulatory authorities. 

 
All financial statements, both annual financial statements to shareholders and the quarterly 
announcement of financial results, were reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the 
Board to ensure accuracy, adequacy and completeness of information and compliance with 
relevant accounting standard and regulations prior to its public release or submission to the 
regulatory authorities. 

 
The Board, through the review by the Audit Committee and in consultation with the Management 
and the external auditors, had presented fair and meaningful assessment of the Group’s financial 
performance and position. 

 
A summary of the works of the Audit Committee in the discharge of its functions and duties in 
relation to financial reporting during the financial year is set out in the Audit Committee Report 
on pages 35 to 39 of this Annual Report. 
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i. Corporate Disclosure and Stakeholders Communication 
 

The core communication channel with the stakeholders employed by the Company is via the 
announcements made in Bursa Securities and all announcements to be made in Bursa Securities 
are to be approved by the Board, prior to its release. The Board is observing all disclosure 
requirements as laid down by MMLR and Capital Markets and Services Act 2007 in order to have 
all material event and information to be disseminated publicly and transparently on timely basis 
to ensure fair and equitable access by all stakeholders without selective disclosure. 

 
The Board has adopted a practice for the disclosure of material information of the Group to 
ensure that communications to the relevant stakeholders are timely, factual, accurate, and 
complete. The Board is considering establishing a formal Corporate Disclosure Policy to manage 
stakeholder communication proactively and in compliance with MMLR and Capital Markets and 
Services Act 2007. 

 
The Annual Report is the main communication tool between the Company and its stakeholders. 
The Annual Report communicates comprehensive information on the financial results and 
activities undertaken by the Group. As a listed issuer, the contents and disclosure requirements 
of the Annual Report are governed by the MMLR. To further improve the accessibility of the 
Directors to the shareholders for their understanding of the businesses of the Group and their 
investment decision, it is the requirement of the Board Charter that all Directors are to attend 
general meetings. 
 
To facilitate the communication with the stakeholders and promote transparency and 
thoroughness in public dissemination of material information, the Company’s website 
incorporates an investor relations function by way of a dedicated “News” section which provides 
all relevant information on the Company and is accessible by the public via www.ksl.my. The 
“News” section enhances the investor relations function by including all announcements made 
by the Company, annual reports of the Company, press releases, relevant Board Charter and 
policies as well as Terms of Reference of relevant Board Committees, Constitution, Group Anti-
Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy and Whistle-Blowing Policy established and implemented by 
the Board for the public to access. 

 
Please refer to Practice 12.1 of CG Report on further disclosure of stakeholders’ communication. 

 
ii. Encourage Shareholders Participation at General Meetings 
 

The general meetings are the principal forum for dialogue with shareholders. The shareholders 
are given the opportunity and are encouraged to participate in general meetings of the Company.  
The Board Charter includes the requirement that notice for the Annual General Meeting to be 
given to shareholders at least 28 days prior to the meeting. Please refer to Practice 13.1 of the 
CG Report on further disclosure on the distribution and content of the Notice of general meeting. 

 
To encourage shareholders’ participation at general meetings, the Company allows a 
shareholder to appoint a proxy who may not be a member of the Company and no qualification 
of proxy is imposed. 

 
Adequate time is given during general meetings to encourage and allow the shareholders to seek 
clarification or ask questions on pertinent and relevant matters. All Directors and the Company 
Secretary physically attended the 21st Annual General Meeting, in compliance with the Guidance 
and FAQ on the Conduct of General Meetings for Listed Issuers issued by Securities Commission 
due to enforcement of movement control restriction by the Government of Malaysia. The external 
auditors were present virtually at the 21st Annual General Meeting to provide professional and 
independent clarification on issues and concerns raised by the shareholders during the meeting.  

 
In addition to the above, the Company also welcomes requests for meetings and interviews with 
professionals from the investment community and is always willing to meet up with institutional 
investors when required. 
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iii. Poll Voting 
 

Pursuant to the Paragraph 8.29A(1) of the Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities, the 
Company is required to ensure that any resolution set out in the notice of general meetings is to 
be voted by poll. All resolutions put forth for shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming 22nd 
Annual General Meeting to be held are to be voted by way of poll voting. 

 
iv. Leverage on Information Technology for General Meetings 

 
Amid COVID-19 pandemic and as part of the safety measure, the Group conducted its 21st 
Annual General Meeting in fully virtual platform on 27 May 2021. The virtual general meeting 
allows shareholders to exercise their right to participate, pose questions, and vote at the general 
meeting safely and remotely via Remote Participation and Voting Facilities (“RPV”), after 
successfully registered online (subject to verification and onboarding process of the RPV). The 
Annual General Meeting was broadcast via RPV facility with only essential individuals involved 
in conducting the meeting were physically present at the broadcast venue, with full adherence to 
the standard health and safety operating procedures and guidance.  
 
The poll administration and RPV facility service were provided by reputable professional firm in 
Malaysia with extensive experiences in poll administering services and comprehensive RPV 
facility in terms of functionality and performance. Administrative guide for attending 21st Annual 
General Meeting was issued and published in the RPV facility so that the shareholders were 
guided on steps required from the shareholders before the date of general meeting and during 
the meeting. The shareholders were able to participate and interact with the Board actively in the 
general meeting via live streaming of general meeting proceeding on their devices and 
submission of their question via query box of the RPV facility to the Board of the Company during 
the meeting. Sufficient time was allocated for the shareholders to pose questions to the Board of 
the Company via RPV facility and all pertinent questions relevant to the agendas of the general 
meeting were answered by the Board of the Company via the live streaming broadcasted before 
poll voting started. 
 
The minutes of the meeting of the 21st Annual General Meeting and the key matters discussed 
during such meeting were uploaded to the “Summary of Minutes of The Annual General Meeting” 

of the “Others” section of the “News” tab of the Company’s website at www.ksl.my within 30 days 

from the date of the general meeting held. 
 
The details of the features and activities of the virtual general meeting and RPV facility are 
disclosed in Practice 13.3, 13.4 and 13.5 of CG Report while the publication of minutes of the 
meeting is disclosed in Practice 13.6 of CG Report. 
 

  

http://www.ksl.my/


ANNUAL REPORT 2021          I            59 
 

 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW STATEMENT (Cont’d) 
 

Additional Compliance Statement 
   
• Material Contracts or Loan Involving the Interests of the Directors, Chief Executive or Major 

Shareholders 
 

Except recurrent related party transactions as disclose below, there was no other material contract 
or loan subsisting at the financial year ended 31 December 2021 or entered into since the end of 
financial year by the Company and its subsidiaries which involve the interests of Director, Chief 
Executive who is not a Director or major shareholders. 
 

• Recurrent Related Party Transactions 
 
The recurrent related party transactions entered into by the Group during the financial year under 
review which are disclosed in Note 28 to the Financial Statements on pages 176 to 177 of this 
Annual Report. 
 

• Employee Share Scheme 
 
The Company did not establish any employee share scheme and there was no subsisting employee 
share scheme during the financial year under review. 
 

• Utilisation of Proceeds 
 
The Company did not implement any fund-raising exercise during the financial year ended 31 
December 2021. 

 

Key Focus Areas and Future Priorities 

 
The Board’s medium term’s priorities in relation to the corporate governance are to formalise and/or 
update the Group’s corporate governance practices into relevant Board’s policies and procedures in 
line with the MCCG and MMLR, i.e. formal Board and Senior Management Remuneration Policy, Board 
Charter, Policy and Procedure on Nomination and Selection of Director and Senior Management, Policy 
and Procedure on Independence Assessment of Independent Directors, Policy and Procedure on 
Performance Appraisal of Board of Directors/Board Committees/Directors, Board and Senior 
Management Diversity Policy, Policy and Procedure to Assess The Suitability and Independence of 
External Auditors and Corporate Disclosure Policy. 
 
In the long term, the Board is to consider strengthening the independent elements within the Board by 
restructuring the Board’s composition so that the Independent Directors make up to at least half of the 
composition of the Board and to have women representation at the Board and Senior Management. 
 
The Board reviewed and approved this Statement on 31 March 2022. 
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INTRODUCTION  

Pursuant to paragraph 15.26(b) and Practice Note 9 of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Main Market 
Listing Requirements (“Listing Requirements”) in relation to the requirement to prepare statement on the 
state of internal control of the listed issuer as a group, and as guided by the Statement on Risk Management 
and Internal Control: Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers (“the Guidelines”) and the Malaysian Code 
on Corporate Governance 2021, the Board of Directors (“the Board”) of KSL Holdings Berhad (“KSL” or 
“the Company”) (collectively with its subsidiaries, “the Group”) is pleased to present the statement on the 
state of the internal controls of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2021. The scope of 
this Statement includes the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries.  

 

BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES  

The Board affirms its overall responsibility for maintaining a sound governance, risk management and 
internal control system and for reviewing their adequacy and effectiveness so as to achieve the Group’s 
business objectives and strategies, as well as to safeguard all its stakeholders’ interests and protecting the 
Group’s assets. The Board is to establish risk appetite of the Group based on the corporate objectives, 
strategies, external environment, business nature and corporate lifecycle. The Board is committed to the 
establishment and maintenance of an appropriate control environment that is embedded into the corporate 
culture, processes and strategies of the Group. The Board delegates the duty of identification, assessment 
and management of key business risks to the Risk and Sustainability Management Committee (“RSMC”) 
while the oversight roles are delegated to the Risk Management Committee (for risk management) and 
Audit Committee (for internal controls). The Risk Management Committee and Audit Committee are 
assigned with the duty, through its Terms of Reference approved by the Board, to provide assurance to 
the Board on the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management and internal control system of the Group 
respectively. Through the Risk Management Committee and Audit Committee, the Board is kept informed 
of all significant control issues brought to the attention of the Risk Management Committee and Audit 
Committee by the Management, the internal audit function and the external auditors.  

 

The system of internal control covers, inter-alia, control environment, risk assessment, control activities, 
information and communication as well as monitoring activities. However, in view of the limitations that are 
inherent in any system of internal control, the system of internal control is designed to manage, rather than 
to eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve the Group’s business objectives. Accordingly, the system of 
internal control can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement of 
losses and fraud.  

 

RISK MANAGEMENT  

 

The Board recognises risk management as an essential part of internal control system and acknowledges 

that a sound risk management system is critical in the pursuit of its strategic objectives. The Board 

maintains an on-going commitment for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks faced by the 

Group during the financial year under review. The Board maintains an on-going commitment for identifying, 

evaluating and managing significant risks faced by the Group systematically during the financial year under 

review. The Board had put in place a structured Group Risk Management Policy, as the governance 

structure and processes for the risk management on enterprise wide, in order to embed the risk 

management practice into all levels of the Group and to manage key business risks faced by the Group 

adequately and effectively as second line-of-defence. The duties for the identification, evaluation and 

management of the key business risks are delegated to RSMC, led by the Executive Chairman. The Group 

Risk Management Policy is established with reference to ISO 31000:2018 - Risk Management Guidelines.  
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The Group Risk Management Policy established lays down the objectives and processes defined by the 

Board with formalised governance structure of the risk management activities of the Group established as 

follows:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Clear roles and responsibilities of the Board, Risk Management Committee, RSMC, Risk Owners, Key 

Risk and Sustainability Officer and internal audit function are defined in the Group Risk Management 

Policy. In particular, the roles and responsibilities of the RSMC in relation to the risk management are as 

follows:- 

a. implement the risk management policy as approved by the Board; 

b. implement the risk management process which includes the identification of key risks and devising            

appropriate action plan(s) in cases where existing controls are ineffective, inadequate or non- 

existence and communicate methodology to the risk owners;  

c. ensure that risk strategies adopted are aligned with the Group’s organisational strategies (e.g.     

vision/mission, corporate strategies/ goals, etc.), risk management policy and process, as well as risk 

appetite/ tolerance;  

d. continuous review and update of the Key Risk Profiles of the Group due to changes in internal business 

processes, business strategies or external environment and determination of management action plan, 

if required;  

e. update the Board, through the Risk Management Committee, on changes to the Key Risk Profiles on 

periodical basis (at least on annual basis) or when appropriate (due to significant change to the internal 

business processes, business strategies or external environment) and the course of action to be taken 

by Management in managing the changes; and  

f. to perform risk identification and assessment in relation to major asset/ business acquisition or 

divestment or business diversification or business consolidation and to report the results of the 

assessment to the Board for strategic decision making.  

Apart from the duty to monitor the implementation and compliance with approved risk policies and 

processes of the Group and that significant risks identified are being responded to appropriately, the Risk 

Management Committee is entrusted the duty to review and assess the adequacy and effectiveness of 

the risk management strategies, governance structure and processes, risk monitoring and responses and 

to report to the Board on the results of its oversight roles and recommendations.  
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In addition, the Risk Owners (i.e. the Heads of Departments/Divisions) are designated as risk owners within 
their area of expertise and delegated with operational responsibilities with the following roles and 
responsibilities:  
 

a. manage the risks of the business processes under his/her control;  
b. continuously identify risks and evaluate existing controls. If controls deemed ineffective, inadequate 

or non-existent, to establish and implement controls to reduce the likelihood and/or impact;  
c. to report to RSMC of the emergence of new business risks or change in the existing business risks on 

a timely manner and assist RSMC with the development of the management action plans and 
implement these action plans;  

d. assist RSMC with the half-yearly update of the changes in the Key Risks Register, management action 
plans and the status of these plans; and  

e. ensure that staffs working under him/her understand the risk exposure of the relevant process under 
his / her duty and the importance of the related controls.  

 

Systematic risk management process is stipulated in the Policy, whereby each step of the risk 
identification, risk assessment, control identification, risk treatment and control activities are laid down for 
application by the RSMC and the Risk Owners. Risk identified includes sustainability matters identified 
during sustainability assessment process. Risk assessment, at gross and residual level, are guided by the 
likelihood rating and impact rating established by the Board based on the risk appetite of the Board which 
are stipulated in the Policy.  

 

Based on the risk management process, key risk registers were compiled by RSMC with the participation 
of the Risk Owners, with relevant key risks identified rated based on the agreed upon risk rating. The key 
risk registers are used for the identification of high residual risks which is above the risk appetite of the 
Group that require the Management and the Board’s immediate attention and risk treatment as well as for 
future risk monitoring. As an important risk monitoring mechanism, the RSMC is scheduled to review the 
key risk registers of key operating subsidiaries and assessment of emerging risks identified at strategic 
and operational level on annual basis or on more frequent basis if circumstances required and to report to 
the Risk Management Committee on the results of the review and assessment.  
 

During the financial year under review, the Risk Management Committee met once to review and assess 
the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management structure, risk policies, processes and relevant 
support system. Besides, the Risk Management Committee also reviewed and assessed the risks 
associated with all proposed strategic transactions of the Group and reported to the Board on the results 
of its review.  
 

At strategic level, business plans, business strategies and investment proposals with risks consideration 
are formulated by the Executive Chairman, Group Managing Director and/or Senior Management and 
presented to the Board for review and deliberation to ensure proposed plans and strategies are in line with 
the Group’s risk appetite approved by the Board. In addition, specific strategic and key operational risks 
are highlighted and deliberated by Audit Committee, Risk Management Committee and/or the Board during 
the review of the financial performance of the Group in the scheduled meetings.  

As first-line-of-defence, respective Risk Owners (i.e. the Heads of Departments/Divisions) are responsible 
for managing the risks under their responsibilities. Risk Owners are responsible for effective and efficient 
operational monitoring and management by way of maintaining effective internal controls and executing 
risk and control procedures on a day-to-day basis. Changes in key operational risks or emergence of new 
key business risks are identified through daily operational management and controls, as well as review 
of financial and operational reports by respective level of Management that are generated by internal 
management information system and supplemented by external data and information collected. 
Respective Risk Owners are responsible to assess the changes to the existing operational risks and 
emerging risks, and to formulate and implement effective controls to manage these risks. Critical and 
material risks are highlighted to the Senior Management or the RSMC for final decision on the formulation 
and implementation of effective internal controls and its reporting to Audit Committee, the Risk 
Management Committee and/or the Board.  
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The monitoring of the risk management by the Group is enhanced by the internal audits carried out by the 
outsourced internal audit function with specific audit objectives and business risks identified for each 
internal audit cycle based on the internal audit plan approved by the Audit Committee. 

The above process has been practiced by the Group for the financial year under review and up to the date 
of approval of this statement.  
 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM  

The key features of the Group’s internal control systems are made up of five core components, i.e. Control 
Environment, Risk Assessment, Control Activities, Information and Communication and Monitoring 
Activities with principles representing the fundamental concepts associated with each component 
explained as follows:- 

•  Board of Directors/Board Committees  

The role, functions, composition, operation and processes of the Board are guided by formal Board 
Charter whereby roles and responsibilities of the Board, the Chairman and the Group Managing 
Director are specified to preserve the independence of the Board from the Management. 

Board Committees (i.e. Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Risk 
Management Committee) are established to carry out duties and responsibilities delegated by the 
Board, governed by written terms of reference.  

Meetings of Board of Directors and respective Board Committees are carried out on scheduled basis 
to review the performance of the Group, from financial and operational perspective. Potential business 
plans and business strategies are proposed by the Senior Management for the Board’s review and 
approval, after taking into risk consideration and responses.  

 

• Integrity and Ethical Value 

The tone from the top on integrity and ethical value are enshrined in the formal Code of Conduct 
established and approved by the Board. This formal code forms the foundation of integrity and ethical 
value for the Group. Integrity and ethical value expected from the employees are incorporated in the 
Employees Handbook whereby the ethical behaviours and proper conduct expected from employees 
in performing their duties and responsibilities assigned are established and stated therein.  
 

To further enhance the ethical value throughout the Group, formal Conflict of Interest Framework and 
Related Party Transactions and Conflict of Interest Policy and Procedures were established and 
approved by the Board for implementation by the Management to reduce and manage the risk of 
conflict of interest within the Group.  

 

As the Group is committed in conducting all business dealings in a responsible, transparent and ethical 
manner with integrity, a formal Group Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy had been put in place by 
the Management to prevent the risk of bribery and conflict of interest within the Group.  

 

A formal Whistle-Blowing Policy is established and approved by the Board to provide a channel for 
employees and other stakeholders to raise genuine concerns about possible improprieties in matters 
of financial reporting, compliance and other malpractices at the earliest opportunity, without fear of 
reprisals. 

 

Code of Conduct is monitored via control activity monitoring mechanism implemented with non-
compliances detected in a timely manner and investigated with appropriate corrective action, including 
but not limited to disciplinary actions, taken to rectify non-compliance. 
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•  Organisation Structure, Accountability and Authorisation  

The Group has a well-defined organisation structure in place with clear lines of reporting and 

accountability. The Group is committed to employing suitably qualified employees so that the 

appropriate level of authorities and responsibilities can be delegated while accountability of 

performance and controls are assigned accordingly to competent staffs to ensure operational 

efficiency. The authorisation requirements for key processes are incorporated in the design of the 

relevant forms as well as stated in the Group’s policies and procedures.  

 

• Risk Assessment and Control Activities 

Risk assessment is performed by Risk Owners at scheduled interval or when there is change in internal 
and/or business context in accordance with the Group Risk Management Policy. Internal controls, as 
risk responses, are formulated and put in place to mitigate risks that are identified to a level acceptable 
by the Board. 

The Group has documented policies and procedures that are regularly reviewed and updated to ensure 
its relevance to support the Group’s business activities in achieving the Group’s business objectives.  

 

• Human Resource Policy 

Comprehensive guidelines on the human resource management and Employee Handbook are put in 
place to ensure the Group’s ability to operate in an effective and efficient manner by employing and 
retaining adequate competent employees possessing the necessary knowledge, skill and experience 
in order to carry out their duties and responsibilities assigned effectively and efficiently.  

 

Performance evaluation which forms the basis of increments and promotions are carried out for all 

levels of employees to identify performance gaps, for training needs identification and talent 

development. On-the-job trainings are provided to employees too to upgrade their knowledge and skill 

sets. 

 

•  Information and Communication  

At operational level, clear reporting lines are established across the Group and operation reports are 

prepared for dissemination to relevant personnel for effective communication of critical information 

throughout the Group and for timely decision making and execution in pursuit of the business 

objectives. Matters that require attention from the Board and the Senior Management are highlighted 

for review, deliberation and decision on a timely basis.  

 

The Group puts in place effective and efficient information and communication infrastructures and 

communication channels (i.e. computerized systems, secured intranet, electronic mail system and 

modern telecommunication) so that operation data and management information can be 

communicated timely and securely to dedicated personnel within the Group for decision making and 

for communication with relevant external stakeholders. Apart from that, relevant financial and 

management reports are generated for different levels of management and employee for their review 

and decision making. The management and board meetings are held for effective two-way 

communication of information at different level of Management and the Board.  

 

Communication of policies and procedures of the Group are conducted or disseminated via written 

form, information boards, electronic mail system and in-house trainings. 

  



ANNUAL REPORT 2021          I            65 
 

 
 

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL 
(Cont’d) 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM (Cont’d) 

 

• Monitoring and Review 

 

As Executive Directors are closely and directly involved in daily operations of the Group, regular 

reviews of operational data including development progress, marketing and financial data are 

performed by the Executive Directors. In addition, the quarterly financial performance review which 

contains key financial results and comparison against previous corresponding financial results are 

presented to the Board for their review.  

 

Periodical management meetings are held to discuss and review financial and operational 

performance of key divisions/departments of the Group. The monitoring of compliance with relevant 

laws and regulations are further enhanced by the review of specific areas of safety, health and 

environment carried out by independent consultants engaged by the Group and the enforcement 

bodies.  

Apart from the above, operational and financial performance report are also presented by the Senior 

Management during the Board’s meeting for the Board to assess the operational performance and 

future prospect of the Group as well as the external environment faced by the Group ahead.  

 

Furthermore, internal audits are carried out by the outsourced internal audit function (which reports 

directly to the Audit Committee) based on the key risk areas identified. The outsourced internal audit 

function assesses the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls in relation to specific 

governance, risk and control processes, and highlights potential risks and implications of its 

observations that may impact the Group as well as recommend improvements on the observations 

made to minimise the risks. The results of the internal audits carried out are reported to the Audit 

Committee.  

 

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION AND ACTIVITIES  

 

The review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control system 

is outsourced to an independent professional firm, namely, NeedsBridge Advisory Sdn Bhd, who, through 

the Audit Committee, provides the Board with much of the assurance it requires in respect of the adequacy 

and effectiveness of the Group’s system on the risk management and internal control.  

To uphold the professional firm’s independence and objectivity, the outsourced internal audit function is 

reporting directly to the Audit Committee. The outsourced internal audit function is not permitted to act on 

behalf of the Management, decide and implement management action plan, perform on-going internal 

control monitoring activities (except for follow up on progress of action plan implementation), authorise and 

execute transactions, prepare source documents on transactions, have custody of assets or act in any 

capacity equivalent to a member of the Management or the employee. 

The internal audits are carried out by outsourced internal audit function, in material aspects, in accordance 

with the International Professional Practices Framework (“IPPF”), i.e. the Mission, the Core Principles for 

the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the International Standards for the 

Professional Practice of Internal Auditing (hereinafter referred to as “Standards”) established by the 

Institute of Internal Auditors Global. Furthermore, the audit engagement of the outsourced internal audit 

function is also governed by the engagement letter and Internal Audit Charter approved by the Board during 

the financial year under review. 
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INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION AND ACTIVITIES (Cont’d) 

The engagement director, Mr. Pang Nam Ming, is a Certified Internal Auditor and Certification in Risk 
Management Assurance accredited by the Institute of Internal Auditors Global and a professional member 
of the Institute of Internal Auditors Malaysia. As a Certified Internal Auditor accredited by Institute of Internal 
Auditors, the engagement director is required to declare the compliance of the Standards to Institute of 
Internal Auditors during his renewal as Certified Internal Auditor. During the financial year under review, 
the resources allocated to the fieldworks of the internal audit by the outsourced internal audit function were 
one (1) manager, assisted by at least one (1) senior consultant and one (1) consultant per one (1) 
engagement with oversight performed by the director. 

Risk-based internal audit plan in respect of financial year ended 31 December 2021 was drafted by the 
outsourced internal audit function, after taking into consideration the existing and emerging key business 
risks identified in the key risk registers of the Group, the Senior Management’s opinion and previous internal 
audits performed. It was reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee, in consultation with Risk 
Management Committee, prior to execution. Each internal audit cycles within the internal audit plan are 
specific with regard to audit objective, key risks to be assessed and scopes of the internal control review.  

As third-line-of-defence, the internal control review procedures performed by the outsourced internal audit 
function are designed to understand, document and evaluate risks and related controls in order to 
determine the adequacy and effectiveness of governance, risk and control structures as well as control 
processes. The outsourced internal audit function shall provide recommendations formulated based on the 
root cause(s) of the internal audit observations. The internal audit procedures applied principally consist of 
process evaluations through interviews with relevant personnel involved in the process under review, 
review of the standard operating procedures and/or process flows provided as well as observations of the 
functioning of processes against the results of interviews and/or documented standard operating 
procedures and/or process flows. Thereafter, testing of controls are performed for the respective audit 
areas through the review of the samples selected based on sample sizes calculated in accordance with 
predetermined formulation, subject to the nature of testing and verification of the samples.  

During financial year ended 31 December 2021, the outsourced internal audit function has conducted 
reviews for the Management Information System (“MIS”) Management and the Treasury Management for 
the hotel and mall operations of KSL Properties Sdn Bhd based on the internal audit plan approved by the 
Audit Committee. 

Upon the completion of the individual internal audit fieldwork during the financial year, the internal audit 
reports were presented to the Audit Committee during its scheduled meetings. During the presentation, the 
internal audit findings, priority level, risk/potential implication, internal audit recommendations, 
management responses/ action plans, person-in-charge and the date of implementation were presented 
to and deliberated with the members of the Audit Committee. This enables the Audit Committee to form an 
opinion on the adequacy and/or effectiveness of the governance, risk and control of the business processes 
under review.  

Apart from the above, progress follow ups were performed by the outsourced internal audit function on the 
management action plans that were not implemented in the previous internal audit fieldworks, by way of 
verification via physical observation or through verification of sample provided by person-in-charge to 
substantiate the implementation of the management action plans. The updates on the implementation 
progress of the management action plans were presented via the Action Plan Progress Follow Up Report 
tabled at subsequent Audit Committee meeting for review and deliberation. 

In addition, during the scheduled Audit Committee meeting, the outsourced internal audit function reported 
its staff strength, qualification, experience as well as continuous professional education for the Audit 
Committee’s review.  

The cost incurred in maintaining the outsourced internal audit function for the financial year ended 31 
December 2021 was amounted to RM42,556.  
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ASSURANCE PROVIDED BY EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN AND FINANCE DIRECTOR  

 

In line with the Guidelines, the Executive Chairman, being highest ranking executive in the Company and 

the Finance Director, being the person primarily responsible for the management of the financial affairs of 

the Company, have provided assurance to the Board stating that the Group’s risk management and internal 

control system have operated adequately and effectively, in all material aspects, to meet the Group’s 

objectives during the financial year under review.  

 

OPINION AND CONCLUSION  

Based on the review of the risk management results and process, results of the internal audit activities as 

well as the monitoring and review mechanism stipulated above, coupled with the assurance provided by 

the Executive Chairman and the Finance Director, the Board is of the opinion that the risk management 

and internal control system are satisfactory and have not resulted in any material losses, contingencies or 

uncertainties that would require disclosure in the Group’s Annual Report. The Board continues to take 

pertinent measures to sustain and, where required, to improve the Group’s risk management and internal 

control system in meeting the Group’s strategic objectives.  

The Board is committed towards maintaining an adequate and effective governance, risk management and 

internal control system throughout the Group and, where necessary, put in place appropriate plans to 

further enhance the Group’s governance, risk management and internal control systems. Notwithstanding 

this, the Board will continue to evaluate and manage the significant business risks faced by the Group in 

order to achieve its business objectives in the current and challenging business environment. 

 

REVIEW OF STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL BY EXTERNAL 

AUDITORS  

 

Pursuant to paragraph 15.23 of the Listing Requirements, the External Auditors have reviewed this 

Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control. Their review was performed in accordance with Audit 

and Assurance Practice Guide (“AAPG”) 3: Guidance for Auditors on Engagements to Report on the 

Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control included in the Annual Report, issued by the Malaysia 

Institute of Accountants. AAPG 3 does not require the external auditors to consider whether the Statement 

on Risk Management and Internal Control covers all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on the 

adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control system, including the 

assessment and opinion by the Board of Directors and management thereon. Based on their review, 

nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe this Statement is not prepared, in all 

material aspects, in accordance with the disclosures required by paragraph 41 and 42 of the Statement on 

Risk Management and Internal Control: Guidelines for Directors of Public Listed Companies and Practices 

10.1 and 10.2 of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2021 to be set out, nor is factually 

incorrect. 
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT 
 
Introduction 
 
KSL Holdings Berhad (“KSL Group”) recognises the significance to embrace sustainable business 
practices in order to identify, plan and build the resilience towards managing challenging situations. 
Despite the swift changes in the business and operating landscapes, operating sustainably is an integral 
component of our business strategy that we continue to place emphasis on in striving to meet the 
expectations of our customers while reducing the impact on environment and producing a better life for 
present and future generations. We remain dedicated to creating sustainable value throughout the 
business value chain by enhancing the core business principles.  

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of KSL Group is devoted to continuously encourage good 
sustainability practices, update the sustainability progress and engage openly with the Company and 
its subsidiaries’ (“the Group”) stakeholders through transparent sustainability reporting. The Group 
acknowledges that stakeholder engagement plays an essential role to ensure the businesses pursued 
by the Group is sustainable in the long term. Through this Sustainability Statement, the Group provides 
the stakeholders a better insight on the Group’s approach to create sustainable long-term value for 
stakeholders as well as the progress in fulfilling these commitments. Continuous efforts are put in in 
managing and formulating business operating strategies and corporate culture that are aligned with the 
Sustainable Development Goals (“SDGs”) developed by the United Nations. 

The Board acknowledges that economic value is generated by maximising profits and shareholders’ 
value while holding on a greater responsibility as a global citizen to create social value. Hence, apart 
from the financial performances of the businesses the Group is operating in, the Board also recognises 
the importance of upholding great standards of business conducts in respect of governance, economic, 
environment and social aspects, which are vital for the Group to endure in this competitive, challenging 
and evolving business environment, in which to create value for a wide array of stakeholders on long 
term sustainable manner. It is, therefore, the underlying value of the Group to achieve optimum 
equilibrium between short-term financial performance, as well as its long-term business sustainability 
and value creation, to meet corporate objectives and stakeholders’ expectations. 

As a responsible corporate citizen, we are mindful of our role in securing a sustainable future for us and 
the communities we interact with in an era when climate change, water scarcity and public health are 
ever-increasing global issues. The Board has devoted towards embracing good sustainability practices, 
by continuously integrated such practices into its working environment, business processes and 
strategy making processes in developing sustainable businesses that bring positive impact to the 
economy, environment and greater community. As such, the Group is committed to be accountable and 
transparent in the sustainability performance. 

The unprecedented global COVID-19 pandemic that has been on-going for nearly two years has 
brought about substantial disruptions affecting almost all sectors of economies across the globe with 
various stringent lockdown measures implemented by governments worldwide to contain the spread of 
the pandemic. During this challenging period with uncertainties, the Group has faced disruptive changes 
with significant impact on its business operations and performance, especially the property investment 
sector that covers the hotel and resorts as well as the shopping mall, as a result of business disruptions 
and room booking cancellations from customers following the travel restrictions imposed and closing of 
international borders to curb the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic.  

Despite the challenging business environment, we strive to conduct the business operations according 
to pragmatic principles and sustainable practices with a long-term sustainability strategy that integrates 
economic, governance, environmental and social considerations. The Group remained steadfast and 
strives to adapt, innovate and take the necessary measures to steer through this incredibly challenging 
time in order to ensure continuous and improved value creation for all stakeholders.  

The Board of KSL Group is pleased to present the Group’s Sustainability Statement for the financial 
year ended 31 December 2021. The Sustainability Statement demonstrates our commitment towards 
sustainability by developing and implementing key sustainability matters that are pertinent to the 
Group’s nature and business operations, with the ultimate objective of bringing more values to its 
businesses, society and stakeholders. This Sustainability Statement is prepared pursuant to paragraph 
6.1, 6.2 and 6.3 of Practice Note 9 of the Main Market Listing Requirements (“MMLR”) of Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”). In particular, the management of material sustainability matters 
is disclosed, in all material aspects, in accordance with Part III of Practice Note 9 of MMLR and 
Sustainability Reporting Guide issued by Bursa Securities (‘the Guide”) on the content of the 
Sustainability Statement. 
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Scope of the Statement 
 
This Sustainability Statement covers all business operations of the Group, i.e. property development 
and property investment, for the only geographical location the Group is operating in, namely, Malaysia. 
The contents of this Statement primarily include activities carried out during the financial year ended 31 
December 2021 and up to the date of this Statement. This Statement covers the Group’s economic, 
environmental and social management and performance across all business operations in Malaysia. 
The Board have adhered to the sustainability requirements in which the Statement defines stakeholder 
engagement, materiality assessment, sustainability achievement, and the complete information on 
significant economic, environmental and social impact for assessment of the Group’s management and 
performance. 

The disclosure of the corporate governance practices and compliance with relevant provisions and 
requirements per MMLR and Malaysia Code on Corporate Governance 2021 are made in the Corporate 
Governance Report and Corporate Governance Overview Statement in the Annual Report. 

 

Values and Aspirations 
 
As a leading property player with the aim of becoming one of the top ten property developers in Malaysia 
with unsurpassed values and benefits given to customers and investors, KSL Group believes in being 
a lifestyle and boutique-centric developer that provides a selection of home designs set within a relaxed 
and tranquil environment, elements of an ideal lifestyle, with nearby conveniences, facilities, amenities 
and accessibility. KSL Group make use of its innovative and pristine design which embraces quality 
and enhanced living standards in progressing towards creating the fast-expanding business of a luxury 
lifestyle urban living. With benchmarks in building quality homes, residential addresses are distinctly set 
within progressive environments while developing communities that are both engaging and holistic. We 
have the following aspirations in meeting the current market trends, needs and expectations. 
 

• Creativity, innovation, lifestyle and functionality are the main elements in providing a niche and 
exclusive development to its buyers. 

• Sharing of common values in creating a quality lifestyle and eco-friendly living environment for its 
residents. 

• Creation of a holistic community which spurs socioeconomic growth as a whole. 

• Earning loyalty from customers by providing incessant value for money with good product quality 
and eminent services in the industry whilst delivering innovative and excellent products that provide 
customer satisfaction. 

• Developing an exhilarating concept that exhibits style, elegance and distinct design, creating an 
invigorating environment, leveraging on the best technological, innovative and creative methods at 
hand. 

• Cultivating better investor relations with stakeholders in sustaining business growth, accountability 
and profitability in providing continuous growth and development. 

• Creating a good and cohesive working environment between employers and employees to provide 
the best results and successful outcome. 
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Sustainability Principles 
 
As the highest governance body within the Group, the Board assume the ultimate accountability for the 
integration of sustainability in the Group, including sustainability-related strategy and performance. The 
Group is committed to promoting sustainability and continuously integrates it into the working 
environment, business processes and strategy making process. The Group remains committed to 
meeting various stakeholders’ interests while achieving the strategic objectives by upholding the 
accountability, integrity and transparency in its sustainability performance with reference to the following 
principles instilled by the Board: 

• To observe and comply with all relevant legislation, regulations, recommended trade practice and 
code of practice applicable and relevant to the Group; 

• To consider sustainability matters and integrate these considerations into the Group’s business 
operations and when making and implementing business strategies; 

• To manage sustainability matters in structured and systematic manner, whereby sustainability 
matters are embedded throughout the Group and to be documented, continuously assessed and 
managed with reporting to the Board on scheduled interval or as and when the materiality of the 
sustainability matters requires such reporting; 

• To continuously promote, train and communicate with all employees, suppliers, business partners 
and other relevant stakeholders to ensure that they are aware of, and are committed to, 
implementing and measuring sustainability activities as part of the Group’s or their strategy, taking 
into consideration economic, environment, social and governance aspects;  

• To continuously engage and communicate with all relevant stakeholders for the identification, 
assessment and management of material sustainable issues; and 

• To strive to improve the Group’s sustainability performance over times. 

 

Sustainability Policy 
 
We remain committed to the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development adopted by the United Nation. 
The Sustainability Policy of KSL Group established by the Board is guided by the 17 Sustainable 
Development Goals (“SDGs”), otherwise known as the Global Goals, to address a range of social and 
economic development issues, such as poverty, hunger, health, education, climate change, gender 
equality, water, sanitation, energy, environment and social justice.  

The 17 SDGs are integrated, in which they recognise that action in one area will affect outcomes in 
others, and that development must balance social, economic and environmental sustainability. Such 
SDGs are a universal call for action to create a world that is comprehensively sustainable by 2030 to 
end poverty, improve health and education, reduce inequality and injustice, as well as address the 
urgency of climate change. Albeit the global COVID-19 pandemic has unleashed an unprecedented 
crisis in health, economic and social which is threatening lives and livelihoods as well as making the 
achievement of the SDGs even more challenging, the Group in still dedicated to driving accountable 
and sustainable business practices throughout the organisation by striking a balance between 
managing the financial performance and contributing to the social and environmental impacts in 
ensuring high standards of governance practiced across the Group’s business operations. 
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Sustainability Policy (Cont’d) 

 
➢ Sustainable Economic Policy 

• To ensure economic interest of all relevant stakeholders are preserved in all significant 
business operations and strategic business decisions. 

• To promote the economic development of the communities where the significant business 
operations are carried out or when making business strategy decision or when implementing 
business strategies. 

➢ Sustainable Environment Policy 

• To comply with all guidelines and regulations relating to the preservation of environmental 
aspects in relevant jurisdiction where the Group is operating. 

• Comply with good environment practice in the business conducts and implement appropriate 
measures to reduce the impact on the environmental aspect arising from activities of the 
Group. 

• To avoid contamination and improve the quality of environmental management. 

• To reduce carbon footprint through product designs that is energy-efficient, optimise 
manufacturing efficiency and through investment in energy-efficient production machinery. 

• To conserve the consumption of water, electricity and other natural resources in the business 
operations. 

• To implement “Reuse, Reduce and Recycle” policy across the Group and along the internal 
value chain. 

• To ensure all materials, where possible, are sourced from sustainable, renewable or recycled 
means and assess and monitor external value chain partners to make sure the Group’s 
environment objectives and procedures are compiled. 

• To protect, and proactively manage our impact on biodiversity in the ecosystems over which 
the Group is operating. 
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➢ Sustainable Social Policy 

• To ensure that all stakeholders should receive fair treatment and do not engage in or support 
discrimination based on race, nationality, religion, disability, gender, age, sexual orientation, 
union membership and political body. 

• To ensure that the Group’s and the suppliers’/subcontractors’ human resources are with the 
right to not be discriminated against, not to be enslaved, to be treated with dignity, to have the 
right to rest and leisure, including reasonable limitation of working hours and periodic holidays 
with pay and the right to freedom of opinion and expression. 

• To ensure that the Group, the suppliers/subcontractor to not allow an individual under the age 
of 18 to be employed at the workplaces of the Group accordance with applicable laws and 
regulations. 

• To provide a safe and healthy workplace for all of its human resources, customers, suppliers, 
subcontractors, business partners and the public at large and all the relevant stakeholders 
have the right to work in a safe and healthy environment, consistent with the Occupational 
Safety and Health Act and any other applicable legislation. 

• To prohibit agreements or other coordinated activities with competitors, customers or 
suppliers that limit competition, abuse of a dominant position, monopolisation or attempted 
monopolisation and concentrations between companies that may substantially lessen 
competition. 

• To conduct its business in an open, honest and ethical manner with conflict-of-interest 
situation properly addressed and to adopt a zero-tolerance approach to all forms of bribery 
and corruption. To ensure that all level of employees, suppliers/subcontractors, customers, 
business partners and other stakeholders do not engage in corrupt practice, take unfair 
advantage of any other person, including without limitation, participating   in   illegal   practices 
(for example, misleading and deceptive conduct, misrepresentation and undue influence, as 
well as conduct which are legal but unethical). 

• To promote development of the local communities through direct support of local communities, 
charitable donations and support of non-profit agencies in the communities in which the Group 
is operating. To nurture long term relationship with the local communities and to provide safe 
and healthier environment for the local communities. 

• To preserve and respect local heritage and customs of the local communities. 

• To work with the local authorities and government bodies for the development of conducive 
environment for stakeholders. 

• To uphold the quality, safety and health of our products and services with expected standard 
of legitimacy and integrity. 

• To uphold the highest standard in the preserving confidentiality and privacy of information 
collected by us in the course of the Group’s business and to ensure employees, customers 
and business partners receives such information to observe the confidentiality and privacy of 
such information. 
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Governance Structure and Process 
 
The Board affirms its overall responsibility for integration of the recommended sustainable economic, 
environment and social practices throughout the Group to ensure business strategies of the Group are 
developed with regard to the sustainability consideration, and to ensure sustainability performance are 
monitored from time to time. The governance structure in relation to the Group’s sustainability 
management is guided by the Guide and Toolkit: Governance issued by Bursa Securities with 
necessary adaption based on the nature and scale of the businesses of the Group.  

Good governance plays a key role for the Group to operate in an accountable and sustainable manner. 
The Group’s commitment towards sustainable business practices is imputed throughout all levels of its 
organisation. At the leadership level, the Board, Executive Directors and Management acknowledge 
the significance of ensuring good sustainable economic, environment and social practices are 
comprehended and implemented by all levels of organisation. 

To ensure such commitment of good sustainable economic, environment and social practices are 
embedded throughout the Group, the Board put in place formal structure to ensure accountability, 
oversight and review in the identification, management and reporting of sustainability matters and 
performance. Such formal structure is imperative to ensure that execution of the sustainability initiatives 
at all levels of organisation and business units are aligned with the Board’s sustainability and business 
strategies with reporting at predetermined interval. It enables the Group to be able to act on timely with 
the sustainability risks and opportunities applicable to the Group. The responsibilities for the 
identification, management and reporting of sustainability matters and performance are delegated to 
the Risk and Sustainability Management Committee. 

The Board has formalised the sustainability principles, policies and processes envisaged through the 
establishment of Sustainability Policy. Furthermore, formal governance structure, based on the existing 
geographical scope, scale and nature of the business the Group is pursuing, i.e. property development 
and property investment in Malaysia, for the identification, management and reporting of sustainability 
matters and performance of the Group, is established by the Board in the following manner: 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The governance structure clearly defines the roles and responsibilities expected from the Board, the 
Audit Committee, Risk and Sustainability Management Committee, Heads of Departments/Divisions, 
Key Risk and Sustainability Officer and Assurance Unit. In the nutshell, the Board is ultimately 
accountable for sustainability management and performance within the Group while the Audit 
Committee is tasked with the responsibilities to oversee the sustainability management and 
performance of the Group for reporting to the Board.   
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Governance Structure and Process (Cont’d) 
 
In addition, the Audit Committee is responsible to review adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s 
sustainability governance structure, the process and results of identification, assessment, management 
and monitoring of sustainability matters as well as to determine the adequacy of the response and the 
current standing of the material sustainability matters and reporting the review results and 
recommendations to the Board for decision. The Audit Committee is required to oversee the overall 
management of stakeholders too to ensure the concerns and needs of all relevant stakeholders are 
taken into consideration throughout the development of the Group’s business strategies and operations. 

The Risk and Sustainability Management Committee, chaired by the Executive Chairman of the 
Company, is delegated with the following duties: 

a. Implement the sustainability strategy and management policy as approved by the Board; 

b. Lead and implement the process of sustainability matters identification, assessment and 
management and devising appropriate action plan in cases where sustainability issues are not 
adequately or effectively addressed and communicate proposed action plans to the Heads of 
Departments/Divisions; 

c. To conduct periodic review of all sustainability matters of the Group (at least on an annual basis) 
and determine the adequacy of the response and the current standing of the sustainability matters 
and to report the review results (including material sustainability matters) and recommendations to 
the Audit Committee; 

d. To manage stakeholder engagement for input for assessment and communication of results of 
review and response; 

e. To implement the material sustainability matters’ indicator and the target and performance 
monitoring thereof and the preparation of sustainability disclosures as required by laws and/or 
rules, and to report to the Audit Committee for review;  

f. To oversee the Heads of Departments/Divisions in the implementation of systems of sustainability 
management; 

g. To update the Audit Committee on changes to the material sustainability matters on periodical 
basis (at least on annual basis) respectively or when appropriate (due to change in external 
environment or internally) and the course of action to be taken by management in managing the 
changes; and 

h. To ensure relevant sustainability trainings are provided for appropriate level of employees to 
cultivate a positive attitude and promote correct approach toward sustainability management. 

As for the Heads of Departments/Divisions, their primary responsibilities are to manage sustainability 
matters of the business processes under his/her control and to assist the Risk and Sustainability 
Management Committee with the implementation of the process of sustainability matters identification, 
assessment, management and monitoring of all sustainability matters. 

On the other hand, the Assurance Unit is responsible to review the Group’s governance structure and 
process of sustainability management, as well as the Group’s system of sustainability management 
implemented by the Risk and Sustainability Management Committee and Heads of 
Departments/Divisions in order to determine its adequacy and effectiveness for subsequent reporting 
to the Audit Committee. Besides, the Assurance Unit is required to review the compliance of the controls 
implemented by the Risk and Sustainability Management Committee and Heads of 
Departments/Divisions in managing sustainability matters, as well as the accuracy and reliability of 
sustainability disclosures as required by laws and/or rules for reporting to Audit Committee. 

The sustainability matters management process is established by the Board in compliance with the 
Guide and Toolkit: Materiality Assessment issued by Bursa Securities with necessary adaption based 
on the nature and scale of the businesses of the Group, taking into consideration the business strategies 
promoted by the Board. 
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Stakeholder Engagement 
 
The Board recognises and admits that the contribution and support of the internal and external 
stakeholders are utmost important for realisation of the Group’s missions and long-term business 
sustainability and excellence. It is vital for us to maintain a good degree of communication, 
understanding and relationship with stakeholders through multiple communication platforms, 
continuous dialogue and sharing of information with the stakeholders in order to ensure the success 
and long-term growth of our business. The Group recognises and values each of the employees, 
customers, as well as business partners, and believes by understanding their interests and needs, it 
fosters lasting and mutually beneficial relationships that enhances the morale, reputation and business 
performances while being able to deliver sustainable values to the stakeholders. 
 
It is on this basis that the Board is pursuing the sustainable strategy of continuous engagement with 
internal and external stakeholders who is dependent on and/or influenced by the activities undertaken 
by the Group. Meanwhile, the Board is also dedicated to ensuring that such engagements are to include 
all internal and external stakeholders across the value chain and to respond proactively, via formal and 
informal channels, to the concerns and views of respective stakeholder groups. By regularly and actively 
engaging with all stakeholders, the Board is able to identify risks and opportunities in the way the 
businesses of the Group are carried out. During such engagement, the Group is able to validate the 
sustainable matters identified by the Management of the Group.  

During the financial year under review with regard to the sustainability assessment, management and 
monitoring process, the Risk and Sustainability Management Committee relied on the informal channels 
(such as, meetings, face-to-face communication) employed by the Heads of Departments/Divisions and 
Executive Directors, supported by formal channels of communication (such as, employees’ 
performance appraisal) to engage with the stakeholders. In addition, during the financial year under 
review and up to the date of this Statement, there is no collective agreement entered between the Group 
and any trade unions in Malaysia that remains effective, and the Group does not intend to enter any 
collective agreements with any trade unions in Malaysia. 

The Board acknowledges that the stakeholder engagement engaged by the Risk and Sustainability 
Management Committee can be further enhanced by employing preferred level of engagement per 
stakeholder’s profile at the preferred frequency as determined by the Board so that key topics and 
concerns of respective stakeholder groups are communicated timely and reliably to the correct 
governance body of the Group to respond to such topics and concerns raised. 

The Group’s stakeholder engagement process is guided by the Guide and Toolkit: Stakeholder 
Engagement issued by Bursa Securities with necessary adaption based on the nature and scale of the 
businesses of the Group. 
 
The Board has determined that, through stakeholder mapping and profiling exercise conducted by the 
Risk and Sustainability Management Committee and reported to them, the following stakeholders are 
dependent on and have influence over the Group in the context of the businesses carried out by the 
Group and industries that the Group is participating in: 

 

 
  



ANNUAL REPORT 2021          I            76 
 

 
 

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (Cont’d) 

Stakeholder Engagement (Cont’d) 
 

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT 

STAKEHOLDER 
GROUP 

ENGAGEMENT 
OBJECTIVE(S) 

PREFERRED ENGAGEMENT 
METHOD(S) 

FREQUENCY 
OF 

ENGAGEMENT 

Board of 
Directors 
 

• To ensure business 
strategy take into 
consideration of 
sustainable practices 

• Committee meetings 

• Board of Directors meeting 
 

• Quarterly 

Suppliers 
 

• To ensure 
sustainable supply of 
quality services and 
materials 

• Supplier's evaluation and 
appraisal 

• Meetings 

• Conflict of Interest Policy 

• Code of Conduct 

• Ongoing 

Customers • To improve 
customer's 
satisfaction 

• Customer's Feedback Form 

• Defect Form 

• Face-to-face meetings 

• Meetings 

• Electronic mail system 

• Social media and printed 
medium 

• Ongoing 

Financial 
Institutions 
 

• To ensure 
continuous financial 
support from 
financial institutions 

• Annual report  

• Press release 

• Public announcements 

• Face-to-face meetings 

• Annually 

• Ongoing 

Government and 
Regulators 

• To ensure full 
compliance with 
relevant laws and 
regulations 

• Official submission 

• Official letter 

• Public dialogue involving 
government officials 

• Public announcements 

• Telephone conversation 

• Face-to-face meetings 

• Electronic mail system 

• Ongoing 

Media • To minimise 
instances of 
inaccurate reporting 

• Press conference/ release 

• Face-to-face interview/ visit 

• Ongoing 

Local Society • To improve the 
acceptance of local 
communities of the 
business 

• Corporate social 
responsibility programme 

• Face-to-face meetings 

• Press release 

• Ongoing 

Industry Peers • To ensure business 
practice is in line 
with the policy 

• Participation in trade 
associations 

• Newsletters and meetings 

• Ongoing 
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (Cont’d) 

Stakeholder Engagement (Cont’d) 
 

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT 

STAKEHOLDER 
GROUP 

ENGAGEMENT 
OBJECTIVE(S) 

PREFERRED ENGAGEMENT 
METHOD(S) 

FREQUENCY 
OF 

ENGAGEMENT 

Investor 
 

• To ensure 
continuous financial 
support from 
investors 

• Annual report 

• Annual general meeting 

• Shareholders' dialogue 

• Press release and public 
announcements 

• Annually 

• Quarterly 

• Ongoing 

Employees 
 

• To retain competent 
employees 

• Employees' survey 

• Employees' dialogue 

• Annual appraisal 

• Memorandum 

• Electronic mail system 

• Annually 

• Ongoing 

 
 

PROPERTY INVESTMENT 

STAKEHOLDER 
GROUP 

ENGAGEMENT 
OBJECTIVE(S) 

PREFERRED ENGAGEMENT 
METHOD(S) 

FREQUENCY 
OF 

ENGAGEMENT 

Investor 
 

• To ensure 
continuous financial 
support from 
investors 

• Annual report 

• Annual general meeting 

• Shareholders' dialogue 

• Press release and public 
announcements 

• Annually 

• Quarterly 

• Ongoing 

Employees • To retain competent 
employees and 
contractors 

• Employees' survey 

• Employees' dialogue 

• Annual appraisal 

• Memorandum 

• Electronic mail system 

• Annually 

• Ongoing 

Board of 
Directors 
 

• To align business 
strategy with 
sustainable practices 

• Committee meetings 

• Board of Directors meeting 

• Quarterly 

Suppliers • To ensure 
sustainable supply of 
quality services and 
materials 

• Supplier's evaluation and 
appraisal 

• Meetings 

• Conflict of Interest Policy 

• Code of Conduct 

• Ongoing 

Customers 
 

• To improve 
customer's 
satisfaction 

• Customer's Feedback Form 

• Face-to-face meetings 

• Electronic mail system 

• Social media and printed 
medium 

• Ongoing 
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (Cont’d) 

Stakeholder Engagement (Cont’d) 
 

PROPERTY INVESTMENT 

STAKEHOLDER 
GROUP 

ENGAGEMENT 
OBJECTIVE(S) 

PREFERRED ENGAGEMENT 
METHOD(S) 

FREQUENCY 
OF 

ENGAGEMENT 

Financial 
Institutions 
 

• To ensure 
continuous financial 
support from 
financial institutions 

• Annual report  

• Press release 

• Public announcements 

• Face-to-face meetings 

• Annually 

• Ongoing 

Government and 
Regulators 

• To ensure full 
compliance with 
relevant laws and 
regulations 

• Official submission 

• Official letter 

• Public dialogue involving 
government officials 

• Public announcements 

• Telephone conversation 

• Face-to-face meetings 

• Electronic mail system 

• Ongoing 

Media • To minimise 
instances of 
inaccurate reporting 

• Press conference/ release 

• Face-to-face interview/ visit 

• Ongoing 

Local Society • To improve the 
acceptance of local 
communities of the 
business 

• Corporate social 
responsibility programme 

• Face-to-face meetings 

• Press release 

• Ongoing 

Industry Peers 
 

• To ensure business 
practice is in line with 
the policy 

• Participation in trade 
associations 

• Newsletters and meetings 

• Ongoing 

 

Subsequent to the stakeholder groups identification with respective engagement methods proposed, 
stakeholders prioritisation exercise was conducted for both property development segment and 
property investment segment to rank respective stakeholder groups’ influence over and/or dependence 
on the Group based on influence over and dependence rating criteria and scale approved by the Board. 
The results of the stakeholders prioritisation exercise for both property development segment and 
property investment segment are tabulated in the following Stakeholder Prioritisation Matrix with 
recommended level of engagement as follows: 
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (Cont’d) 

Stakeholder Engagement (Cont’d) 
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (Cont’d) 

Sustainability Management Activity 
 
The Group had performed the following activities in relation to the identification, management and 
reporting of sustainability matters and performance: 

• Identification of the internal and external stakeholders for property development segment and 
property investment segment that have influence over and dependence on the Group through 
Stakeholder’s Mapping and with individual Stakeholder Profile established for each stakeholder 
identified. 

• Internal and external stakeholders for both property development segment and property 
investment segment identified by the Risk and Sustainability Management Committee were 
assessed and prioritised for its degree of influence over and dependence on the Group based on 
the agreed upon criteria and rating scale approved by the Board via the Stakeholder Prioritisation 
exercise.  

• The Risk and Sustainability Management Committee performed identification of the sustainability 
matters through internal sources and informal stakeholders’ engagement through direct 
communication with relevant internal and external stakeholders by Heads of 
Departments/Divisions and Executive Directors. The sustainability matters identified are 
categorised by the Risk and Sustainable Management Committee accordingly into the relevant 
sustainable category for assessment purposes by way of Sustainability Matters Listing. 

• The Risk and Sustainability Management Committee performed the internal materiality 
assessment by using predetermined criteria and rating scale approved by the Board in order to 
prioritise the sustainability matters for assessment by internal and external stakeholders and to 
determine the significance of the sustainability matters from the Group perspective. 

• Subsequently, the degree of significance of the sustainable matters to influence on the assessment 
and decision by internal and external stakeholders were performed by the Risk and Sustainability 
Management Committee by using informal stakeholders’ engagement through direct 
communication with relevant internal and external stakeholders by Heads of 
Departments/Divisions and Executive Directors. 

• The results of the Stakeholder Prioritisation exercise, internal materiality assessment and degree 
of significance of the sustainable matters to influence on the assessment and decision by internal 
and external stakeholder were used to prioritise sustainability matters and identification of material 
sustainable matters by the Risk and Sustainability Management Committee. An identified 
sustainability matter is considered as material by the Risk and Sustainability Management 
Committee if it is above the material threshold established by the Board. 
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (Cont’d) 

Material Sustainability Matters 
 
The Group’s material sustainability matters were identified through the materiality assessment process, 
whereby the Economic, Environmental and Social (“EES”) matters relevant and important to the Group’s 
long-term sustainability are identified and prioritised through structured process and assessment 
mechanism as approved by the Board, guided by the Guide Toolkit: Materiality Assessment issued by 
Bursa Securities with necessary adaption based on the nature and scale of the businesses of the Group 
on sustainability context, materiality, completeness and stakeholder inclusiveness through a cycle of 
identification, prioritisation, validation and review. 

A list of material sustainability issues was identified and determined by the sustainability matters 
assessment and prioritisation exercise undertaken by the Risk and Sustainability Management 
Committee that reflected the critical sustainable considerations expected of the Group in respect of the 
businesses and geographical extent the Group is operating in and highlighted the expectations and 
concerns of stakeholder group. The sustainability matters are rated as “Material”, “Low and Medium” 
and “Not Material”, through material matrix, in respect of its significance from the Management’s 
perspective on the impact as well as all significant stakeholders’ perspectives in terms of its influence 
on the respective stakeholders’ assessments and decisions.  

The final list of sustainability matters together with its details of identification and assessment for both 
property development segment and property investment segment were reviewed by the Audit 
Committee and reported the Board for its approval to ensure effective sustainability management and 
monitoring. 
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (Cont’d) 

Material Sustainability Matters (Cont’d) 
 

 

 

The following sustainability matters identified for both property development and property investment 
segments are considered material by the Management of the Group as well as the stakeholder groups: 

Property Development 

 Aspect Boundary  

Sustainability 
Matters 

Definition Internal 
Stakeholders 

External 
Stakeholders 

Relevant SDG Goals 

Compliance 
(Environmental) 

Compliance 
identifies the 
adherence of an 
organisation’s 
activities to 
relevant laws and 
guidelines 

Investors, 
Board of 
Directors, 
Employees, 
Financial 
Institutions 

Local Society, 
Customers, 
Media, 
government & 
regulators 
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (Cont’d) 

Material Sustainability Matters (Cont’d) 
 

Property Development 

 Aspect Boundary  

Sustainability 
Matters 

Definition Internal 
Stakeholders 

External 
Stakeholders 

Relevant SDG Goals 

Occupational 
Safety and Health 
(Social) 

Anticipation, 
recognition, 
evaluation and 
control of hazards 
arising in or from 
the workplace that 
could impair the 
health and well-
being of workers 
and stakeholders 

Investors, 
Board of 
Directors, 
Employees, 
Financial 
Institutions 

Government & 
Regulators, 
Customers, 
Media, 
Industry Peers 

 

Waste and 
Effluent 
(Environmental) 

Waste and effluent 
discharged from 
operations into 
public areas 
 

Investors, 
Board of 
Directors, 
Employees, 
Financial 
Institutions 

Local Society, 
Customers, 
Media, 
Government & 
Regulators 

 

Compliance 
(Social) 

The adherence of 
an organisation’s 
activities to 
relevant laws and 
guidelines 

Investors, 
Board of 
Directors, 
Employees, 
Financial 
Institutions 

Government & 
Regulators, 
Local Society, 
Customers, 
Media, 
Industry Peers  

Anti-corruption 
(Social) 

Abuse of entrusted 
power for private 
gain. This theme 
discusses 
activities that 
promote 
transparency and 
guard against 
various forms of 
corruption 
 

Investors, 
Board of 
Directors, 
Financial 
Institutions 

Government & 
Regulators, 
Customers, 
Media, 
Industry Peers 

 

 

  



ANNUAL REPORT 2021          I            84 
 

 
 

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (Cont’d) 

Material Sustainability Matters (Cont’d) 
 

Property Investment 

 Aspect Boundary  

Category Definition Internal 
Stakeholders 

External 
Stakeholders 

Relevant SDG Goals 

Occupational 
Safety and Health 
(Social) 

Anticipation, 
recognition, 
evaluation and 
control of hazards 
arising in or from 
the workplace that 
could impair the 
health and well-
being of workers 
and stakeholders 
 

Investors, 
Board of 
Directors, 
Employees, 
Financial 
Institutions 

Government & 
Regulators, 
Customers, 
Media, 
Industry Peers 

 

Compliance 
(Environmental) 

Compliance 
identifies the 
adherence of an 
organisation’s 
activities to 
relevant laws and 
guidelines 

Investors, 
Board of 
Directors, 
Employees, 
Financial 
Institutions 

Local Society, 
Customers, 
Media, 
Government & 
Regulators 

 

Compliance 
(Social) 

The adherence of 
an organisation’s 
activities to 
relevant laws and 
guidelines 

Investors, 
Board of 
Directors, 
Employees, 
Financial 
Institutions 

Government & 
Regulators, 
Local Society, 
Customers, 
Media, 
Industry Peers 
  

Waste and 
Effluent 
(Environmental) 
 

Waste and effluent 
discharged from 
operations into 
public areas 
 

Investors, 
Board of 
Directors, 
Employees, 
Financial 
Institutions 

Local Society, 
Customers, 
Media, 
Government & 
Regulators 
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (Cont’d) 

Occupational Safety and Health (Social) 
 
The Group is dedicated to implement and maintain a productive, vibrant yet safe and healthy working 
environment as far as is reasonably practicable to all employees and stakeholders by minimising the 
risk of accidents, injury and exposure to health hazards. The safety and wellbeing of our employees 
and other relevant stakeholders, such as, customers, suppliers, tenants and contractors, are of 
paramount importance to us as a socially responsible business in stirring towards the Group’s long-
term sustainability direction. Hence, the emphasis on importance of occupational safety and health in 
the daily business operations and working environment remained to be one of the Group’s priorities 
throughout the COVID-19 pandemic. 

➢ Property Development 

The Group places utmost importance to the aspect of safety and health especially that we are within 
the property development industry where construction sites offer greater risk than most of the other 
industry workplaces. We emphasise the need for safe workplaces and working environments as well 
as regularly review and assess the safety of our work conditions in order to meet the required safety 
and health related legislative requirements. All employees, contractors, consultants and visitors are 
required to adhere to the safety and health policies and rules and regulations at all construction 
sites. 

Safety and Health Committee is established for respective projects which shall be responsible to 
manage the safety and health management of the Group in compliance with the Occupational Safety 
and Health Act 1994 and Occupational Safety and Health (Safety and Health Committee) 
Regulations 1996, as well as guided by the Safety and Health Policy, Site Safety and Health 
Information (Do’s and Don’t’s), Environmental Policy, House Keeping Standard Practice, 
Occupational Safety and Health – Penalty/ Compound Policy and Job Safety Analysis established 
by the Safety and Health Committee.  

In order to foster the desired safety and health objectives and outcomes with minimal industrial 
accidents, qualified Safety and Health Officer as well as Safety and Health Supervisor are also 
employed by the Group to oversee the due observance of all applicable safety and health rules and 
regulations established by the Management at construction sites, and to promote safe and healthy 
conducts and environment at each active construction site, in compliance with the Occupational 
Safety and Health Act 1994 and Occupational Safety and Health (Safety and Health Officer) Order 
1997. Site managers and Safety and Health Supervisor are responsible to conduct regular and 
routine inspections of the construction worksites to ensure all safety and health guidelines and safety 
measures are properly implemented and complied with, as well as to raise any concerns or incidents 
of non-compliances or safety and health hazards with corrective actions taken and implemented 
swiftly.  

Scheduled meetings are conducted by the Safety and Health Committee at predetermined interval 
in order to promote an effective communication with the employees, contractors and subcontractors 
involved in regard to the ways to perform jobs/ tasks in a better and safer manner at the work sites, 
meanwhile, to discuss any safety and health related concerns or work sites improvement, and to 
report and resolve any unsafe actions or conditions and findings with corrective actions provided. 
Awareness to safety and health at work sites are emphasized and disseminated too to ensure that 
all site employees, contractors and subcontractors are competent to uphold and execute the safety 
and health measurements during the implementation of their duties and responsibilities. 

Besides, strict compliance is imposed by the Group whereby all employees that required access to 
the construction sites as well as all employees of the contractors and subcontractors who are 
performing construction services at the Group’s construction sites are registered with the 
Construction Industry Development Board (“CIDB”) with valid Green Cards obtained. With the strict 
adherence of the Green Card requirement, the Group shall ensure that all personnel entering the 
construction sites underwent compulsory safety trainings per CIDB’s requirement and equipped 
himself/herself with the required safety and health awareness and knowledge to ensure the 
undertaken of safe construction activities.  
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (Cont’d) 

Occupational Safety and Health (Social) (Cont’d) 
 

➢ Property Development (Cont’d) 

The related awareness and knowledge to maintain a set of good safety and health standard is 
created and shared through safety toolbox briefings conducted by the Safety and Heath Supervisor 
to new and existing construction personnel on daily basis. The important safety and health issues 
associated with the work activities to be conducted, along with any deficiencies and corrective 
actions to be taken, are highlighted and communicated to all construction personnel during the safety 
toolbox meetings too.  

The Group has identified and implemented various safety and health measures in addressing the 
potential health and safety risks at the construction sites to safeguard our employees as well as 
contractors, subcontractors and visitors from unnecessary work-related injuries. The surrounding of 
every construction site is fully barricaded with protective hoarding before the commencement of 
construction works so that the public would be protected from work in progress.  

Furthermore, all personnel are required to report to the security personnel for access to the work 
sites in order to ensure only the authorised and qualified personnel are granted the access to the 
work sites. Safety notice and indicators are also placed at the relevant and strategic areas to further 
ensure that health and safety in the workplaces are not being compromised. Besides, the safety and 
health of the construction sites are also further enhanced by having ad-hoc visits and inspections by 
the Department of Occupational Safety and Health (“DOSH”) and a logbook is maintained by the 
Group at respective construction sites with observations and remarks on safety and health concerns 
recorded by DOSH officer in the logbook. 

Apart from the safety measures implemented as aforesaid, the operation of the construction 
equipment and scaffolds are guided by the Factories and Machinery Act 1967 and Factories and 
Machinery (Building Operations and Works of Engineering Construction) (Safety) Regulations 1986. 
These construction equipment and scaffolds are subject to routine inspections, service and 
maintenance by the competent person or qualified vendor at a predetermined interval to ensure the 
safe operation of the equipment and scaffolds.  

In addition, the Group undertook various preventive measures for COVID-19 in compliance with the 
guidelines and Standard Operating Procedures (“SOPs”) mandated by the Malaysian Government 
to help to prevent the spread of the virus in order to build and maintain a healthy and safe working 
environment. Regular sanitisation and disinfection for prevention of COVID-19 virus is performed at 
respective construction sites by the construction site personnel. Besides, fogging and mosquito 
prevention activities at construction sites are carried out at the work sites at a regular interval to 
prevent the breeding of Aedes aegypti mosquitoes.  

➢ Property Investment 

KSL Hot Spring Resort at Taman Daya, Johor, KSL Hotel and Resort at Johor Bahru and KSL City 
Mall at Johor Bahru, operating as resort only for the former one and the latter two as an integrated 
resort and mall opened to the public, placed safety and health of its resorts and mall properties as 
one of its utmost important elements to enhance the sustainable business growth. The tone from 
the top with regard to the Group’s commitment to safety and health of employees is communicated 
through Safety and Health Policy established by the Safety and Health Committee. Safety and 
Health Committee plays a vital role in the management and monitoring of safety and health in the 
resorts and mall by formulating safety and health rules and regulations to be strictly complied by all 
employees, tenants, contractors, subcontractors, suppliers and also customers.  

The Group strives to provide a safe and heathy environment for the stakeholders (employees, 
customers, tenants, suppliers, visitors, contractors and subcontractors) and to ensure safe practices 
are adopted and uphold in all aspects of the property investment’s business operations. Regular 
inspections on the compliance of safety and health rules and regulations in resorts and mall are 
conducted by representatives of the Safety and Health Committee, whereby corrective and 
preventive actions are implemented swiftly and timely for incidents of non-compliances identified.  
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (Cont’d) 

Occupational Safety and Health (Social) (Cont’d) 
 

➢ Property Investment (Cont’d) 

Safety notices or signboards and indicators are placed at strategic and hazard-prone locations to 
convey safety messages and potential safety hazard information to customers, employees, tenants, 
suppliers, visitors, contractors and subcontractors. Monitoring of the continuous compliance with all 
relevant regulations and requirements per Occupational Safety and Health Act 1994 and Factories 
and Machinery Act 1967 (and its orders and regulations) are performed by the Safety and Health 
Committee from time to time in order to identify any non-compliances or high-risk areas with actions 
taken promptly without putting the stakeholders in risk or danger.  

In addition, the public facilities and equipment (i.e. lifts, escalators, travelators, glass fences/ panels 
and handrails, panic button installed at car parks, swimming pool, water theme park’s facilities, gym 
equipment) installed in the resorts and mall for public usage and convenience are inspected and 
maintained at predetermined interval by the Group’s internal safety and maintenance team as well 
as the qualified vendors to ensure safe usage of the facilities and equipment are preserved.  

In order to ensure the mall and resorts are operating safely, fire preventive equipment and systems 
are installed, maintained and tested at regular interval too to ensure its functionalities are not 
compromised. Fire certificates issued by the Fire and Rescue Department of Malaysia for the mall 
and resorts are obtained and renewed annually after inspections were performed by the authority 
bodies to ensure the Group’s strict compliance with the life safety, fire prevention, fire protection and 
fire-fighting requirements of the Fire Services Act 1988. An emergency response team is also 
established and equipped with the knowledge of basic safety and emergency responses for any 
unfortunate incidents happened. 

As a publicly accessible destination, the hotels and resorts as well as shopping mall can be highly 
susceptible to safety and security risks. Being aware of this, security guards are employed and 
deployed at the important safety control points in the mall and resorts, including car park areas, to 
ensure the general safety of the public within the building is safeguarded. Regular patrolling of the 
car parks by our internal security teams are maintained. The car parks are also equipped with panic 
buttons at appropriate designated locations for public’s usage in the event of any emergencies.  

Furthermore, door access controls are installed at restricted areas to prevent unauthorised access. 
The usage of electronic card access is required for guests’ access to the authorised floors of the 
hotel rooms assigned. Strategic locations at the mall and resorts are also monitored by the internal 
security team through closed-circuit television system connecting to the surveillance control room. 
Clear escape route plans and emergency exit signboards are placed at strategic locations and every 
room and function rooms.  

Lastly, all employees that are involved in handling foods in the cafeteria, kitchen, banquet hall and 
etc. are required to attend food handling training with proper SOP practiced in the workplaces at all 
times, and to get typhoid vaccination on annual basis in compliance with the regulations imposed by 
the authority bodies.  

For both property development and property investment businesses of the Group in Malaysia, the Group 
targets zero major incidents with strict compliance to the regulatory requirements imposed by the 
relevant authority bodies. With the above controls put in place for both property development and 
property investment businesses, there was no major incidents occurred and reported as well as no 
major legal action taken against the Group nor any fine or monetary sanction imposed related to 
occupational safety and health aspects during the financial year under review. 
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (Cont’d) 

Occupational Safety and Health (Social) (Cont’d) 
 

The safety and well-being of our employees and stakeholders remain one of our top priorities as we 
adapt to the new normal whilst providing uninterrupted services to our customers and ensuring business 
continuity and resilience. For both property development and property investment businesses, since 
the global outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic in year 2020, the Group has continued to implement 
various initiatives and safety measures in compliance with the SOPs, guidelines and requirements 
issued by the Ministry of Health, National Security Council and any other relevant authorities in curbing 
the spread of COVID-19 virus to ensure business continuity while safeguarding the safety and health 
of employees, customers, tenants, contractors, subcontractors, visitors and other relevant stakeholders.  

Despite the lifting of COVID-19 restrictions where employees are allowed to resume work in the office 
premises and resorts and mall are back to normal business operations during the year, strict SOPs and 
safety measures are still observed and undertaken by the Group to safeguard everyone’s safety and 
well-being. The initiatives and safety measures put in place by the Group include but not limited to the 
following: 

(i) Temperature checks at all entrances to offices, mall, hotels and resorts and construction sites. 
(ii) Provision of face masks to all employees. 
(iii) Mandatory wearing of face masks at all times by all employees, customers, guests, tenants, 

suppliers, contractors, subcontractors and visitors. 
(iv) Hand sanitisers are placed at public common areas and entrances to offices, mall, hotels and 

resorts and construction sites. 
(v) Compulsory check-in via MySejahtera App or recording of personal details in a logbook for 

contact tracing. 
(vi) Only fully vaccinated person is allowed to enter the premises by showing his/her vaccination 

status as well as risk status at designated checkpoints in mall, resorts and construction sites. 
(vii) Employees are encouraged to get the COVID-19 booster shots. 
(viii) Social distancing is practiced with visible markers placed at offices, meeting rooms, elevators, 

hotel reception counters and etc. 
(ix) Frequent sanitisation and disinfection of public and common areas, particularly the commonly 

touched surfaces such as door handles, handrails, lift buttons. 
(x) Frequent cleaning and sanitisation by employees on personal workstations. 
(xi) Full set of personal protective equipment are prepared and provided to employees especially 

those who are stationed for work at KSL Hot Spring Resort at Taman Daya, Johor which serves 
as a quarantine hotel. 

(xii) Employees are advised to avoid crowded areas or gatherings. 
(xiii) Face-to-face meetings are minimised whenever possible. 
(xiv) Ensure compliance with the minimum standard for space requirement for workers' 

accommodations in accordance with the Workers' Minimum Standards of Housing and Amenities 
Act 1990 (Act 446). 

(xv) Construction sites’ workers are advised to appoint representatives for group purchases of 
groceries and necessities. 

(xvi) Various COVID-19 safety signages/ posters are placed for awareness purpose at key locations 
of the offices, mall, hotel and resorts and construction sites.  

(xvii) COVID-19 SOP is established and communicated to all employees. 
(xviii) Employees are advised to declare the countries and/ or local areas, especially high risks areas, 

that they have visited for the past 14 days. 
(xix) Employees shall report to Human Resource Department immediately for further action and 

advise should the employees have been in close contact with suspected or confirmed COVID-19 
patient. 

(xx) COVID-19 self-test is required to be performed by employees on a periodic basis, particularly the 
front-liners in hotel and resorts (i.e. front-office, housekeeping, food and beverage) as well as 
employees that have been in close contract with confirmed COVID-19 patient. 

(xxi) Employees are briefed and updated with all COVID-19 directives issued by government to ensure 
strict compliance. 
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (Cont’d) 

Waste and Effluent, Compliance (Environmental) 
 
In pursuit of sustainable development, the Group is mindful of conducting businesses and operations 
in an environmentally responsible manner that leave a positive impact on society and the environment. 
In consistent with one of the values and aspirations championed by the Group in creating a quality 
lifestyle and eco-friendly living environment for the residents as well as other related stakeholders, we 
are dedicated to continuously improve our environmental performance in order to exist in harmony with 
our mother nature. The management of waste and effluents play an important part in an effective 
environmental stewardship. 

As an accountable group of companies that involved in property development and property investment 
activities, the Group is committed to comply with the environmental laws and regulations of the 
jurisdictions the Group is operating, i.e. Environmental Quality Act and its regulations. The Group has 
been mindful and remained dedicated to protecting and enhancing the environment surrounding the 
Group’s operations by minimising the environmental footprint arising from our business operations for 
the benefits of the future generations. 

➢ Property Development 

For property development activity carried out by the Group, the compliance of environmental related 
laws and regulations are delegated to the Executive Directors and Senior Management, whereby 
relevant environmental preservation practices are formulated for compliance by the employees, 
contractors and subcontractors. For every housing development project of 50 hectares or more, 
Environmental Impact Assessment is required to be performed with reference to the Environmental 
Impact Assessment Guideline, together with the approved Environmental Impact Assessment 
consultant, during the feasibility study stage. The construction works are allowed to be commenced 
upon obtaining approval from the Director General of Environmental and Ministry of Natural 
Resources and Environment and any other relevant government authorities. The project team is 
required to monitor closely to ensure the development works performed by the employees and 
contractors/ subcontractors are within the parameters of the Environmental Impact Assessment 
submitted and approved.  

Open burning is strictly prohibited at all times on all sites and routine site inspections are conducted 
by the Site Supervisor as well as Safety and Health Officer / Safety and Health Supervisor at 
respective construction sites to ensure stringent compliance to all regulatory standards set by the 
local authority and the government. Besides, noise pollution is also taken into consideration to 
prevent loud sound transmissions. The noise level at construction sites is observed by Site 
Supervisors and Manager to ensure that the noise level is maintained at acceptable recommended 
level for residential areas in sub-urban and urban areas. Besides, there is no construction activity 
being undertaken during night time unless approval is obtained from local authority for works with 
low noise level without affecting the quality of living of the people staying in the nearby residential 
areas.  

Towards greening the environment and making it a safe and healthy for the current and future 
generation, the Group supports recycling, by reducing the consumption of raw materials without 
affecting the quality of houses constructed, water pollution, low energy consumption and sorting out 
recycling materials. Fighting on "Saying No to Pollution", recycle bins are allocated alongside the 
development projects to support a green and healthy environment.  

As part of the initiatives to minimise the impacts of its activities on the environment, it is the practice 
of the Group that all construction wastes generated from respective construction sites are to be 
reused and recycled to the extent possible. All construction wastes that cannot be reused and 
recycled are obliged to be disposed in compliance with the requirements of the relevant 
environmental laws and regulations. Illegal dumping of waste, regardless of hazardous or non-
hazardous, is strictly disallowed by the Group. The usage of pesticides is in compliance with the 
Pesticides (Highly Toxic Pesticides) Regulations 1996.  
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (Cont’d) 

Waste and Effluent, Compliance (Environmental) (Cont’d) 
 
➢ Property Development (Cont’d) 

It is the policy of the Group that adequately sized silt traps and other forms of sediment retention 
and control facilities are required to be set up at each construction site as part of the environmental 
protection efforts. The scheduled wastes, mandated under Environmental Quality (Scheduled 
Waste) Regulation 2005, generated from the construction activities are monitored by the Project 
Department and being disposed to the approved scheduled waste operators in Malaysia in 
accordance with the regulation. Storm water is collected at every construction sites too mainly for 
the use of site cleaning. Besides, rainwater harvesting tank is constructed and installed for every 
high rise and residential project for retention of rainwater harvested for future usage.  

For most of the development projects introduced by the Group, especially high-rise project, the 
design and building orientation of the home units are always carefully considered and planned in 
order to allow natural sunlight to sip through each unit with air ventilation which offers a cool and airy 
living environment. This allows the natural sunlight to enter the units and hence, reduce the electric 
lighting and saving energy.  

➢ Property Investment 

On the other hand, as for property investment activity, the management and monitoring of the 
environmental compliance is assigned to the Executive Directors and Safety and Health Committee, 
whereby relevant policies and procedures are established to ensure stringent compliance to the 
applicable regulations and requirements governing the Group’s business activities.  

To ensure effective implementation of environmental management, all employees, suppliers or 
contractors are required to adhere to the Group’s policy and procedures in relation to hazardous 
materials as well as other environmental preservation related activities and procedures. All 
hazardous materials are required to be kept securely in a separate storage room which is segregated 
from the food storage and preparation areas. The storage room is only allowed for access by the 
authorised personnel.  

Necessary trainings or awareness briefings are required to be provided by suppliers to the relevant 
staffs of the Group in regard to proper handling procedures of the hazardous materials in order to 
minimize wastage or spillage as well as to avoid unnecessary incidents happen from mishandling of 
such hazardous materials. Stickers related to the hazardous chemicals or materials are also 
provided by suppliers to the authorised staffs to be pasted on the packaging of such hazardous 
chemicals or materials to act as a reminder of the threats involved.  

To uphold its value on environmental proposition, the Group practices the “Reduce, Reuse and 
Recycle” policy to reduce waste, reuse resources and recycle materials to the extent possible. The 
Board placed importance on the reduction of food wastes through effective material planning and 
utilisation process. For instance, food consumption is monitored closely by the Management on daily 
basis in order to have a better material planning on food preparation and to reduce unnecessary 
food wastage. The food wastes generated are weighed and recorded by the management in order 
to comprehend and analyse further on more possible approaches to reduce the generation of such 
wastages. In the event that the disposal of food and general wastes is inevitable, such disposal of 
wastes are processed through authorised landfill’s operators.  

The adoption of digitalisation in some of the operation processes also supports and drives the 
initiative of the Group to reduce the paper consumption while increased the work productivity and 
operational efficiency with faster and more convenient communication within the Group as well as 
with external stakeholders. To illustrate further on this, invoices are only printed by the front office of 
the hotel and resorts upon request from the guests.  Besides, hotel room price checking and room 
bookings and confirmations are directly performed through its website and can be communicated 
via emails. 
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (Cont’d) 

Waste and Effluent, Compliance (Environmental) (Cont’d) 

➢ Property Investment (Cont’d) 

Recyclable items or materials are also gathered and sent for recycle by the Group in endorsing the 
recycle aspect of the Group’s “3Rs” (reduce, reuse and recycle) initiative. One of the approaches 
taken by the Group is that the hotel room card keys used for guests’ access to hotel room are 
reusable instead of being disposed off, where these card keys are re-coded by the front office staffs 
of the hotel after each stay of the guests for usage by the next guest who checks in the hotel. 
Nonetheless, sanitisation of the hotel room card keys will be done by the front office staffs too. 
Furthermore, the effluent discharged from the operation is treated in compliance with the relevant 
laws and regulations before such discharge is made. 

To promote the environmental awareness and reduce the environmental footprint, a printed green 
card stated with environmental related reminder is placed in every hotel room to remind guests of 
their commitment to the environment and how they can be involved in contributing to the 
environmental protection. Besides, all dry amenities used by the hotel and resorts are of 
biodegradable plastics that decomposes naturally in the environment. The air conditioner’s 
temperature of every hotel room is also set and controlled at the range of 22 to 24 degree celsius to 
reduce the energy usage.  

In order to reduce chemical usage for cleaning purpose, enzymes were previously used by the hotel 
and resorts to clean the equipment. Nevertheless, following the COVID-19 global outbreak since 
year 2020, appropriate cleaning chemicals and disinfectants are used instead to perform 
housekeeping and disinfections of the rooms in hotel and resorts, offices and mall. Nevertheless, 
the Group is mindful to continuously committed in reducing its negative environmental impact while 
conducting its businesses.  

It is worth noting that the KSL Hotel and Resort at Johor Bahru is equipped with solar water heating 
system to generate and supply hot water to the hot water system of the property. Furthermore, there 
is an on-site retention storage being maintained in KSL Hotel and Resort at Johor Bahru, whereby 
the water is recycled for the usage of toilet flushing and gardening in order to reduce water usage. 
Whereas, a rainwater harvesting tank is also constructed and installed in the Group’s new hotel and 
resort, namely KSL Hot Spring Resort at Taman Daya, Johor in collecting the harvested rainwater. 
Besides, dual flush toilets installed in offices, mall and hotel and resorts are able to reduce the water 
consumption while decrease the expenses required to be incurred.  

Due to the continued closing of international borders as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic since 
year 2020 that significantly impacted the property investment business of the Group, the electricity 
and water consumption during the year are relatively reduced too as compared to pre-pandemic 
situations. The food wastes and general wastes produced especially from the KSL Hotel and Resort 
at Johor Bahru are reduced too partly due to the temporary closure of some of the cafeterias and 
banquet operations following the COVID-19 SOPs imposed by authority bodies. 

As part of the cost-efficiency management while encouraging the enhancement of environmental 
sustainability within the Group, the Management still continued the implementation of various 
strategies in managing the operation of the hotel and resorts (KSL Hotel and Resort at Johor Bahru 
which is not a quarantine hotel), by allocating adequate numbers of floors of rooms (on rotation 
basis) for customers’ occupancy while shutting down the electricity and lift operation to the remaining 
floors that are not in service.  

For both property development and property investment businesses of the Group in Malaysia, there 
were no incidences of non-compliance and penalties or fines taken against the Group in relation to 
waste and effluent and environmental related aspects during the financial year under review. Actions 
and steps were taken to ensure relevant environmental factors remained within the regulatory 
requirements of our operations. 

During the implementation of structured sustainability management system, the Risk and Sustainability 
Management Committee and the Board had yet to finalise the performance indicator(s) and target(s) to 
be used to measure progress, effectiveness or efficiency of the policies, measures or actions taken to 
manage associated risks in relation to waste and effluent. The Risk and Sustainability Management 
Committee and the Board will continue to review and finalise the indicator(s) and target(s) to be used 
in relation to the management of waste and effluent during the financial year ending 31 December 2021 
and to report the actual performance with comparison to preceding financial year(s) and target(s) in the 
subsequent financial year’s annual report. 
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (Cont’d) 

Compliance (Social) 
 
The Group acknowledges the importance to uphold the social value along with its value chain to 
accommodate the needs of stakeholders affected by its activities undertaken. The employees are 
recognised as an important and valuable asset as well as a key business differentiator for the Group, 
in driving sustainable growth as well as ensuring the success of all business operations of the Group, 
particularly during the post-pandemic changes. The employees’ efforts, commitment and contributions 
critically affect the Group’s ability to operate with a high level of competency in delivering our goals and 
targets set. Hence, the Group endeavours to provide them a safe and sustainable working environment 
and to treat them equally with equal access to benefits, resources and opportunities provided which 
shall assist them to further develop their skills, knowledge and competencies. 

The Group embraces diversity in the workplace and continues to advocate the culture that respects and 
leverages on the diverse ethnicities and cultures of our country, hence, recognises the needs of 
respective ethnic groups and accommodate their needs and requirements in our businesses and 
operations. The Group believes and practices fair treatment and equitable opportunities for all 
stakeholders regardless of race, religion, nationality, age, marital status, or any other characteristics as 
protected by the local legislation and regulations. Such believe and practice are vital in boosting 
employees’ motivation for better performance achievement and continuous improvement. All 
employees have the opportunity to contribute to the Group as well as achieving their own career goals. 

As a socially responsible citizen, the Group strives to undertake sustainable and responsible practices 
to add value to sustainable business growth, environmental stewardship and social responsibility. In 
fostering the aspect of social responsibility, the Group observes strict compliance with the applicable 
laws and regulations, such as, the Federal Constitution, Employment Act and Regulations, Minimum 
Wages Order, Competition Act, Personal Data Protection Act, Minimum Retirement Age Act, Children 
and Young Persons Act and Workers’ Minimum Standards of Housing and Amenities Act, Temporary 
Measures for Reducing The Impact of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) Act 2020, just to name a 
few important ones.  

For employees, administration of human resources is embodied in the Employee Handbook and human 
resource related memorandums, policies and procedures issued by the Senior Management for group-
wide execution, whereby minimum requirements of fair treatment and fair employment practice to 
legitimate employees are specified for strict compliance. All employees are allowed to receive fair 
treatment while working with the Group such as equality in terms of wages, work hours and overtime 
allowed, annual leaves, sick leaves, maternity and paternity leaves, compassionate leaves, matrimonial 
leaves, medical benefits, terminations, non-discrimination, access to complaint mechanisms and other 
established protection policies. 

The Group respects and embraces that every individual has an equal right and voice to make a 
difference in driving and strengthening the sustainable growth of the Group. The Group has always 
been committed to providing a good workplace culture and working environment that is free from any 
forms of harassment, humiliation and intimidation in any nature. All forms of judgements and 
discriminations are forbidden in the workplace, such as, race, religion, nationality, gender, colour, age, 
marital status, pregnancy status, sexual orientation and physical disability. The Group also observes 
strict enforcement of no illegal employment in the workplace, including suppliers, contractors and 
subcontractors. 

Apart from the whistle blowing mechanism put in place to reassure employees and other stakeholders 
to raise genuine concerns about possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting, compliance and 
other malpractices, specific grievance procedure is also established by the Management to enable 
employees to express their complaints and grievances through several communication channels to the 
appropriate level of authority. This serves as part of the Group’s efforts to promote and uphold 
impartiality in the workplace. Furthermore, Privacy Policy is also put in place by the Group to collect 
and manage the confidential personal data collected from employees in compliance with Personal Data 
Protection Act 2010.  

For both property development and property investment businesses of the Group in Malaysia, the Group 
committed to comply strictly with all applicable laws and regulations and undertake efforts to assess the 
anticipated social impact of its activities. During the financial year under review, there was no major 
legal action taken nor any fine or monetary sanction imposed against the Group in relation to the social 
aspects with zero incidents of human rights violations and discrimination, including forced labour and 
child labour reported.  
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (Cont’d) 

Anti-Corruption (Social) 
 
The Group is mindful of the importance to conduct businesses in responsible and transparent manner 
and committed to uphold high standards of professionalism and integrity in all business dealings with 
our business associates, which include but not limited to, the customers, tenants, suppliers, contractors, 
subcontractors, agents and consultants. The Group always hold the integrity value close to its heart 
and walks the extra-mile to combat corruption and bribery practices throughout the Group and along 
the value chain. 

In compliance with the Corporate Liability Provision under Section 17A of the Malaysian Anti-Corruption 
Commission Act 2009 and guided by Paragraph 15.29 of the Bursa Securities’ Main Market Listing 
Requirements (“Listing Requirements”), the Group continuously embark on initiatives to ensure that 
adequate measures are in place to serves as a defence mechanism based on the TRUST principle 
under the Guidelines on Adequate Procedures issued by the Prime Minister’s Department.  

To demonstrate an adequate level of top-level commitment, a Group Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption 
Policy is established and adopted by the Board to provide guidelines and parameters in preventing any 
corrupt activities involving the Group’s Directors, employees, business associates and all parties related 
to the Group businesses while they perform work or services for or on behalf of the Group. The Group 
Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy is also set to ensure the strict compliance of all preventive 
system and the relevance law in force.  

The Group upholds highest standards of integrity in all business interactions and adopts a strict zero 
tolerance of any forms of bribery and corruption in its working environment. The core principle in relation 
to anti-bribery and corruption of the Group is enshrined in the Code of Conduct and Ethics as well as 
the Conflict of Interest Framework approved by the Board. The ethic requirements and misconducts, 
gift policy, conflicts of interest and anti-fraud policy are also specified in the Human Resource 
Procedures and Employee Handbook to guide the ethical conduct and behaviours of employees. 
Therefore, these have explicitly defined the expectations of the Board on each employee, Director as 
well as business associates to strictly comply with the terms of good business practices and to uphold 
high personal conduct and integrity.  

Besides, the Group continuously conducts awareness programs for all new and existing employees to 
refresh awareness of anti-bribery and anti-corruption measures, and to continuously promote integrity 
and ethics. Every employee is expected to understand and comply with the laws, rules and regulations 
that are applicable to their duties and designations. The Group Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy 
and the Code of Conduct and Ethics are reviewed from time to time to safeguard the effectiveness of 
the governance culture within the Group. 

In addition, the Group has put in place a whistle-blowing policy which is approved by the Board and 
administered by the Audit Committee Chairman and Senior Independent Director to support the Group’s 
principles and code of conduct. A proper channel for whistle blowing is established to encourage all 
stakeholders (including but not limited to, employees, customers, suppliers, government bodies and 
financial institutions) to raise genuine concerns about possible improprieties in matters of financial 
reporting, compliance and other malpractices at the earliest opportunity and in an appropriate way on 
a confidential basis, unless prohibited by law, without fear of any form of reprisal, harassment, 
victimisation or retaliation as well as with safeguard of the interest of the whistle blower in place.  

In line with government’s policy and efforts towards prohibition and prevention of bribery and corruption, 
the Group is committed to the highest standard of integrity and preserving a high standard of 
accountability while exercising proper care and judgement in discharging the daily business activities. 
Appropriate due diligence is required to be practiced in assessing integrity of the business dealings 
undertaken to avoid any allegations of bribery and corruption. Throughout the five (5) financial years 
under review from year 2017 to year 2021, there were zero bribery and corruption related incidents 
reported through the whistleblowing channel. Nevertheless, the Group strives to ensure that our people 
act professionally, ethically and honourably to preserve the record of zero reported incidents of bribery 
and corruption by continuously fostering a positive culture of compliance.   

For both property development and property investment businesses in Malaysia, there was no legal 
action taken against the Group nor any fine or monetary sanction imposed in relation to the corruption 
or bribery practice during the financial year under review.  
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (Cont’d) 

Other Major Economic and Social Activities Undertaken During Financial Year 
 
Apart from the control activities undertaken to manage the material sustainability matters identified as 
stated above, the Group had undertaken the following control activities in managing other sustainability 
matters identified by the Group during the financial year under review. 

A. Our Employees and Workforce 
 

The Group recognises that our employees are integral to the sustainable growth, competitive 
advantage and success of the Group. As such, the Group strongly believes that human capital 
development and availability of a highly resilient workforce is particularly important to support the 
continued expansion and growth of the businesses. We continue investing in our employees and 
ensuring the entire workforce remains motivated and committed in achieving the success. We 
always promote an inclusive and progressive culture where diversity is embraced and welcomed 
in creating an innovative and resilient workforce to achieve a competitive advantage.  

Having a diverse team of employees, across age, gender, ethnicity and industry experience, it 
encourages open-minded dialogues, broadens our positive influence and reach, helps bridge gaps 
as well as offers unique insights and brings in new perspectives and strategies that are able to 
strengthen our businesses. Therefore, we value our employees, and we strive to treat the 
employees equally, provide them with a safe, healthy and sustainable working environment as well 
as to actively develop, invest in and foster growth amongst our employees to further develop the 
skills and talents of our employees. Employee Handbook and human resource policies and 
procedures are established in that respect for transparency in employee’s benefits and 
entitlements. 

We appreciate and respect our employees and strive to develop talented and motivated employees 
to support their performance delivery and growth for our business operations. It is our top priority 
to build a sense of purpose among our employees in the work performed throughout the Group. 
Hence, employees are provided with induction programmes to further equip them with the basic 
knowledge and the right skill sets for their job requirements. Continuous on-the-job trainings are 
provided too to develop their skills and talents for a better career development. Furthermore, 
external trainings on technical knowledge and soft skills developments are planned by the 
Management for the identified employees for their personal and professional development and to 
prepare them for the next level of long-term career with the Group. 

The Board acknowledges the efforts of the employees and remunerates our people with 
remuneration and benefits commensurate with their duties and responsibilities, offer on-going 
opportunities for trainings and developments, and long-term career prospects. The Board is 
committed to build performance-based culture by allowing the employees to demonstrate their 
capabilities and recognising their potential to be leaders. We are mindful that fair compensation is 
essential in motivating and engaging workforce to achieve our growth target. Thus, employees are 
to be reasonably rewarded based on the competencies demonstrated and efforts dedicated by 
them in delivering their duties and responsibilities. Approved career scale with relevant salary 
range is established and implemented in guiding the fair reward and compensation given to 
respective competent employees. 

The Group strive to create a positive and supportive workplace where employees are engaged 
through various avenues to ensure an effective flow of information and optimise operational 
performance. Annual performance appraisals are undertaken by the Management, not only for the 
performance-based remuneration, but also to have effective two-way communication with the 
employees whereby the past performance and expectations for the future years by the 
Management on the employees are communicated while the employees’ commitment and 
concerns are conveyed for future monitoring and sustainable development of the Group. 
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (Cont’d) 

Other Major Economic and Social Activities Undertaken During Financial Year (Cont’d) 
 

A. Our Employees and Workforce (Cont’d) 

 
By having a diverse workforce in the Group, the Board is also championing equal opportunities for 
all employees, regardless of race/ethnicity, religion, nationality, age, gender, marital status, or any 
other characteristics, as well as creating a culture that respects and values each other’s 
differences. We greatly emphasize the importance of being committed in providing a work 
environment that is free from any forms of discrimination and brutality for our employees. 
Notwithstanding the nature of our property development operation which comes with non-
conducive working environment, equal treatment and opportunities are extended to our employees 
in terms of recruitment, salary increment, benefits and allowances, promotion, retention and 
training. A full breakdown of our workforce is illustrated below.  

 

 Johor Klang Valley Total 

No. of Employees Male Female Male Female Male Female 

Permanent 1 138 132 36 36 174 168 

 

 

 Property 
Development 

Property Investment Total 

No. of Employees Male Female Male Female Male Female 

Permanent 1 101 97 73 71 174 168 

 

 

  

 
1 Exclude members of the Board of Directors 

51%49%

Gender Distribution

Male Female

56%

44%

Ethnicity Distribution

Bumiputra Non-Bumiputra
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (Cont’d) 

Other Major Economic and Social Activities Undertaken During Financial Year (Cont’d) 
 

A. Our Employees and Workforce (Cont’d) 

 

 

 

B. Our Community Commitments 
 

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group always committed in giving back and investing in the 
community in which the Group operates. “Greening Environment, Good Education and Best of 
Health" are the three core components of KSL Group’s Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) 
key platforms in giving back to the communities. 

We are endeavoured to generating positive and sustainable value for both the community and 
economic growth through effective utilisation and application of the Group’s capabilities and 
resources as well as sharing of financial resources with local community for their developments. 
Despite challenges are faced by the Group with disruptions to its businesses especially the 
property investment operation following the COVID-19 global outbreak since year 2020, the Group 
is still committed to continue investing in community programmes and other corporate social 
responsibility initiatives to contribute towards the betterment of local communities.  

Since the enforcement of MCO by the Malaysian government with subsequent announcement 
made by the government in using hotels as quarantine centres for Malaysians returning from 
overseas, one of the hotel and resorts of the Group, namely, KSL Hot Spring Resort is then turned 
into a quarantine hotel, and such initiative continues until present. Such step taken by the Group 
not only enables the property investment business of the Group to generate some revenues amid 
the hospitality related businesses that are severely impacted globally, but also enables the Group’s 
property investment business to remain sustainable socially and economically with sufficient 
workforce maintained.  
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (Cont’d) 

Other Major Economic and Social Activities Undertaken During Financial Year (Cont’d) 
 

B. Our Community Commitments (Cont’d) 

 
Other forms of aid were also provided by the Group to various tenants of the mall, such as, rental 
discounts, in order to assist the tenants to brace through this challenging period while the economy 
remained soft amid the domestic travelling restriction was lifted during the year. In addition, KSL 
City Mall is also serves as the offsite COVID-19 vaccination centre for the public community’s 
convenience in getting their vaccinations.  

Our Group’s policy has always been to construct quality and affordable houses for the community 
to buy and own. Over the years, in response to the voice to provide houses at prices not to burden 
further on the public, our Group has helped hundreds and thousands of people to have their own 
houses at an affordable price. We will continue to strive to provide affordable opportunities to 
people to have their own shelters over their heads which is also in line with the Government’s 
desire to realise more home ownerships. 

Over the years, to promote education and literacy in next generations which enable next 
generations to be well-educated and armed with relevant knowledge so that people’s quality of life 
is improved and sustainable development is enhanced, the Group has always contributed to the 
development of education of the young children with the belief that education is the pillar of 
economic growth. The Group strives to excellence in its business operations and continue to play 
its part in growing its businesses responsibly and sustainably that brings positive values to the not 
only the employees but also the community. Despite there is no awards and recognition of 
excellence awarded to the Group this year, the Group remain motivated and continue its 
commitment to excellence in its performance, as well as to continue to embrace its vision and 
remain innovative to deliver the best to its customers and other stakeholders. 
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LIST OF MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP 
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
No. 

 
 
 
 

Lot No. 

 
 
 
 
 
Description 

 
 
 
 

Land Area  
(sq. ft.) 

 
 
 

 
Existing  

Use 

 
 
 
 

 
Tenure 

 
 

 
Approximate 

Age 
 (Year) 

 
 

Net Book  
Value as at 
31.12.2021 

(RM) 

Date of 
Last 

Revaluation 
or if none, 

Date of 
Acquisition 

 
01. 

 
PTB 22817 
Mukim of Johor Bahru 
District of Johor Bahru 
Johor Darul Takzim 
 

 
Commercial 
complex 

 
295,515 

 
KSL City 

Mall 

 
Freehold 

 
11 

 
357,560,000 

 
31.12.2021 

02. PT 143339 
Mukim of Klang 
District of Klang 
Selangor Darul Ehsan 
 

Commercial 
complex 

788,000 Propose 
KSL 

Esplanade 
Mall 

Freehold - 275,724,097 31.12.2021 

03. Lot 113158, 113159, 
113162, 113164, 
113165, 55044, 
55054, 55056 & 63409 
Mukim of Pulai 
District of Johor Bahru 
Johor Darul Takzim 
 

Land held 
for 
development 

8,208,099 Vacant 
Land 

Freehold - 193,057,935 20.03.2018 

04. Lot 6412 & Lot 6415 
Mukim of Klang 
District of Klang 
Selangor Darul Ehsan 
 

Subdivided 
land under 
development 

6,373,555 Bandar 
Bestari 

Freehold - 179,761,991 01.11.2007 

05. PTD 163673 – 163674 
Mukim of Tebrau 
District of Johor Bahru 
Johor Darul Takzim 
 

Land held 
for 
development 

5,137,998 Vacant 
Land 

Leasehold - 138,446,279 12.03.2018 

06. Lot 2437 
Mukim of Tebrau 
District of Johor Bahru 
Johor Darul Takzim 
 

Subdivided 
land under 
development 

9,772,242 Taman 
Bestari 

Indah 

Freehold - 137,992,788 27.02.2002 

07. Lot 18973 – 19011, 
Lot 19013 – 19040, 
Lot 19048 – 19054, 
Lot 19062 – 19063, 
Lot 19105 – 19113, 
Lot 19041 – 19047, 
Lot 19055 – 19061, 
Lot 19064 – 19104, 
Lot 19114 – 19136 
Mukim Simpang Kanan 
District of Batu Pahat 
Johor Darul Takzim 
  

Propose 
land for mix 
development 

12,945,196 Bukit 
Banang 

Freehold - 107,196,723 30.01.2015 

08. PTD 113647 
PTD 113648 
Mukim of Pulai 
District of Johor Bahru 
Johor Darul Takzim 
 

Subdivided 
land under 
development 

400,055 KSL 
Residensi 

@ Kangkar 
Tebrau 

Freehold - 98,692,844 10.08.2006 

09. Lot 123 CT 12738 
Town of Kuala Lumpur 
District Kuala Lumpur 
  

High-rise 
residential 
development 

35,622 18 Madge  Freehold - 91,096,838 14.06.2010 

10. Lot 3054 – 3059, 
Lot 3068 – 3071, 
Lot 3080 – 3088 
Mukim of Pulai 
District of Johor Bahru 
Johor Darul Takzim 
 

Subdivided 
land under 
development 

1,678,659 Taman 
Mutiara 
Bestari 

Freehold - 68,770,228 21.12.2009 
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STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDINGS 
AS AT 22 MARCH 2022 

 
Total number of issued shares 
 

: 1,037,508,399 

Class of shares : 
 

Ordinary shares 

Voting rights 
 

: One vote per share 

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS 
 

 

Holdings 

Number of 
Holders 

Number of 
Shares 

% of    

 Shares 

Less than 100 602 23,375 0.00 

100 – 1,000 784 383,010 0.04 

1,001 – 10,000 2,744 14,631,247 1.44 

10,001 – 100,000 1,875 61,510,082 6.04 

100,001 to less than 5% of issued shares  380 325,066,614 31.96 

5% and above of issued shares 4 615,601,671 60.52 

 6,389 1,017,215,999* 100.00 

 
* excluding a total of 20,292,400 ordinary shares bought back and retained as treasury shares. 

 
 

THIRTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS 
 

No. Shareholders Number of 
Shares 

Percentage of 
Shares (%) 

 

1. PREMIERE SECTOR SDN BHD 323,546,642 31.81 

2. KHOO CHENG HAI @ KU CHENG HAI 108,394,051 10.66 

3. KU HWA SENG 104,889,521 10.31 

4. KU TIEN SEK 78,771,457 7.74 

5. HSBC NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD 

EXEMPT AN FOR BANK JULIUS BAER & CO. LTD. 

 

49,338,898 

 

4.85 

6. UOB KAY HIAN NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD 

EXEMPT AN FOR UOB KAY HIAN PTE LTD 

 

41,857,395 

 

4.11 

7. GORGEOUS HORIZON SDN BHD 23,129,200 2.27 

8. IFAST NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD 

EXEMPT AN FOR IFAST FINANCIAL PTE LTD 

 

12,019,500 

 

1.18 

9. CITIGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 

EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND BOARD 

 

10,372,316 

 

1.02 

10. KU WA CHONG 9,249,879 0.91 

11. AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 

AMBANK (M) BERHAD 

 

5,668,800 

 

0.56 

12. RHB CAPITAL NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 

PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR SUSY DING 

 

4,777,900 

 

0.47 
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STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDINGS (Cont’d) 
AS AT 22 MARCH 2022 

 
THIRTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS (Cont’d) 
 

No. Shareholders Number of 
Shares 

Percentage of 
Shares (%) 

 

13. KHOO KENG GHIAP 3,967,680 0.39 

14. MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 

PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TNTT REALTY 
SDN BHD 

 

 

3,819,800 

 

 

0.38 

15. PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 

PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR WONG YEE HUI 

 

3,400,000 

 

0.33 

16. CGS-CIMB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 

PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TAN MOEY 
QUEE 

 

 

3,189,436 

 

 

0.31 

17. KU WA CHONG 3,129,196 0.31 

18. RHB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 

PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR SUSY DING 

 

2,922,500 

 

0.29 

19. PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 

PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TAY LEK HENG  

 

2,710,400 

 

0.27 

20. LTK (MELAKA) SDN BHD 2,662,915 0.26 

21. LIM SOON HUAT 2,651,782 0.26 

22. AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 

PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR NGENG ENG 
CHENG 

 

 

2,631,900 

 

 

0.26 

23. MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 

MAYBANK TRUSTEES BERHAD FOR DANA MAKMUR  

 

2,093,863 

 

0.21 

24. RHB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 

PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR WONG YEE HUI 

 

2,017,000 

 

0.20 

25. UOB KAY HIAN NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 

EXEMPT AN FOR UOB KAY HIAN PTE LTD 

 

1,924,370 

 

0.19 

26. DB (MALAYSIA) NOMINEE (ASING) SDN BHD  

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON FOR ACADIAN 
EMERGING MARKETS SMALL CAP EQUITY FUND, LLC  

 

 

1,892,783 

 

 

0.19 

27. HLB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 

PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR ONG YOONG 
NYOCK 

 

 

1,876,400 

 

 

0.18 

28. GOH CHEAH HONG 1,805,140 0.18 

29. YO KOK KONG @ YUE KOK KONG 1,577,900 0.16 

30. LIM SIEW LEE 1,535,847 0.15 
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS 
 
According to the Register required to be kept under Section 144 of the Companies Act, 2016, the following 
are the substantial shareholders of the Company: 
 

  Direct Interest Deemed Interest 
No. Substantial Shareholders Number of 

Shares 
 

% of 
Shares 

Number of 
Shares 

% of 
Shares 

1. PREMIERE SECTOR SDN BHD 323,546,642 31.81 - - 

2. KHOO CHENG HAI @ KU CHENG HAI 108,394,051 10.66 351,496,922(2) 34.56 

3. KU HWA SENG 104,889,521 10.31 346,675,842(2) 34.08 

4. KU TIEN SEK 78,771,457 7.74 323,546,642(1) 31.81 

 
Notes: 
(1) Deemed interested through his shareholdings by virtue of Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2016. 
(2) Deemed interested pursuant to Section 8 and Section 59 (11) (c) of the Companies Act, 2016.   
 
 
 
 

LIST OF DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS 
  

  Direct Interest Deemed Interest 
No. Directors Number of 

Shares 
 

% of 
Shares 

Number of 
Shares 

% of 
Shares 

1. KHOO CHENG HAI @ KU CHENG HAI 108,394,051 10.66 351,496,922(2) 34.56 

2. KU HWA SENG 104,889,521 10.31 346,675,842(2) 34.08 

3. KU TIEN SEK 78,771,457 7.74 323,546,642(1) 31.81 

4. LEE CHYE TEE - - - - 

5. GOW KOW - - - - 

6. GOH TYAU SOON - - - - 

7. TEY PING CHENG - - - - 

 
Notes: 
(1) Deemed interested through his shareholdings by virtue of Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2016. 
(2) Deemed interested pursuant to Section 8 and Section 59 (11) (c) of the Companies Act, 2016.   
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 
The directors hereby present their report together with the audited financial statements of the Group and of 
the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2021. 
 
 
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 

The principal activities of the Company are those of investment holding and provision of management 
services to its subsidiaries which are principally engaged in property development and hotel operations. 
The details of the subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements. 
 
There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year. 
 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

 Group  Company 

 RM  RM 
    
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company 114,411,790  6,462,539 

 
In the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the 
financial year have not been substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and 
unusual nature. 

 
DIVIDENDS 
 
No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since the end of previous financial year. The 
directors do not recommend any dividend in respect of the current financial year. 
 
 
RESERVES AND PROVISIONS 
 
There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than 
those disclosed in the financial statements. 
 
 
ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES 
 
There was no issue of shares or debentures by the Company during the financial year. 
  
 
SHARE BUY-BACK 
 
The Company did not repurchase any of its issued ordinary shares from the open market during the 
financial year. 
 
As at 31 December 2021, the Company held 20,292,400 issued ordinary shares as treasury shares out of 
its total issued and paid-up share capital of 1,037,508,399 shares. Such treasury shares are held at a 
carrying amount of RM24,776,017. Further information is disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Cont’d) 
 
OPTIONS 
 
No option has been granted during the financial year covered by the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income to take up unissued shares of the Company. As at the end of the financial year, 
there were no unissued shares of the Company under options. 
 
 
DIRECTORS 
 
The directors who served during the financial year up to the date of this report are: - 
 
Khoo Cheng Hai @ Ku Cheng Hai 
Ku Hwa Seng 
Ku Tien Sek  
Lee Chye Tee 
Gow Kow 
Goh Tyau Soon 
Tey Ping Cheng 
 
The name of the directors of the Company’s subsidiaries in office during the financial year and up to the 
date of this report other than those named above are as follows: - 
 
Ku Wa Chong 
Khoo Lee Feng 
Khoo Keng Ghiap 
Ku Keng Leong 
Ku Ek Mei 
Ku Keng Yaw 
 
 
DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS 

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive any 
benefit, other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of fees and emoluments received or due 
and receivable by the directors from the Company, or the fixed salary of a full time employee of the 
Company as disclosed in the financial statements, by reason of a contract made by the Company with the 
director or with a firm of which the director is a member, or with a company in which the director has a 
substantial financial interest other than certain directors who have substantial financial interests in 
companies which traded with the Company in the ordinary course of business, other than as disclosed in 
Note 28 to the financial statements. 
 
Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that financial year, did there subsist any 
arrangement to which the Company was a party, being arrangements with the object of enabling directors 
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of, the 
Company or any other body corporate. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Cont’d) 
 
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS 
 
According to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings required to be kept under Section 59 of the 
Companies Act, 2016, the interests and deemed interests of directors in office at the end of the financial 
year in the shares of the Company during the financial year are as follows: - 
 
 <--------------------- Number of ordinary shares ---------------------> 

 As at   As at 

 1.1.2021 Acquired Disposed 31.12.2021 

     

Company     

Direct interest     
Khoo Cheng Hai @   
  Ku Cheng Hai 

108,394,051 - - 108,394,051 

Ku Hwa Seng 104,889,521 - - 104,889,521 

Ku Tien Sek 78,771,457 - - 78,771,457 

     

Indirect interest (+)     

Khoo Cheng Hai @   4,821,080 - - 4,821,080 

  Ku Cheng Hai     

     

Deemed interest (#)     

Khoo Cheng Hai @   323,546,642 - - 323,546,642 

  Ku Cheng Hai     

Ku Hwa Seng 323,546,642 - - 323,546,642 

Ku Tien Sek 323,546,642 
 

- - 323,546,642 
 

Deemed interest (*)     

Khoo Cheng Hai @   23,129,200 - - 23,129,200 

  Ku Cheng Hai     

Ku Hwa Seng 23,129,200 - - 23,129,200 

 
+  By virtue of his children’s direct shareholding 
#  Held through Premiere Sector Sdn. Bhd. 
*  Held through Gorgeous Horizon Sdn. Bhd. by their children 
 
By virtue of their interests in the shares of the Company, Khoo Cheng Hai @ Ku Cheng Hai, Ku Hwa Seng 
and Ku Tien Sek are also deemed interested in the shares of the subsidiaries during the financial year to 
the extent that the Company has an interest. 
 
None of the other directors in office at the end of the financial year hold any shares in the Company or its 
related corporations during the financial year. 
 

 

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 
 
Details of directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 28 to the financial statements. 
 
 
INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE FOR DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND AUDITORS 
 
No indemnity has been given to or insurance effected for the directors or officers of the Company pursuant 
to Section 289 of the Companies Act, 2016. 
 
To the extent permitted by the Act, the Company has agreed to indemnify its auditors as part of the terms 
of their engagement against claims by third parties arising from the audit. No payment has been made to 
indemnify the auditors during or since the financial year. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Cont’d) 
 
OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION 
 
(a) The directors, before the Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income and 

Statements of Financial Position of the Group and of the Company were prepared, took 
reasonable steps: - 

(i) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and 
the making of allowance for doubtful debts and have satisfied themselves that there are no 
known bad debts and that no allowance for doubtful debts was necessary; and 

(ii) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course 
of business including the values of current assets as shown in the accounting records of 
the Group and of the Company had been written down to an amount which the current 
assets might be expected so to realise.  

(b) The directors are not aware of any circumstances, at the date of this report, which would render: - 

(i) it necessary to write off any bad debts or to providing of allowance for doubtful debts in 
respect of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company; and 

(ii) the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of 
the Company misleading. 

(c) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen 
which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the 
Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate. 

(d) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with 
in this report or financial statements of the Group and of the Company which would render any 
amount stated in the financial statements misleading. 

(e) As at the date of this report, there does not exist: - 

(i) any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end 
of the financial year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or 

(ii) any contingent liability of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of 
the financial year. 

 
(f) In the opinion of the directors: - 

(i) no contingent liability or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become 
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which will 
or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their 
obligations as and when they fall due; and 

(ii) no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval 
between the end of the financial year and the date of this report which is likely to affect 
substantially the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the 
financial year in which this report is made. 

 

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION 
 
Details of auditors’ remuneration are set out in Note 21 to the financial statements. 
 
 
SIGNIFICANT EVENT DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR  
 
The significant event during the financial year is as disclosed in Note 29 to the financial statements. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Cont’d) 
 
AUDITORS 

The auditors, ECOVIS MALAYSIA PLT, have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment. 
 

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in 
accordance with a resolution of the directors, 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

KHOO CHENG HAI @ KU CHENG HAI 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LEE CHYE TEE 
 
JOHOR BAHRU 
 
Date: 21 April 2022  
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016 

 
 
We, KHOO CHENG HAI @ KU CHENG HAI and LEE CHYE TEE, being two of the directors of KSL 
HOLDINGS BERHAD, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors, the financial statements set out 
on pages 115 to 177 are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a true 
and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as of 31 December 2021 and of 
their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in 
accordance with a resolution of the directors, 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

KHOO CHENG HAI @ KU CHENG HAI 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LEE CHYE TEE 
 
 
JOHOR BAHRU 
 
Date: 21 April 2022 
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STATUTORY DECLARATION 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016 

 
 
I, LEE CHYE TEE (MIA 8492), being the director primarily responsible for the financial management of 
KSL HOLDINGS BERHAD, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on 
pages 115 to 177, are to the best of my knowledge and belief, correct and I make this solemn declaration 
conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations 
Act, 1960.  
 
 
 
Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed 
LEE CHYE TEE (MIA 8492) at Johor Bahru in the state 
of Johor Darul Ta'zim on 21 April 2022 

 
) 
) 
) 

 

  LEE CHYE TEE (MIA 8492) 
 
 
Before me, 
Commissioner of Oath 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
KSL HOLDINGS BERHAD 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements  
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the financial statements of KSL HOLDINGS BERHAD (“the Company”), which comprise 
the statements of financial position as at 31 December 2021 of the Group and of the Company, and the 
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and 
statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 115 to 177. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of 
the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2021, and of their financial performance and their cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International 
Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities 
 
We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional 
Ethics, Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International 
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants 
(including International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code. 
 

Key Audit Matters 

 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our 

audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current financial year. We have 

determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report on the financial statements of the 

Company. The key audit matters for the audit of the financial statements of the Group are described below. 

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group as a 

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For 

each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
KSL HOLDINGS BERHAD (Cont’d) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d) 
 
Key audit matter  

Accounting for property development 

activities 

 

The Group recognises revenue from ongoing 

property development projects in the statement of 

profit or loss by using the stage of completion 

method. The stage of completion is measured by 

reference to the property development costs 

incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a 

percentage of total estimated costs for the 

property development projects. 

 

The Group recognised revenue of 

RM141,288,502 from property development 

activities, recognised over time, during the 

financial year ended 31 December 2021. 

 

Given the nature of property development 

projects, we focused on this area as significant 

estimates and judgements are required in: 

 

• measuring stage of completion; 

• determining the extent of property 

development costs incurred to date; and 

• estimating total property development costs. 

 

Refer to Note 7(ii), 17 and 18 to the financial 

statements. 

 

 How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

We checked the revenue recognised, on a 
sampling basis, by agreeing the computation to the 
contracted selling prices of the property units 
multiplied with their respective stage of completion 
of respective development. 
 
We recomputed the stage of completion 
percentages by calculating the proportion of 
property development costs incurred for work 
performed to date to the estimated total property 
development costs. 
 
We evaluated variances between actual costs 
incurred and budgeted property development costs 
to assess whether total estimated costs to 
completion have been properly estimated and 
updated to reflect current conditions. 
 
We agreed, on a sampling basis, the costs 
incurred to supporting documentation such as the 
sub-contractors’ claim certificates which have been 
approved by the project architects, and invoices 
from vendors. 
 
We checked the reasonableness of the estimated 
total property development costs of major projects, 
allocation of costs and subsequent changes to the 
costs by agreeing to supporting documentation.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
KSL HOLDINGS BERHAD (Cont’d) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d) 
 
Key audit matter  

Valuation of investment properties  

Referring to Note 4 to the financial statements, as 
at 31 December 2021, the Group’s investment 
properties, which are carried at fair value, 
amounted to approximately RM650 million. 
 
Significant judgement is required by the directors 

in determining the fair value of the properties and 

for the purpose of our audit, we identified the 

valuation for investment properties as 

representing a key audit matter due to the 

significance of the estimation uncertainty, coupled 

with the fact that a small percentage difference in 

individual property valuation assumptions, when 

aggregated, could result in material misstatement. 

The valuations were carried out annually by third 

party independent valuers engaged by the Group, 

and the models used to determine the fair values 

depends on the nature of the properties.  

 

Under the profits method, the valuers take into 

account specific current information of the 

property such as the current tenancy agreements 

and rental income earned by the assets. They 

then apply assumptions in relation to rates of 

return, based on available market data and 

transactions, to arrive at a range of valuation 

outcomes, from which they derive a point 

estimate.  

 

Under the comparison approach, the valuation is 

based on assumptions, amongst others, 

comparable historical transactions and factoring 

adjustments to comparable transactions including 

location, size, condition, accessibility, design and 

market knowledge, and estimated rental value per 

square foot. 

 

 

 How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

External valuations 

It was evident from our discussions with 

management and the valuers and from our review 

of the valuation reports, that we noted the valuers 

have considered factors related to each property’s 

individual characteristics and its overall quality, 

geographical location and desirability as a whole in 

arriving to fair value. There was no evidence of 

management bias or influence on the valuers. 

We assessed the competence, capability and 

objectivity of the independent valuers, and verified 

their professional qualifications. In addition, we 

discussed the scope of their work with 

management to determine that there were no 

matters that would have affected their 

independence and objectivity, or imposed scope 

limitations upon them. We have also considered 

other engagements which might exist between the 

Group and the valuers. We found no evidence to 

suggest that the objectivity of any valuers in their 

performance of the valuations was compromised. 

Assumptions 
 
Valuation of properties using the comparison 
approach was made by reference to similar 
transactions with adjustments made for relevant 
differences in order to arrive at a common basis for 
comparison. We compared the fair values of a few 
samples of the properties with the average values 
of several similar properties in and around the 
area. We found the comparisons to be within a 
reasonable range. 
 
For valuation of certain properties using the profits 
method, we tested a selection of data inputs 
underpinning the investment property valuation 
including rental income, tenancy schedules and 
estimated expenses, against appropriate 
supporting documentation. We found that the 
models used and discount rates for the various 
properties were appropriate. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
KSL HOLDINGS BERHAD (Cont’d) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d) 
 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon 
 
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the Directors’ Report and other information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial 
statements of the Group and of the Company and our auditors’ report thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility 
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in 
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements 
 
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and 
of the Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. 
The directors are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the directors are responsible for 
assessing the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors 
either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group 
and of the Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia 
and ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on basis of these financial statements.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and ISAs, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of 

the Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

 
(b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Group’s and the Company’s internal control. 

 
(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
KSL HOLDINGS BERHAD (Cont’d) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia) 

 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d) 
 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Cont’d) 

 
(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s or the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Group or the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 
(e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of 

the Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

 
(f) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 

business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We 
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion. 

 
We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit. 
 
We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year 
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
 
Other Matters 
 
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of 
the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any 
other person for the content of this report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ECOVIS MALAYSIA PLT CHUA KAH CHUN 
AF 001825 02696/09/2023 J 
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant 
  

KUALA LUMPUR 

 
Date: 21 April 2022 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 
 

2021 2020

Note RM RM

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

  Property, plant and equipment 3 140,287,411       152,345,270       

  Investment properties 4 885,709,881       818,091,587       

  Other investment 6 1,482,759           1,268,094           

  Inventories 7 1,098,630,589    1,067,092,946    

2,126,110,640    2,038,797,897    

CURRENT ASSETS

  Inventories 7 789,512,983       874,854,111       

  Trade and other receivables 8 187,976,444       89,489,247         

  Contract assets 9 52,966,936         16,672,346         

  Current tax assets 1,416,872           902,680              

  Cash and bank balances 11 252,841,266       283,875,142       

1,284,714,501    1,265,793,526    

TOTAL ASSETS 3,410,825,141    3,304,591,423    

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO

   OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

  Share capital 12 699,234,524       699,234,524       

  Reserves 13 2,416,892,554    2,302,480,764    

TOTAL EQUITY 3,116,127,078    3,001,715,288    

Group

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 (Cont’d) 

 

2021 2020

Note RM RM

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

  Other payables 14 20,493,984         23,020,366         

  Loans and borrowings 15 68,337,928         88,154,607         

  Deferred tax liabilities 16 54,086,171         55,343,071         

142,918,083       166,518,044       

CURRENT LIABILITIES

  Trade and other payables 14 103,886,878       116,996,420       

  Contract liabilities 9 7,567,754           7,023,654           

  Loans and borrowings 15 40,325,348         12,338,017         

151,779,980       136,358,091       

TOTAL LIABILITIES 294,698,063       302,876,135       

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,410,825,141    3,304,591,423    

Group

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 
 

2021 2020

Note RM RM

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

  Property, plant and equipment 3 2                        2                        

  Investment in subsidiaries 5 1,227,381,958   175,521,958      

1,227,381,960   175,521,960      

CURRENT ASSETS

  Trade and other receivables 8 1,055                 -                         

  Amount due by subsidiaries 10 76,499,364        1,067,569,117   

  Current tax assets 1,056,679          -                         

  Cash and bank balances 11 157,121             31,115,964        

77,714,219        1,098,685,081   

TOTAL ASSETS 1,305,096,179   1,274,207,041   

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO

   OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

  Share capital 12 699,234,524      699,234,524      

  Reserves 13 564,977,393      558,514,854      

TOTAL EQUITY 1,264,211,917   1,257,749,378   

CURRENT LIABILITIES

  Trade and other payables 14 168,149             167,355             

  Amount due to subsidiaries 10 40,716,113        14,636,270        

  Current tax liabilities -                        1,654,038          

40,884,262        16,457,663        

TOTAL LIABILITIES 40,884,262        16,457,663        

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,305,096,179   1,274,207,041   

Company

 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 
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STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 
INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 

 

2021 2020 2021 2020

Note RM RM RM RM

REVENUE 17 467,827,281     340,674,083     6,775,100        178,261,100    

COST OF SALES 18 (243,169,415)    (159,895,766)    -                       -                       

GROSS PROFIT 224,657,866     180,778,317     6,775,100        178,261,100    

ADD: OTHER INCOME 19 15,400,257       18,534,834       1,176,220        22,994,765      

LESS: DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES (10,852,914)      (21,122,354)      (5,323)              (5,915)              

LESS: ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (84,714,774)      (82,472,845)      (890,745)          (1,004,024)       

LESS: OTHER EXPENSES -                        (142,778,711)    -                       -                       

LESS: FINANCE COSTS 20 (3,811,387)        (4,645,258)        (573,133)          (2,814,686)       

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 21 140,679,048     (51,706,017)      6,482,119        197,431,240    

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 22 (26,267,258)      (11,774,189)      (19,580)            (4,682,891)       

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 114,411,790     (63,480,206)      6,462,539        192,748,349    

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME -                        -                        -                       -                       

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/

   (EXPENSE) FOR THE YEAR 114,411,790     (63,480,206)      6,462,539        192,748,349    

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER ORDINARY

   SHARE (SEN): -

  Basic 23 11.25                (6.24)                 

Group Company

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 



ANNUAL REPORT 2021          I            119 
 

 

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 

 

Distributable

Share              Treasury   Revaluation   Retained      

capital shares reserve earnings Total
(Note 12) (Note 13) (Note 13) (Note 13) equity

Group RM RM RM RM RM

At 1 January 2020 699,234,524     (24,776,017)      17,389,722       2,373,347,265      3,065,195,494    

Realisation of revaluation surplus -                        -                        (376,576)           376,576                -                          

Profit/Total comprehensive 

  income for the year -                        -                        -                        (63,480,206)          (63,480,206)        

At 31 December 2020 699,234,524     (24,776,017)      17,013,146       2,310,243,635      3,001,715,288    

Profit/Total comprehensive 

 income for the year -                        -                        -                        114,411,790         114,411,790       

At 31 December 2021 699,234,524     (24,776,017)      17,013,146       2,424,655,425      3,116,127,078    

< ------------------Non-distributable  ---------------------->
<-----------------  Attributable to owners of the Company ------------------>

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (Cont’d) 
 

Distributable

Share Treasury Retained

capital shares earnings Total

(Note 12) (Note 13) (Note 13) equity

Company RM RM RM RM

At 1 January 2020 699,234,524                  (24,776,017)                  390,542,522                  1,065,001,029               

Profit/Total comprehensive 

  income for the year -                                    -                                    192,748,349                  192,748,349                  

At 31 December 2020 699,234,524                  (24,776,017)                  583,290,871                  1,257,749,378               

Profit/Total comprehensive 

  income for the year -                                    -                                    6,462,539                      6,462,539                      

At 31 December 2021 699,234,524                  (24,776,017)                  589,753,410                  1,264,211,917               

<----------------- Non-distributable ----------------->

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 
 

2021 2020 2021 2020

RM RM RM RM

  Profit/(Loss) before tax 140,679,048    (51,706,017)    6,482,119         197,431,240  

  Adjustments for: -

    Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 11,054,141      11,179,679      -                       -                     

    Net loss on disposal of property, plant and 

       equipment 4,403               14,000             -                       -                     

    (Gain)/Loss on fair value of equity investment (194,261)         67,708             -                       -                     

    Interest expenses 3,474,124        4,236,387        570,672            2,812,179      

    Property, plant and equipment written off 163,495           109,317           -                       -                     

    Fair value adjustment of investment properties (85,574)           142,778,711    -                       -                     

    Dividend income from other investment -                      (19,797)           -                       -                     

    Interest income (4,669,612)      (7,793,209)      (1,176,220)       (22,994,765)   

 Operating profit before working capital changes 150,425,764    98,866,779      5,876,571         177,248,654  

Decrease/(Increase) in working capital

  Inventories - land held for property development (37,599,926)    (69,866,788)    -                       -                     

  Inventories - property development costs (54,541,180)    (116,251,736)  -                       -                     

  Inventories - completed projects 145,859,939    59,062,980      -                       -                     

  Inventories - other inventories 84,652             213,345           -                       -                     

  Contract assets and liabilities (35,750,490)    (3,253,748)      -                       -                     

  Trade and other receivables (98,487,197)    79,748,559      (1,055)              1,472             

  Trade and other payables (15,635,924)    (26,563,709)    794                   (19,971)          

  Amount due by/(to) subsidiaries -                      -                      1,017,149,596  (191,587,552) 

Cash generated from/(used in) operations 54,355,638      21,955,682      1,023,025,906  (14,357,397)   

  Interest paid (3,474,124)      (4,236,387)      (570,672)          (2,812,179)     

  Tax paid (28,038,350)    (48,490,125)    (2,730,297)       (5,155,973)     

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 22,843,164      (30,770,830)    1,019,724,937  (22,325,549)   

Group Company

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (Cont’d) 
 

2021 2020 2021 2020

RM RM RM RM

  Increase in investment in subsidiaries -                      -                      (1,051,860,000)      -                     

  Addition of investment properties (67,532,720)    (53,608,611)    -                             -                     

  Purchase of property, plant and 

    equipment (783,585)         (697,930)         -                             -                     

  Acquisition of other investment (20,404)           (221,011)         -                             -                     

  Proceeds from disposal of property, 

    plant and equipment 1,619,405        2,350,940        -                             -                     

  Interest received 4,669,612        7,793,209        1,176,220              22,994,765    

Net cash (used in)/from investing activities (62,047,692)    (44,383,403)    (1,050,683,780)      22,994,765    

  Drawdown of revolving credit 20,000,000      -                      -                             -                     

  Repayment of term loans (11,829,348)    (8,133,348)      -                             -                     

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 8,170,652        (8,133,348)      -                             -                     

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND 

  CASH EQUIVALENTS (31,033,876)    (83,287,581)    (30,958,843)           669,216         

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 

  BEGINNING OF YEAR 283,875,142    367,162,723    31,115,964            30,446,748    

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END

  OF YEAR 252,841,266    283,875,142    157,121                 31,115,964    

Cash and cash equivalents comprise 

  the following: -

  Cash and bank balances 252,841,266    283,875,142    157,121                 31,115,964    

Group Company

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 

The principal activities of the Company are those of investment holding and provision of 
management services to its subsidiaries which are principally engaged in the property development 
and hotel operations. The details of the subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 5 to the financial 
statements. There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the 
financial year. 
 
The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia and is 
listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The registered office and principal 
place of business of the Company is located at Wisma KSL, No. 148, Batu 1 ½, Jalan Buloh 
Kasap, 85000 Segamat, Johor Darul Ta’zim. 
  
The consolidated financial statements of the Group as at and for the financial year ended 31 
December 2021 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group” 
and individually referred to as “Group entities”). 
 
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a 
resolution of the Directors on 21 April 2022. 
 
 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in 
these financial statements and have been applied consistently by Group entities unless otherwise 
stated. 
 

(a) Basis of preparation 

The financial statements of the Group and the Company have been prepared under the 
historical cost convention and modified to include other bases of valuation as disclosed in 
other sections under significant accounting policies, and comply with Malaysian Financial 
Reporting Standards (MFRSs), International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and 
the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia.  

The financial statements are reported in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is the Company’s 
functional currency. 

 
(b) Statement of compliance 

 
The followings are accounting standards, amendments and interpretations of the MFRSs 
framework that have been issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) 
but have not been adopted by the Group and the Company. 
 
MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after 1 April 2021 
 

• Amendment to MFRS 16, ‘Leases’ - Covid-19-related Rent Concessions beyond 30 
June 2021 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 

(b) Statement of compliance (Cont’d) 
 
MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2022 
 

• Amendment to MFRS 1, ‘First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial Reporting 
Standards’ (Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2018 – 2020) 

• Amendments to MFRS 3, ‘Business Combinations’ - Reference to the Conceptual 
Framework 

• Amendment to MFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’ (Annual Improvements to MFRS 
Standards 2018 – 2020) 

• Amendments to MFRS 116, ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ - Proceeds before 
Intended Use 

• Amendments to MFRS 137, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ - 
Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 

• Amendment to MFRS 141, ‘Agriculture’ (Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 
2018 – 2020) 

 
MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2023 
 

• MFRS 17, ‘Insurance Contracts’ and Amendments to MFRS 17, ‘Insurance Contracts’ 

• Amendment to MFRS 17, ‘Insurance Contracts’ – Initial Application of MFRS 17 and   
MFRS 9 - Comparative Information 

• Amendments to MFRS 101, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ – Classification of 
liabilities as current or non-current 

• Amendments to MFRS 101, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ – Disclosure of 
Accounting Policies 

• Amendments to MFRS 108, ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates 
and Errors’ – Definition of Accounting Estimates 

• Amendments to MFRS 112, ‘Income Taxes’ – Deferred Tax Related to Assets and 
Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction 

 
MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for a date yet to be confirmed 
 

• Amendments to MFRS 10, ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ and MFRS 128, 
‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ – Sale or Contribution of Assets 
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture 

 
The Group plans to apply the abovementioned standards, amendments and interpretations 
in the respective financial years when the above standards, amendments and 
interpretations become effective. 
 
The Group and the Company does not plan to adopt Amendments to MFRS 141, 
‘Agriculture’ - Taxation in Fair Value Measurements, MFRS 17, ‘Insurance Contracts’ and 
Amendment to MFRS 17, ‘Insurance Contracts’ - Initial Application of MFRS 17 and MFRS 
9 - Comparative Information, that is effective for financial years beginning 1 January 2022 
and 1 January 2023 respectively, as the standards are not applicable to the Group and the 
Company.  
 
The initial application of the accounting standards, amendments and interpretations are not 
expected to have any material financial impacts to the current and prior period financial 
statements of the Group and of the Company. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 

 
(c) Basis of consolidation 

 
(i) Subsidiaries 

Subsidiaries are entities, including structured entities, controlled by the Company. The 
financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial 
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. 
 
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from 
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its 
power over the entity. Potential voting rights are considered when assessing control 
only when such rights are substantive. The Group considers it has de facto power 
over an investee when, despite not having the majority of voting rights, it has the 
current ability to direct the activities of the investee that significantly affect the 
investee’s return.  
 
Investments in subsidiaries are measured in the Company’s statement of financial 
position at cost less any impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as held 
for sale or distribution. The cost of investments includes transaction costs. 

 
(ii) Business combination 

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method from the 
acquisition date, which is the date on which control is transferred to the Group. 
 
For new acquisitions, the Group measures the cost of goodwill at the acquisition date 
as: 

• the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus 

• the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus 

• if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the existing 
equity interest in the acquiree; less 

• the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired 
and liabilities assumed. 

 
When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in 
profit or loss. 
 
For each business combination, the Group elects whether it measures the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of 
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the acquisition date. 
 
Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity 
securities, that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination are 
expensed as incurred. 
 

(iii) Acquisitions of non-controlling interests 
The Group treats all changes in its ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result 
in a loss of control as equity transactions between the Group and its non-controlling 
interest holders. Any difference between the Group’s share of net assets before and 
after the change, and any consideration received or paid, is adjusted to or against 
Group reserves. 
 

(iv) Loss of control 
Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group derecognises the assets and 
liabilities of the former subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the other 
components of equity related to the former subsidiary from the consolidated statement 
of financial position. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in 
profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the former subsidiary, then such 
interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently it is 
accounted for as an equity accounted investee or as an available-for-sale financial 
asset depending on the level of influence retained. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 

(c) Basis of consolidation (Cont’d) 
 
(v) Associates 

Associates are entities, including unincorporated entities, in which the Group has 
significant influence, but not control, over the financial and operating policies. 
 
Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements 
using the equity method less any impairment losses, unless it is classified as held for 
sale or distribution. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs. The 
consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income of the associate, after adjustments if any, to align the 
accounting policies with those of the Group, from the date that significant influence 
commences until the date that significant influence ceases. 
 
When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the carrying 
amount of that interest including any long-term investments is reduced to zero, and the 
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an 
obligation or has made payments on behalf of the associate. 
 
When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate, any retained 
interest in the former associate at the date when significant influence is lost is 
measured at fair value and this amount is regarded as the initial carrying amount of a 
financial asset. The difference between the fair value of any retained interest plus 
proceeds from the interest disposed of and the carrying amount of the investment at 
the date when equity method is discontinued is recognised in profit or loss. 
 
When the Group’s interest in an associate decrease but does not result in a loss of 
significant influence, any retained interest is not re-measured. Any gain or loss arising 
from the decrease in interest is recognised in profit or loss. Any gains or losses 
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are also reclassified 
proportionately to profit or loss if that gain or loss would be required to be reclassified 
to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities. 
 
Investment in an associate is measured in the Company’s statement of financial 
position at cost less any impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as held 
for sale or distribution. The cost of investment includes transaction costs. 
 

(vi) Joint arrangements 
Joint arrangements are arrangements of which the Group has joint control, established 
by contracts requiring unanimous consent for decisions about the activities that 
significantly affect the arrangements’ returns. 
  
Joint arrangements are classified and accounted for as follows: 
 
(i) A joint arrangement is classified as “joint operation” when the Group or the 

Company has rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to an 
arrangement. The Group and the Company account for each of its share of the 
assets, liabilities and transactions, including its share of those held or incurred 
jointly with the other investors, in relation to the joint operation. 

 
(ii) A joint arrangement is classified as “joint venture” when the Group or the 

Company has rights only to the net assets of the arrangements. The Group 
accounts for its interest in the joint venture using the equity method. Investments 
in joint venture are measured in the Company’s statement of financial position at 
cost less any impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as held for 
sale or distribution. The cost of investment includes transaction costs. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 

(c) Basis of consolidation (Cont’d) 
 
(vii) Non-controlling interests 

Non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting period, being the equity in a 
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the equity holders of the Company, 
are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position and statement of 
changes in equity within equity, separately from equity attributable to the owners of the 
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group is presented in the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an 
allocation of the profit or loss and the comprehensive income for the year between 
non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company. 
 
Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the 
non-controlling interests even if doing so causes the non-controlling interests to have 
a deficit balance. 
 

(viii) Transactions eliminated on consolidation 
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses 
arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated 
financial statements. 
 
Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted associate and joint 
venture are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in 
the investees. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, 
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment. 

 
(d) Financial instruments 

 
(i) Initial recognition and measurement 

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are 
originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised 
when the Group or the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions for the 
instrument. 

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing 
component) or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not 
at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing 
component is initially measured at the transaction price. 
 
An embedded derivate is recognised separately from the host contract where the host 
contract is not a financial asset, and accounted for separately if, and only if, the 
derivative is not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host 
contract and the host contact is not measured at fair value through profit or loss. The 
host contract, in the event embedded derivative is recognised separately, is accounted 
for in accordance with policy applicable to the nature of the host contract. 
 

 



ANNUAL REPORT 2021          I            128 
 

 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 

(d) Financial instruments (Cont’d) 
 
(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement  

Financial assets: Classification  

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at:  

(a) amortised cost; 
(b) fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) – debt investment; 
(c) fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) – equity investment; or 
(d) fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). 

 
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the 
Group or the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets in 
which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first 
reporting period following the change in the business model.  

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows and its contractual 
terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The financial assets are not 
designated as at FVTPL. 

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it is held within a business model whose 
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial 
assets, and its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The 
debt investment is not designated as at FVTPL. 

An equity investment is measured at FVOCI if it is not held for trading and the Group 
or the Company can irrevocably elects to present subsequent changes in the 
investment’s fair value in other comprehensive income (“OCI”). This election is made 
on investment-by-investment basis. If not elected, equity investment is measured at 
FVTPL. 

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as 
described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. 
On initial recognition, the Group or the Company may irrevocably designate a financial 
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at 
FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting 
mismatch that would otherwise arise. 
 
Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses  
 

(a) Financial assets at amortised cost 
 

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest 
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in 
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. 
 
Interest income is recognised by applying effective interest rate to the gross 
carrying amount except for credit impaired financial assets where the effective 
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost. 
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 

(d) Financial instruments (Cont’d) 
 
(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (Cont’d) 
 

(b) Financial assets at FVTPL 
 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, 
including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss. 

 
(c) Debt investments at FVOCI 

 
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income 
calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and 
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and 
losses are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated 
in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.  
 
Interest income is recognised by applying effective interest rate to the gross 
carrying amount except for credit impaired financial assets where the effective 
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost. 
 

(d) Equity investments at FVTPL 
  
 These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividend and other net 

gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly 
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.  

 
All financial assets, except for those measured at FVTPL, are subject to review for 
impairment. 

Financial liabilities: Classification and subsequent measurement and gains and 
losses  

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial 
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative 
(except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and 
effective hedging instrument) or it is designated as such on initial recognition.  
 
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, 
including any interest expenses, are recognised in profit or loss. For financial liabilities 
categorised as fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition, the Group and 
the Company recognise the amount of change in fair value of the financial liability that 
is attributable to change in credit risk in the other comprehensive income and 
remaining amount of the change in fair value in the profit or loss, unless the treatment 
of the effects of changes in the liabillity’s credit risk would create or enlarge an 
accounting mismatch. 
 
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are 
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in 
profit or loss. 
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 

(d) Financial instruments (Cont’d) 
 
(iii) Derecognition 

A financial asset or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the contractual 
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or the financial asset is 
transferred to another party without retaining control or substantially all risks and 
rewards of the asset. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the 
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received (including any new asset 
obtained less any new liability assumed) and any cumulative gain or loss that had 
been recognised in equity is recognised in the profit or loss. 
 
A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation 
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. A financial liability is 
also derecognised when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified 
terms are substantially different. On derecognition of a financial liability, the 
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished or 
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash 
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss. 

(iv) Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the 
statement of financial position when, and only when, the Group and the Company 
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to 
settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 
(e) Property, plant and equipment 

(i) Recognition and measurement 
 Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less any accumulated 

depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. 

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset 
and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for 
its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the 
site on which they are located. The cost of self-constructed assets also includes the 
cost of materials and direct labour. For qualifying assets, borrowing costs are 
capitalised in accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing costs. Cost also may 
include transfers from equity of any gain or loss on qualifying cash flow hedges of 
foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment. 

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is 
capitalised as part of the equipment. 

The cost of property, plant and equipment recognised as a result of a business 
combination is based on fair value at acquisition date. The fair value of property is the 
estimated amount or which a property could be exchanged knowledgeably, prudently 
and without compulsion. The fair value of other items of plant and equipment is based 
on the quoted market prices for similar items when available and replacement cost 
when appropriate. 
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d) 

(i) Recognition and measurement (Cont’d) 
 
When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful 
lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant 
and equipment. 

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined 
by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant 
and equipment and is recognised net within ‘other income’ or ‘other expenses’ 
respectively in profit or loss. 
 

(ii) Subsequent costs 
The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic 
benefits embodied within the component will flow to the Group or the Company, and its 
cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant 
and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 

(iii) Depreciation 
Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant 
components of individual assets are assessed, and if a component has a useful life 
that is different from the remainder of that asset, then that component is depreciated 
separately. 

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated 
useful lives of each component of an item of property, plant and equipment. Leased 
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it 
is reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. 
Freehold land is not depreciated. Property, plant and equipment under construction is 
not depreciated until the assets are ready for their intended use. 

The annual depreciation rates used for the current and comparative periods are as 
follows: - 
 

 % 
Buildings 2 
Plant and machinery 10 - 20 
Motor vehicles 20 
Other assets  
- Office equipment 10 - 25 
- Tele-communication equipment 10 - 20 
- Renovation 10 
- Sales office 10 

- Site office 10 

- Signboards 10 

- Furniture and fittings 5 - 10 
- Hotel equipment 20 
- Food and beverage equipment 20 

 
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of the 
reporting period, and adjusted as appropriate. 
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(f) Leased asset 
 
(i) Definition of a lease 

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of 
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess 
whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the 
Group assesses whether: 
 

• the contract involves the use of an identified asset – this may be specified explicitly 
or implicitly, and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the 
capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution 
right, then the asset is not identified; 

• the customer has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from 
use of the asset throughout the period of use; and 

• the customer has the right to direct the use of the asset. The customer has this 
right when it has the decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how 
and for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where the decision about 
how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the customer has 
the right to direct the use of the asset if either the customer has the right to operate 
the asset; or the customer designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and 
for what purpose it will be used. 

 
At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the 
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease and non-lease 
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of 
properties in which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate non-lease 
components and will instead account for the lease and non-lease components as a 
single lease component. 
 

(ii) Recognition and initial measurement 
 
(a) As a lessee 

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease 
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which 
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments 
made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred 
and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to 
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease 
incentives received. 
 
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments 
that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate 
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the respective 
Group entities’ incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group entities use their 
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. 
 
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the 
following: 
 

• fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments less any incentives 
receivable; 

• variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured 
using the index or rate as at the commencement date; 

• amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; 

• the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably 
certain to exercise; and 

• penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably 
certain not to terminate early. 
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(f) Leased asset (Cont’d) 
 
(ii) Recognition and initial measurement (Cont’d) 

 
(a) As a lessee (Cont’d) 
 

The Group excludes variable lease payments that linked to future performance or 
usage of the underlying asset from the lease liability. Instead, these payments 
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the performance or use 
occurs. 
 
The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities 
for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of 
low-value assets. The Group recognises the lease payments associated with 
these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

 
(b) As a lessor 

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each 
lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. 
 
To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the 
lease transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership 
of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, 
then it is an operating lease. 
 
If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Group applies 
MFRS 15 to allocate the consideration in the contract based on the stand-alone 
selling prices. 
 
The Group recognises assets held under a finance lease in its statement of 
financial position and presents them as a receivable at an amount equal to the 
net investment in the lease. The Group uses the interest rate implicit in the lease 
to measure the net investment in the lease. 
 
When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head 
lease and the sublease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a 
sublease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not 
with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term lease to 
which the Group applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the 
sublease as an operating lease. 

 
(iii) Subsequent measurement 

 
(a) As a lessee 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method 
from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the 
right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of 
right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant 
and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease 
liability. 
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(f) Leased asset (Cont’d) 
 
(iii) Subsequent measurement (Cont’d) 

 
(a) As a lessee (Cont’d) 
 

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments 
arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a revision of in-substance 
fixed lease payments, or if there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the 
amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Group 
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or 
termination option. 
 
When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to 
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the 
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 
 

(b) As a lessor 
 
Operating lease 
The Group recognises lease payments received under operating leases as 
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term as part of “revenue”. 
 
Finance lease 
The Group recognises finance income over the lease term, based on a pattern 
reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment in the 
lease. The Group aims to allocate finance income over the lease term on a 
systematic and rational basis. The Group applies the lease payments relating to 
the period against the gross investment in the lease to reduce both the principal 
and the unearned finance income. The net investment in the lease is subject to 
impairment requirements in MFRS 9, Financial Instruments. 

 
(g) Goodwill 

 
Goodwill which arises on business combinations is measured at cost less any accumulated 
impairment losses. In respect of equity accounted investees, the carrying amount of 
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment and an impairment loss on 
such an investment is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the 
carrying amount of the equity accounted investees. 
 
Goodwill is not amortised but is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an 
indication that it may be impaired. 
 

(h) Investment property 
 
(i) Investment property carried at fair value 

Investment properties are properties which are owned or held under a leasehold 
interest to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale in 
the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or 
for administrative purposes. 
 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value with 
any change therein recognised in profit or loss for the period in which they arise. 
Where the fair value of the investment property under construction is not reliably 
determinable, the investment property under construction is measured at cost until 
either its fair value becomes reliably determinable or construction is complete, 
whichever is earlier. 
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(h) Investment property (Cont’d) 
 
(i) Investment property carried at fair value (Cont’d) 
 

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the 
investment property. The cost of self-constructed investment property includes the cost 
of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the 
investment property to a working condition for their intended use and capitalised 
borrowing costs. 
 
An investment property is derecognised on its disposal, or when it is permanently 
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. 
The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is 
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised. 

 
(ii) Reclassification to/from investment property 

When an item of property, plant and equipment is transferred to investment property 
following a change in its use, any difference arising at the date of transfer between the 
carrying amount of the item immediately prior to transfer and its fair value is 
recognised directly in equity as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment. 
However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is 
recognised in profit or loss. Upon disposal of an investment property, any surplus 
previously recorded in equity is transferred to retained earnings, the transfer is not 
made through profit or loss. 
 
When the use of a property changes such that it is reclassified as property, plant and 
equipment or inventories, its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its 
deemed cost for subsequent accounting. 
 

(i) Inventories  
 
(i) Land held for property development 

Land held for property development consists of land where no significant development 
activities have been carried out or where development activities are not expected to 
be completed within the normal operating cycle. Such land is classified within non-
current assets and is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. 

Land held for property development is reclassified as property development costs at 
the point when development activities have commenced and where it can be 
demonstrated that the development activities can be completed within the normal 
operating cycle. 

(ii) Property development cost 

Property development costs are properties being constructed for sale in the ordinary 
course of business and are stated at the lower of costs and net realisable value. The 
cost of land, related development costs common to whole projects and direct building 
costs less cumulative amounts recognised as expense in the profit or loss for property 
under development are carried in the statements of financial position as property 
development costs. 
 
The property development cost is subsequently recognised as an expense in profit or 
loss as and when the control of the inventory is transferred to the customer. Property 
development cost of unsold unit is transferred to completed development unit once 
the development is completed. 
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(i) Inventories (Cont’d) 
 
(iii) Completed development units 

Units of development properties completed and held for sale are stated at the lower of 
cost and net realisable value. Costs comprise costs of acquisition of land including all 
related costs incurred subsequent to the acquisition necessary to prepare the land for 
its intended use, related development costs to projects and direct building costs. 

(iv) Food and beverage and other hotel supplies 
 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes cost 
of purchase plus incidental cost and other costs of bringing the inventories to their 
present location and condition. The cost of inventories is determined on a weighted 
average basis. 
 
Net realisable value is the estimate of the selling price in the ordinary course of 
business, less costs to completion and selling expenses. 
 

(j) Contract assets and liabilities 
 
Contract asset is the right to consideration for goods or services transferred to the 
customers. Contract asset is recognised when the entity has performed under the contract 
but has not yet billed the customer. Contract asset is stated at cost less accumulated 
impairment. 
 
Contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to customer for which the 
Group has received the consideration or has billed the customer. Contract liability is 
recognised when the entity has not yet performed under the contract but has received 
advanced payments from the customer. Contract liabilities also include down payments 
received from customers. 
 
Contract assets are transferred to receivables when the rights to consideration become 
unconditional. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue as the entity performs under 
the contract. 

(k) Contract cost 

(i) Incremental cost of obtaining a contract 

The Group or the Company recognises incremental costs of obtaining contracts when 
the Group or the Company expects to recover these costs. 

(ii) Cost to fulfil a contract 

The Group or the Company recognises a contract cost that relate directly to a contract 
or to an anticipated contract as an asset when the cost generates or enhances 
resources of the Group, will be used in satisfying performance obligations in the future 
and it is expected to be recovered. 

These contract costs are initially measured at cost and amortised on a systematic basis that 
is consistent with the pattern of revenue recognition to which the asset relates. An 
impairment loss is recognised in the profit or loss when the carrying amount of the contract 
cost exceeds the expected revenue less expected cost that will be incurred. Where the 
impairment condition no longer exists or has improved, the impairment loss is reversed to 
the extent that the carrying amount of the contract cost does not exceed the amount that 
would have been recognised had there been no impairment loss recognised previously. 
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(l) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances and deposits with banks and 
highly liquid investments which have an insignificant risk of changes in fair value with 
original maturities of three months or less, and are used by the Group and the Company in 
the management of their short-term commitments. For the purpose of the statement of cash 
flows, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts and pledged 
deposits. 

(m) Impairment 

Financial instruments and contract assets 
 
The Group and the Company recognise loss allowances for expected credit losses (“ECL”) 
on financial assets measured at amortised cost, debt instruments measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income, contract assets and lease receivables.  
 
The Group and the Company apply a two-step approach to measure the ECL on financial 
assets other than trade receivables, contract assets and lease assets. 

 
The Group and the Company measure loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime 
expected credit loss, except for debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk 
at the reporting date, cash and bank balances and other debt securities for which credit 
risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, which are measured at 12-
month expected credit loss. Loss allowances for trade receivables, contract assets and 
lease receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss. 
 
The Group and the Company assess at each financial year end whether there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk for financial assets by comparing the risk of default 
occurring over the expected life with the risk of default since initial recognition. 
 
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly 
since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group and the Company consider 
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or 
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the 
Group’s and the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and 
including forward-looking information. 
 
Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible 
default events over the expected life of the asset, while 12-month expected credit losses 
are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible 
within the 12 months after the reporting date. The maximum period considered when 
estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the Group 
or the Company is exposed to credit risk. 
 
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as 
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the 
entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group and the Company 
expect to receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset. 
 
The Group and the Company estimate the expected credit losses on trade receivables 
using a provision matrix with reference to historical credit loss experience. 
 
An impairment loss in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost is recognised 
in profit or loss and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an 
allowance account. 
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(m) Impairment (Cont’d) 

Financial instruments and contract assets (Cont’d) 
 
An impairment loss in respect of debts investments measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss and the allowance account is 
recognised in other comprehensive income. 
 
At each reporting date, the Group and the Company assess whether financial assets 
carried at amortised cost and debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive 
income are credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit impaired when one or more events 
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset 
have occurred. 
 
Write-off 
 
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or full) to the 
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the 
Group and the Company determine that the debtor does not have assets or sources of 
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-
off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement 
activities in order to comply with the Group’s and the Company’s procedures for recovery 
amounts due. 
 
Other assets 
 
The carrying amounts of the other assets (except for inventories, deferred tax asset, assets 
arising from employee benefits, investment property measured at fair value and non-current 
assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale) are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill and 
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the 
recoverable amount is estimated each period at the same time. 
 
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group 
of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of 
the cash inflows of other assets or cash-generating units. Subject to an operating segment 
ceiling test, for the purpose of goodwill impairment testing, cash-generating units to which 
goodwill has been allocated are aggregated so that the level at which impairment testing is 
performed reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting 
purposes. The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the purposes of impairment 
testing, is allocated to group of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the 
synergies of the combination. 
 
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in 
use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash-
generating unit. 
 
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-
generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. 
 
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect 
of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill 
allocated to the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) and then to reduce 
the carrying amounts of the other assets in the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating unit) on a pro rata basis. 
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 

 
(m) Impairment (Cont’d) 

Other assets (Cont’d) 
 
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, 
impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at the end of each reporting 
period for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment 
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the 
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. An impairment loss is 
reversed only to the extent that asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, 
if no impairment loss had been recognised. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to 
profit or loss in the financial year in which the reversals are recognised. 
 

(n) Equity instruments 
 
Instruments classified as equity are measured at cost on initial recognition and are not 
remeasured subsequently. 
 
(i) Issue expenses 

Cost directly attributable to the issue of instruments classified as equity are recognised 
as a deduction from equity. 

 
(ii) Ordinary shares 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. 
 

(iii) Repurchase, disposal and reissue of share capital (treasury shares) 
When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the amount of the 
consideration paid, including directly attributable costs, net of any tax effects, is 
recognised as a deduction from equity. Repurchased shares that are not subsequently 
cancelled are classified as treasury shares in the statement of changes in equity. 
 
When treasury shares are distributed as share dividends, the cost of the treasury 
shares is applied in the reduction of the share premium account or distributable 
reserves, or both. 
 
When treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the difference between the 
sales consideration net of directly attributable costs and the carrying amount to the 
treasury shares is recognised in equity. 
 

(o) Employee benefits 

(i) Short-term employee benefits 
Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid 
annual leave and sick leave are measured on an undiscounted basis and are 
expensed as the related service is provided. 
 
A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short term cash 
bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation 
to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the 
obligation can be estimated reliably. 
 

(ii) State plans 
The Group’s contributions to statutory pension funds are charged to profit or loss in the 
financial year to which they relate. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to 
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available. 
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 

 
(p) Provision 
 

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or 
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by 
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pretax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding 
of the discount is recognised as finance cost. 
 

(q) Revenue  
 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable in exchange 
for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on 
behalf of third parties. Revenue is recognised when the Group or the Company satisfies a 
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service to the customer, which is 
when the customer obtains control of the good or service.  
 
The Group recognises revenue from contracts with customers at a point in time unless one 
of the following over time criteria is met:  
 
(i)   Does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an 

enforceable right to payment for performance completed to-date; or  
(ii) Creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or 

enhanced; or  
(iii) Provides benefits that the customer simultaneously receives and consumes as the 

Group performs.  
 
(a) Revenue from contracts with customers  

 
(i) Revenue from development property 

The Group develops and sells residential and commercial properties before 
and after completion of construction of the properties. The revenue from 
property development is measured at the fixed transaction price agreed under 
the sales and purchase agreement. Revenue is recognised when control over 
the property has been transferred to customer, either over time or at a point in 
time, depending on the contractual terms. 
 
For development properties whereby the Group is restricted contractually from 
directing the properties for another use, has no alternative use and has an 
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date, revenue is 
recognised over time, based on the construction and other costs incurred to 
date as a proportion of the estimated total construction and other costs to be 
incurred.  
 
For development properties whereby the entity does not have an enforceable 
right to payment for performance completed to date, revenue is recognised 
when the customer obtains control of the asset, usually upon transfer of legal 
title. 
 
Progress billings to the customers based on a payment schedule in the contract 
and are typically triggered upon achievement of specified construction 
milestones. 
 
The Group recognises sales at a point in time for the sale of completed 
properties, when the control of the properties has been transferred to the 
purchasers, being when the properties have been completed and delivered to 
the customers and it is probable that the Group will collect the consideration to 
which it will be entitled to in exchange for the assets sold. 
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 
 
(q) Revenue (Cont’d) 
 

(a) Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont’d) 
 

(ii) Sales of land 
Revenue relating to sale of land is recognised at a point in time when control of 
the asset is transferred to customer. Revenue is not recognised to the extent 
where there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration 
due, associated costs or the possible return of land. 

 
(iii) Services 

Revenue is recognised at a point in time as those services are provided. The 
total consideration in the service contracts is allocated to all services based on 
their relative stand-alone selling prices. 
 

(iv) Hotel and food and beverage revenue 
Hotel room revenue is recognised when service is rendered to the customer 
over their stay at the hotel. The transaction price is the net amount collected 
from the customer. Advance deposits on hotel rooms are recorded as customer 
deposits (i.e. contract liability) until services are provided to the customer. 
 
Revenue from the sale of goods or services is recognised when the food and 
beverage, entertainment and attractions and retail goods is delivered, rendered 
or control transferred to the customer. Payment of the transaction price is due 
immediately when the customer purchases the food and beverage, retail goods 
or services. Advance ticket sales for entertainment and attractions are recorded 
as customer deposits (i.e. contract liability) until services are rendered to the 
customer. 

 

(v) Car park income 
Car park income is accounted for on receipt and receivable basis. 

 
(vi) Management fees 

Management fees are recognised at a point in time when services are rendered. 
 

(b) Dividend income 
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date the Group’s or the 
Company’s right to receive payment is established, which in the case of quoted 
securities is the ex-dividend date. 
 

(c) Rental income 
Rental income from investment property is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an 
integral part of the total rental income, over the term of the lease. Rental income from 
investment and subleased properties are recognised as other income. 
 

(d) Interest income 
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method in profit 
or loss except for interest income arising from temporary investment of borrowings 
taken specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset which is accounted 
for in accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing costs. 
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 

 
(r) Government grants 

 
Government grants are recognised initially as deferred income at fair value when there is 
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that the Company will comply with the 
conditions associated with the grant; they are then recognised in profit or loss as other 
income on a systematic basis in the useful life of the asset. 
 
Grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred are recognised in profit or 
loss as other income on a systematic basis in the same period in which the expenses are 
recognised. 
 

(s) Borrowing costs 
 

Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
production of a qualifying asset are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest 
method. 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get 
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. 
 
The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences 
when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and 
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in 
progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all 
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are 
interrupted or completed. 

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending 
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing eligible for 
capitalisation. 

(t) Income tax 
 
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are 
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or 
items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income. 
 
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the 
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, 
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous financial years. 
 
Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, providing for temporary differences 
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position 
and their tax bases. Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: 
the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction 
that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or 
loss. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the 
temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
 
Where investment properties are carried at their fair value, the amount of deferred tax 
recognised is measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their 
carrying value at the reporting date unless the property is depreciable and is held with the 
objective to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the property 
over time, rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax 
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the 
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted. 
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 
 
(t) Income tax (Cont’d) 

 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset 
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax 
authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle 
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be 
realised simultaneously. 
 
A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits 
will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets 
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.  
 
Any unutilised portion of a tax incentive that is not a tax base of an asset is recognised as a 
deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be 
available against the unutilised tax incentive can be utilised. 
 

(u) Earnings per ordinary share 
 
The Group presents basic earnings per share data for its ordinary shares (“EPS”). 
 
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of 
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the 
period, adjusted for own shares held. 
 
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary 
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted 
for own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which comprise 
convertible notes and share options granted to employees. 
 

(v) Operating segments 
 

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from 
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that 
relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. All operating segments’ 
operating results are reviewed regularly by the chief operating decision maker, which in this 
case is the managing director of the Group, to make decisions about resources to be 
allocated to the segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial 
information is available. 

 
(w) Contingencies 

 
(i) Contingent liabilities 

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the 
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is not recognised in the statement 
of financial position and is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of 
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only 
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are 
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic 
benefits is remote. 
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 

 
(w) Contingencies (Cont’d) 

 
(ii) Contingent assets 

Where it is not probable that there is an inflow of economic benefits, or the amount 
cannot be estimated reliably, the asset is not recognised in the statement of financial 
position and is disclosed as a contingent asset, unless the probability of inflow of 
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be 
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also 
disclosed as contingent assets unless the probability of inflow of economic benefits is 
remote. 

 
(x) Fair value measurement 

 
Fair value of an asset or a liability, except for share-based payment and lease transactions, 
is determined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The 
measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes 
place either in the principal market or in the absence of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market. 

For non-financial asset, the fair value measurement takes into account a market 
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best 
use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and 
best use. 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market 
data as far as possible. Fair value is categorised into different levels in a fair value 
hierarchy based on the input used in the valuation technique as follows: 
 
Level 1: quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 

Group can access at the measurement date. 
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 

asset or a liability, either directly or indirectly. 
Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
 
The Group recognises transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the date of 
the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfers. 
 

(y) Use of estimates and judgments 
 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with MFRSs requires management 
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting 
policies, and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates.  
 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in 
any future periods affected.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 
 
(y) Use of estimates and judgments (Cont’d) 

 
There are no significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying 
accounting policies that have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial 
statements other than those disclosed in the following notes: 
 
(i) Valuation of investment properties 

 
The fair value of investment property is arrived at by reference to market evidence of 
transaction prices for similar property or by considering the aggregate of the present 
value of the estimated cash flows expected to be received from renting out the 
property and is performed by registered independent valuer having an appropriate 
recognised professional qualification and recent experience in the location and 
category of the property being valued. 
 

(ii) Revenue and cost recognition from property development activities 
 

Revenue is recognised as and when the control of the asset is transferred to 
customers and it is probable that the Group will collect the consideration to which it will 
be entitled in exchange for the asset that will be transferred to the customer. 
Depending on the terms of the contract and the applicable laws governing the contract, 
control of the asset may transfer over time or at a point in time.  
 
If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised over the period of the 
contract by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that 
performance obligation based on the contract work-to-date. Significant judgement is 
required in determining the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance 
obligation based on the contract work-to-date corroborated by the level of completion 
of the development based on actual costs incurred to date over the estimated total 
property development costs. The total estimated costs are based on approved 
budgets, which require assessments and judgements to be made on changes in, for 
example, work scope, changes in costs and costs to completion. In making these 
judgements, management relies on past experience and the work of specialists. 
 

(iii) Classification between investment property and property, plant and equipment 
 
The Group has developed certain criteria based on MFRS 140 in making judgement 
whether a property qualifies as an investment property. Investment property is a 
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. 
 
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital 
appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the production or supply of 
goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold 
separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease), the Group would account 
for the portion separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is 
an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production 
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. 

 



ANNUAL REPORT 2021          I            146 
 

 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 
3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 

Group

 As at            

1.1.2021  Additions 

 Disposals/           

Written off       

 As at       

31.12.2021 

2021  RM  RM  RM  RM 

Cost

Freehold land 13,830,084      -                    -                      13,830,084      

Buildings 136,765,033    -                    -                      136,765,033    

Plant and machinery 15,161,535      4,618            (2,186,263)      12,979,890      

Motor vehicles 9,862,800        409,695        (234,066)         10,038,429      

Other assets 67,400,408      369,272        (140,047)         67,629,633      

243,019,860    783,585        (2,560,376)      241,243,069    

Group

 As at            

1.1.2021 

 Charge for  

the year 

 Disposals/           

Written off       

 As at       

31.12.2021 

2021 RM RM  RM RM

Accumulated depreciation

Buildings 26,436,933      4,030,968     -                      30,467,901      

Plant and machinery 5,102,439        665,797        (432,443)         5,335,793        

Motor vehicles 7,044,513        643,296        (203,364)         7,484,445        

Other assets 52,090,705      5,714,080     (137,266)         57,667,519      

90,674,590      11,054,141   (773,073)         100,955,658    

Group

 As at            

1.1.2020  Additions 

 Disposals/           

Written off       

 As at       

31.12.2020 

2020  RM  RM  RM  RM 

Cost

Freehold land 13,830,084      -                    -                      13,830,084      

Buildings 136,765,033    -                    -                      136,765,033    

Plant and machinery 17,682,605      64,950          (2,586,020)      15,161,535      

Motor vehicles 9,816,329        366,167        (319,696)         9,862,800        

Other assets 67,157,425      266,813        (23,830)           67,400,408      

245,251,476    697,930        (2,929,546)      243,019,860    

Group

 As at            

1.1.2020 

 Charge for  

the year 

 Disposals/           

Written off       

 As at       

31.12.2020 

2020 RM RM  RM RM

Accumulated depreciation

Buildings 22,405,965      4,030,968     -                      26,436,933      

Plant and machinery 4,540,639        707,762        (145,962)         5,102,439        

Motor vehicles 6,755,641        583,568        (294,696)         7,044,513        

Other assets 46,247,955      5,857,381     (14,631)           52,090,705      

79,950,200      11,179,679   (455,289)         90,674,590      

2021 2020

RM RM

Net carrying amount
Freehold land 13,830,084      13,830,084      

Buildings 106,297,132    110,328,100    

Plant and machinery 7,644,097        10,059,096      

Motor vehicles 2,553,984        2,818,287        

Other assets 9,962,114        15,309,703      

140,287,411    152,345,270    
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d) 
 

2021 2020

 RM  RM 

Company

Cost 27,853            27,853            

Accumulated depreciation (27,851)           (27,851)           

Net carrying amount 2                     2                     

Signboard

Property, plant and equipment of the Group at cost of RM22,054,954 (2020: RM16,638,088) are 
fully depreciated and still in use. 
 
 

4. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 
 

2021 2020

 RM  RM 

At 1 January 818,091,587       907,261,687       

Additions 67,532,720         53,608,611         

Fair value adjustments 85,574                (142,778,711)      

67,618,294         (89,170,100)        

At 31 December 885,709,881       818,091,587       

Included in the above are:

At fair value:-

  Land 449,617,317       449,531,743       

  Buildings 200,332,399       200,035,973       

649,949,716       649,567,716       

At cost:-

  Building-in-progress 235,760,165       168,523,871       

885,709,881       818,091,587       

Group

 
Included in the investment property is land and building with carrying amount of RM42,480,000 
(2020: RM42,720,000) held under the name of third party, with power of attorney granted to the 
Group. 
 
Investment properties with an aggregate carrying amount of RM378,283,000 (2020: 
RM376,053,000) are pledged as securities for loans and borrowings as referred to in Note 15. 
 
Investment properties comprise a number of freehold shop houses and commercial properties 
leased to third parties. Each of the leases contains an initial non-cancellable period of average 2 
years and subsequent renewals are negotiated with the lessee and average renewal period is 2 
years. 
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4. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d) 
 
The following are recognised in profit or loss in respect of investment properties: 
 

2021 2020

 RM  RM 

Rental income 22,954,652   47,822,262   

Direct operating expenses - income generating investment property (6,930,722)    (11,577,092)  

                                       - non-income generating investment property (301,936)       (322,687)       

Group

 
The fair values of the investment properties were based on indicative valuation by external, 
independent valuers having appropriate recognised professional qualification as follows:  
 
(a) RM229,428,932 (2020: RM232,783,932) arrived at by reference to transaction prices for 

comparable properties. The most significant input into this valuation approach is price per 
square foot of comparable properties. The estimated fair value would increase if the higher of 
the price per square foot. 

 
(b) RM420,520,784 (2020: RM416,783,784) determined by considering the aggregate of the 

present value of the estimated cash flows expected to be received from renting out the 
property using yield rates range from 4% to 7% (2020: 6% to 8%) and weighted average 
discount rate at 8% (2020: 7%). The estimated fair value would decrease if the lower of the 
yield rate or the higher of the discount rate. 
 

Fair value of investment properties are categorised as Level 3 as described in Note 2(x) to the 
financial statements. 

 
Building-in-progress is measured at cost because the fair value of properties under construction is 
not yet determinable as of reporting date. The fair value of the property is expected to be reliably 
determinable when construction is complete. 
 

 
5. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 

 

2021 2020

 RM  RM 

At cost:-

  Unquoted shares 1,227,381,958  175,521,958     

Company
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5. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 
 
Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: - 

Name of                                      

subsidiaries

Country of 

incorporation Principal activities

2021 2020

Bintang-Bintang Malaysia Property investment and 100% 100%

  Development Sdn Bhd    development

Bintang-Bintang Malaysia Property development 100% 100%

  Enterprise Sdn Bhd 

Clarion Housing Malaysia Property investment 100% 100%

  Development Sdn Bhd

Eversonic Sdn Bhd Malaysia Property investment and 100% 100%

  development

Exportex Sdn Bhd Malaysia Property development 100% 100%

Goodpark Development Malaysia Property development 100% 100%

  Sdn Bhd

Harapan Terang Sdn Bhd Malaysia Property development 100% 100%

Harapan Terang Malaysia Property development 100% 100%

  Properties Sdn Bhd

Harapan Terang Realty Malaysia Property development 100% 100%

  Sdn Bhd

Khoo Soon Lee Realty Malaysia Property investment and 100% 100%

  Sdn Bhd    development

KSL Medini Development Malaysia Property development 100% 100%

  Sdn Bhd

KSL City Management Malaysia Property management 100% 100%

  Sdn Bhd 

KSL Perfect Builder Malaysia Property investment 100% 100%

  Sdn Bhd

KSL Properties Construction Malaysia Dormant 100% 100%

  Sdn Bhd

Effective 

ownership 

interest
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5. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 
 

Name of                                      

subsidiaries 

Country of 

incorporation Principal activities

2021 2020

KSL Properties Sdn Bhd Malaysia Property investment, development 100% 100%

  and hotel operations

KSL Properties Malaysia Car park operations and property 100% 100%

  Management Sdn Bhd   management services

Prosper Plus Industry Malaysia Property development 100% 100%

  Sdn Bhd

Sejota Sdn Bhd Malaysia Property development 100% 100%

Sering Cemerlang Malaysia Dormant 100% 100%

  Sdn Bhd

Sure Success Properties Malaysia Property investment 100% 100%

  Sdn Bhd   and hotel operations

Tai Lik Development Malaysia Property development 100% 100%

  (Batu Anam) Sdn Bhd

Villa Bestari Sdn Bhd Malaysia Property investment 100% 100%

VIP Beyond Sdn Bhd Malaysia Property development 100% 100%

Held through subsidiary:

KSL Development Malaysia Property investment and 100% 100%

  Sdn Bhd *   development

Gantang Jaya Sdn Bhd ** Malaysia Property development 100% 100%

Effective 

ownership 

interest

* Subsidiary of Harapan Terang Sdn. Bhd. 
** Subsidiary of KSL Perfect Builder Sdn. Bhd. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 

6. OTHER INVESTMENT 
 

2021 2020

 RM  RM 

At fair value through profit or loss:-
  Quoted shares, in Singapore           1,482,759           1,268,094 

Group

 
 
 

7. INVENTORIES 
 

2021 2020

 RM  RM 

Non-current

Land held for property development    1,098,630,589    1,067,092,946 

Current

Property development cost 421,885,629     386,463,740     

Completed development units, at cost 367,088,929     487,767,294     

Food and beverages and other hotel supplies, at cost 538,425            623,077            

789,512,983     874,854,111     

Total inventories 1,888,143,572  1,941,947,057  

Group

 
(i) Land held for property development 

 

2021 2020

 RM  RM 

At 1 January 1,067,092,946   1,017,844,835   

Additions 37,811,746        92,409,258        

Disposal (211,820)            (22,542,470)       

Transfer to property development costs (Note 7(ii)) (6,062,283)         (20,618,677)       

At 31 December 1,098,630,589   1,067,092,946   

Included in the above are:

Freehold land, at surrogate cost 705,120,863      690,258,123      

Leasehold land, at cost 190,381,095      190,381,095      

Development costs, at cost 203,128,631      186,453,728      

1,098,630,589   1,067,092,946   

 
Included in the land held for property development is land with carrying amount of 
RM2,667,792 (2020: RM2,667,792) held under the name of a third party, with power of 
attorney granted to the Group. 

 
Freehold land of the Group with carrying amount of RM149,948,960 (2020: RM144,816,020) 
is pledged as security for loans and borrowings as referred to in Note 15. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 

7. INVENTORIES (Cont’d) 
 
(ii) Property development costs 

 

2021 2020

 RM  RM 

At 1 January: 

 - Freehold land 125,499,516     118,096,869     

 - Leasehold land -                        4,700,131         

 - Development expenditure 375,504,911     332,639,317     

 - Cumulative costs recognised to profit or loss (114,540,687)    (137,726,244)    

      386,463,740     317,710,073     

Cost incurred during the year:

 - Development expenditure 134,550,076     175,974,959     

Recognised during the year (Note 18) (80,008,896)      (59,723,223)      

54,541,180       116,251,736     

Transfer from land held for property 

  development (Note 7(i)) 6,062,283         20,618,677       

Transfer to inventories of completed 

  development units (25,181,574)      (68,116,746)      

(19,119,291)      (47,498,069)      

At 31 December 421,885,629     386,463,740     

Freehold land, at cost 127,138,232     125,499,516     

Development costs 410,869,035     375,504,911     

Recognised in profit or loss (116,121,638)    (114,540,687)    

421,885,629     386,463,740     

Group

Included in the development costs of the Group are following expenses capitalised during the 
financial year: 
 

2021 2020

 RM  RM 

Rental of machinery 2,249,824        5,281,883        

Group
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 

8. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 
 

2021 2020 2021 2020

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

Trade receivables:-

Receivables from contracts 

  with customers    172,174,055      77,552,187                      -                      - 

Other receivables:-

Contract cost 3,030,700      142,571                              -                      - 

Deposit for acquisition of land 90,000           1,066,287                           -                      - 

Sundry receivables 4,193,958      3,938,577      -                     -                     

Sundry deposits 8,207,808      6,609,072      1,055             -                     

Prepayments 279,923         180,553         -                     -                     

15,802,389    11,937,060    1,055             -                     

187,976,444  89,489,247    1,055             -                     

CompanyGroup

 

Credit terms of trade receivables range from 1 to 3 months (2020: 1 to 3 months). 

 
Contract cost represents incremental costs incurred as a result of obtaining contracts and are 
recoverable. It primarily comprises promotion expenses, sales commission and legal costs. 
Capitalised contract costs are amortised when the related revenues are recognised for the 
respective financial years.  
 

2021 2020

Contract costs  RM  RM 

At 1 January 142,571            1,945,010         

Incurred during the year 5,850,358         142,571            

Less: Amortised to profit or loss (2,962,229)        (1,945,010)        

At 31 December 3,030,700         142,571            

Group

The Group applies the practical expedient in MFRS 15 and recognises the incremental costs of 
obtaining contracts as an expense when incurred if the amortisation period of the assets that the 
Group otherwise would have recognised is one year or less. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 

9. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES 
 

2021 2020

 RM  RM 

Contract assets

  Property development 52,966,936       16,672,346       

Contract liabilities
  Property development 7,567,754         7,023,654         

Group

 
The Group issues progress billings to purchasers when the billing milestones are attained. The 
contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights to consideration for work completed on 
property development but not yet billed at the reporting date. The contract liabilities primarily relate 
to the advance consideration received from a customer for property development, which revenue 
is recognised when the performance obligation is satisfied over time. 

 
Significant changes to contract assets and contract liabilities balances during the year are as 
follows: 

 

2021 2020

 RM  RM 

  liability balance at the beginning of the year        7,023,654        7,741,600 

  beginning of the year to trade receivables 16,672,346    14,136,544    

Group

Transfer from contract assets recognised at the 

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract

 

The revenue in related to unsatisfied performance obligations at the end of the reporting period are 
expected to be recognised in the following periods: 
 

2021 2020

 RM  RM 

Within 1 year 75,897,235       23,356,120       

Between 1 and 4 years 27,720,904       3,676,681         

103,618,139     27,032,801       

Group

 

 

10. AMOUNT DUE BY/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES 
 

The amounts due by/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, bear interest at average of 1.82% (2020: 
2.15%) per annum and are repayable on demand. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 

11. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 
 

2021 2020 2021 2020

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

Deposits placed with

  licensed banks 145,617,988     143,480,645     -                    -                    

Short-term investments 35,339,524       72,923,323       -                    30,862,652    

Bank balances and cash 71,883,754       67,471,174       157,121         253,312         

252,841,266     283,875,142     157,121         31,115,964    

Group Company

 
(a) Included in bank balances and cash of the Group is amount of RM7,694,524 (2020: 

RM8,495,560) held pursuant to Section 7A of the Housing Development (Control and 
Licensing) Act, 1966 and are restricted from use in other operations. 
 

(b) Short-term investments represent investment in highly liquid money market instruments which 
are readily convertible to known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of 
change in value. 
 

(c) The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities are as follows: 
 

Term Revolving Total

loans credits

 RM  RM  RM 

Group

At 1 January 2020 108,625,972  -                   108,625,972   

Cash flows:

Repayment (8,133,348)     -                   (8,133,348)      

At 31 December 2020 100,492,624  -                   100,492,624   

Cash flows:

Drawdown -                     20,000,000  20,000,000     

Repayment (11,829,348)   -                   (11,829,348)    

At 31 December 2021 88,663,276    20,000,000  108,663,276   
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 

12. SHARE CAPITAL 
 

Number RM Number RM

  classified as equity instrument:

   Ordinary shares:- 

   As at 1 January/31 December 1,037,508,399  699,234,524  1,037,508,399  699,234,524  

2021 2020

Issued and fully paid shares 

Group/Company

 
 
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and 
are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. In respect of the Company’s 
treasury shares that are held by the Company as referred to in Note 13(b), all rights are 
suspended until those shares are reissued. 
 
 

13. RESERVES 
 

2021 2020 2021 2020

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

Distributable

  Retained earnings 2,424,655,425   2,310,243,635   589,753,411      583,290,871      

Non-distributable

  Treasury shares (24,776,017)       (24,776,017)       (24,776,017)       (24,776,017)       

  Revaluation reserve 17,013,146        17,013,146        -                         -                         

(7,762,871)         (7,762,871)         (24,776,017)       (24,776,017)       

2,416,892,554   2,302,480,764   564,977,394      558,514,854      

Group Company

 
 

(a) Revaluation reserve 
 

2021 2020

Group  RM  RM 

At 1 January 17,013,146    17,389,722    

Realised revaluation surplus -                     (376,576)        

At 31 December 17,013,146    17,013,146    

 
Prior to adoption of FRS 140 on 1 January 2006, the revaluation reserve is used to record 
increase in fair value of investment properties and land held for property development and 
decreases to the extent that such decrease relates to an increase on the same asset in this 
reserve. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 

13. RESERVES (Cont’d) 
 
(b) Treasury shares 

 
The shareholders of the Company, by an ordinary resolution passed in the Annual General 
Meeting held on 27 May 2021, renewed their approval for the Company’s plan to repurchase 
its own shares. The directors of the Company are committed to enhance the value of the 
Company to its shareholders and believe that the repurchase plan can be applied in the best 
interests of the Company and its shareholders. 

 
The Company did not repurchase any of its issued ordinary shares from the open market 
during the financial year. 
 
Treasury shares have no rights in voting, dividends and participation in any other distribution. 
Treasury shares shall not be taken into account in calculating the number or percentage of 
shares or of a class of shares in the Company for any purposes including substantial 
shareholding, take-overs, notices, the requisition of meeting, the quorum for a meeting and the 
result of a vote on a resolution at a meeting. 
 
At 31 December 2021, the Company held 20,292,400 (2020: 20,292,400) of the Company’s 
shares. The number of outstanding ordinary shares in issue after deducting treasury shares is 
therefore 1,017,215,999 (2020: 1,017,215,999) ordinary shares. 
 
 

14. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 
 

2021 2020 2021 2020

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

Non-current

Retention sums -                       51,457              -                    -                    

Deposits payable 20,493,984       22,968,909       -                    -                    

20,493,984       23,020,366       -                    -                    

Current

Trade payables 40,497,575       46,061,905       -                    -                    

Other payables: -

Sundry payables 16,471,536       14,070,356       2,880            2,880            

Deposits payable 5,544,555         5,322,345         -                    -                    

Accrued construction costs 19,056,756       41,090,036       -                    -                    

Accruals 22,316,456       10,451,778       165,269        164,475        

Total other payables 63,389,303       70,934,515       168,149        167,355        

103,886,878     116,996,420     168,149        167,355        

124,380,862     140,016,786     168,149        167,355        

Group Company

Credit terms of trade payable range from 1 to 3 months (2020: 1 to 3 months). 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 
15. LOANS AND BORROWINGS 

 

2021 2020

RM RM

Non-current

Secured

- Term loans 68,337,928      88,154,607      

68,337,928      88,154,607      

Current

Secured

20,000,000      -                       

- Term loans 20,325,348      12,338,017      

40,325,348      12,338,017      

108,663,276    100,492,624    

- Revolving credit

Group

The loans and borrowings are secured by means of: - 
 
(a) fixed charge over the investment properties of the Group as referred to in Note 4; 
(b) fixed charge over the land held for property development of the Group as referred to in Note 

7(i);  
(c) corporate guarantee by the Company. 
 

 

16. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 
 

2021 2020

 RM  RM 

Movement in temporary differences during the year

At 1 January (55,343,071)    (72,145,065)    

Recognised in profit or loss (Note 22) 1,256,900       16,801,994     

At 31 December (54,086,171)    (55,343,071)    

Represented by:

Deferred tax liabilities (54,086,171)    (55,343,071)    

(54,086,171)    (55,343,071)    

Group
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 

16. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Cont’d) 
 
The components of deferred tax liabilities as at the end of the financial year, prior to offsetting are 
as follows: - 
 

Accelerated

Unrealised capital 

Fair value revaluation allowances

adjustment surplus and others Total

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

Group

Deferred tax liabilities

2021

At 1 January     (41,806,277)      (8,750,701)        (4,786,093) (55,343,071)   

Recognised in profit or loss           164,900                      -         1,092,000 1,256,900      

At 31 December     (41,641,377)      (8,750,701)        (3,694,093)    (54,086,171)

2020

At 1 January     (57,610,677)      (8,807,295)        (5,727,093) (72,145,065)   

Recognised in profit or loss      15,804,400            56,594 941,000           16,801,994    

At 31 December     (41,806,277)      (8,750,701) (4,786,093)      (55,343,071)   

 

17. REVENUE 
 

2021 2020 2021 2020

 RM  RM RM RM

Revenue from contract with    

  customers 444,872,629   292,851,821   775,100        861,100        

Other revenue:-

Rental income 22,954,652     47,822,262     -                    -                    

Dividend income -                      -                      6,000,000     177,400,000 

22,954,652     47,822,262     6,000,000     177,400,000 

467,827,281   340,674,083   6,775,100     178,261,100 

Group Company
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 

17. REVENUE (Cont’d) 
 
Disaggregation of the revenue from contract with customers: 
 

2021 2020 2021 2020

 RM  RM RM RM

Major goods and services

Sale of development 

  properties 141,288,502      139,100,956     -                    -                    

Sale of completed 

   development units 273,082,140      99,223,969       -                    -                    

Hotel and food and beverage 28,382,449        27,163,074       -                    -                    

Car park income 748,458             1,320,318         -                    -                    

Sale of land -                         25,066,616       -                    -                    

Other trade sales 1,371,080          976,888            -                    -                    

Management fees from

  subsidiaries -                         -                       775,100        861,100        

444,872,629      292,851,821     775,100        861,100        

Timing of revenue recognised

At a point in time 303,584,127      153,750,865     -                    -                    

Over time 141,288,502      139,100,956     775,100        861,100        

444,872,629      292,851,821     775,100        861,100        

Group Company

 
18. COST OF SALES 

 

2021 2020 2021 2020

 RM  RM RM RM

Property development 

  costs (Note 7(ii)) 80,008,896       59,723,223       -                -               

Cost of inventories sold 145,859,939     57,388,933       -                -               

Cost of land -                       22,542,470       -                -               

Post construction cost 4,009,403         4,744                -                -               

Cost of running hotel and

  food and beverage 6,255,065         8,576,441         -                -               

Cost of running investment properties 6,818,425         10,964,975       -                -               

Cost of car park -                       52,810              -                -               

Other trade cost 217,688            642,170            -                -               

243,169,416     159,895,766     -                -               

Group Company
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 
19. OTHER INCOME 

 

2021 2020 2021 2020

 RM  RM RM RM

Interest income of financial 

  assets at amortised cost 4,669,612     7,793,209     1,176,220     22,994,765   

Rental income 6,187,364     5,632,189     -                    -                    

Sundry income -                    3,976,770     -                    -                    

Forfeiture income 591,534        837,469        -                    -                    

Dividend income from 

  other investment -                    19,797          -                    -                    

Gain on fair value of equity

  investment 194,261        -                    -                    -                    

Fair value adjustment of

  investment property 85,574          -                    -                    -                    

Government grant 401,400        275,400        -                    -                    

Miscellaneous 3,270,512     -                    -                    -                    

15,400,257   18,534,834   1,176,220     22,994,765   

Group Company

 
20. FINANCE COSTS 

 

2021 2020 2021 2020

 RM  RM RM RM

Interest expense of financial

  liabilities that are not at fair 

   value through profit or loss:

  Bank interest              8,000                      - -                    -                    

  Term loans interest       3,466,124       4,236,387 -                    -                    

  Inter-company loan interest -                    -                    570,672        2,812,179     

3,474,124     4,236,387     570,672        2,812,179     

  Bank charges 337,263        408,871        2,461            2,507            

3,811,387     4,645,258     573,133        2,814,686     

Group Company
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 
21. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 

 

2021 2020 2021 2020

RM RM RM RM

Profit before tax are stated after

  charging/(crediting): -

  Auditors' remuneration:

  Statutory 

  - current year 225,000         224,000         20,000           20,000           

  - prior year (7,000)           -                    -                    -                    

  Non-statutory 7,000             9,200             3,000             3,000             

  Depreciation of property, plant

    and equipment 11,054,141    11,179,679    -                    -                    

  Fair value adjustment of 

    investment property -                    142,778,711  -                    -                    

  Non-executive directors'

   remuneration:

  -  fees 90,000           90,000           90,000           90,000           

  -  other emoluments 11,000           15,000           11,000           15,000           

  Executive directors' remuneration:

    Other emoluments

    - directors of the Company 20,626,172    16,590,003    594,902         667,094         

    - directors of subsidiaries 10,078,812    6,428,773      -                    -                    

  Loss on disposal of property,  

    plant and equipment 4,403             14,000           -                    -                    

  Loss on fair value of equity

    investment -                    67,708           -                    -                    

  Property, plant and equipment 

    written off 163,495         109,317         -                    -                    

  Rental of equipment 27,881           2,830             -                    -                    

  Rental of premises 106,950         174,600         -                    -                    

  Staff costs (excludes 

   directors’ remuneration):

  - wages, salaries and others 17,073,365    21,158,218    -                    -                    

  - contribution to state plans 1,626,782      1,995,787      -                    -                    

  - retrenchment costs -                    479,709         -                    -                    

  - other personnel costs 837,641         1,118,123      -                    -                    

Group Company

 
The details of executive directors’ remuneration of the Company during the year are as follows: 
 

2021 2020 2021 2020

RM RM RM RM

  Other emoluments:

  - salary and bonus 17,350,500    13,969,000    517,500         580,000         

  - contribution to state plans 3,272,970      2,619,260      74,700           85,350           

  - other personnel costs 2,702             1,743             2,702             1,744             

20,626,172    16,590,003    594,902         667,094         

Group Company
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 
22. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 

 

2021 2020 2021 2020

RM RM RM RM

Recognised in profit or loss: -

Current tax expense: -

Malaysian 

- current year 30,972,669      28,727,150      24,000             4,685,000        

- prior years (3,603,104)       (150,967)          (4,420)             (2,109)             

Real property gain tax 154,593           -                       -                      -                      

27,524,158      28,576,183      19,580             4,682,891        

Deferred tax expense: -

Relating to origination and reversal of

  temporary differences (Note 16) (1,256,900)       (16,801,994)     -                      -                      

(1,256,900)       (16,801,994)     -                      -                      

Total income tax expense 26,267,258      11,774,189      19,580             4,682,891        

Reconciliation of tax expense: -

Profit/(Loss) before tax 140,679,048    (51,706,017)     6,482,120        197,431,240    

Income tax calculated using 

  Malaysian tax rate of 24% 33,762,972      (12,409,444)     1,555,709        47,383,498      

Income not subject to tax (191,922)          (150,154)          (1,531,709)      (42,744,000)    

Non-deductible expenses 1,134,965        7,013,451        -                      45,502             

Effect of lower tax rate (914,310)          16,462,723      -                      -                      

Deferred tax asset not recognised 

  during the year 243,824           1,416,326        -                      -                      

Utilisation of previously unrecognised

  unabsorbed capital allowances

   and tax losses (4,165,167)       (407,746)          -                      -                      

Overprovided in prior years (3,603,104)       (150,967)          (4,420)             (2,109)             
Tax expense for the year 26,267,258      11,774,189      19,580             4,682,891        

Group Company

Unrecognised deferred tax assets 
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items: 
 

2021 2020

RM RM

Unabsorbed capital allowances 72,374           6,804,000      

Unutilised tax losses 4,292,253      15,401,400    

Group 

Potential deferred tax assets are not recognised in the financial statements because it is not 
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available in the future to offset the tax losses. The 
unutilised tax losses can be carried forward for 10 consecutive years of assessment and the 
unabsorbed capital allowances do not expire under current tax legislation. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 
23. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER ORDINARY SHARE 

 
Basic earnings/(loss) per ordinary share 
 
The calculation of basic earnings per ordinary share at the end of reporting period was based on 
the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders and a weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding excluding treasury shares held by the Company, calculated as follows: 

2021 2020

Profit/(Loss) attributable to ordinary shareholders (RM) 114,411,790      (63,480,206)       

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31 December 1,017,215,999   1,017,215,999   

Basic earnings/(loss) per ordinary share (sen) 11.25                 (6.24)                  

Group

Diluted earnings/(loss) per ordinary share 
 
There are no dilutive potential ordinary shares. 
 
 

24. OPERATING SEGMENTS 
 
The Group has four reportable segments, as described below, which are offer different products 
and services. For each of the business segments, the Group Managing Director reviews the 
internal management reports on monthly basis. The following summary describes the operations in 
each of the Group’s reportable segments: 
 
(i) Property development  - The development of residential and commercial properties; 
(ii) Property investment  - Investment of real properties, mall and hotel operator; 
(iii) Investment holding  - Provision of management services to the subsidiaries; and 
(iv) Car park operation  - Car park management services 
 
Other non-reportable segments comprise operations mainly related to sales of construction 
materials. None of these segments met the quantitative thresholds for reporting segments in 2021 
and 2020. 

 
Performance is measured based on revenue and operating profit as the management believes that 
such information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of the operation. 
 
The directors are of the opinion that all inter-segment transactions have been entered into in the 
normal course of business and have been established on terms and conditions that are mutually 
agreed upon. 
 
Segment assets 
The total of segment asset is measured based on all assets of a segment, as included in the 
internal management reports that are reviewed by the Group Managing Director. Segment total 
asset is used to measure the return of assets of each segment. 
 
Segment liabilities 
Segment liabilities information is also included in the internal management reports provided to the 
Group Managing Director.  

 
Segment capital expenditure 
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the financial year to acquire property, 
plant and equipment and investment properties. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 

24.   OPERATING SEGMENTS (Cont’d) 
 

Property Property Carpark Investment

development investment operation holding Others Elimination Total

Group  RM  RM  RM  RM  RM RM RM

2021

Revenue

External sales

- Sales of properties 414,873,846       -                        -                   -                          -                 (503,204)              414,370,642      

- Rental income -                         23,074,652       -                   -                          -                 (120,000)              22,954,652        

- Hotel, food and beverage -                         28,382,449       -                   -                          -                 -                           28,382,449        

- Carpark income -                         -                        748,458       -                          -                 -                           748,458             

- Other trade sales 1,371,080           -                        -                   -                          -                 -                           1,371,080          

Inter-segment -                         -                        -                   6,775,100           -                 (6,775,100)           -                         

416,244,926       51,457,101       748,458       6,775,100           -                 (7,398,304)           467,827,281      

Other income

- Rental income 6,262,527           77,901              -                   -                          -                 (153,064)              6,187,364          

- Others 7,666,003           896,824            49,605         536,286              64,175        -                           9,212,893          

Inter-segment 389,386              167,310            13,076         639,934              -                 (1,209,706)           -                         

14,317,916         1,142,035         62,681         1,176,220           64,175        (1,362,770)           15,400,257        

Results

Segment results 129,979,885       14,284,227       354,492       7,055,232           26,283        (7,209,684)           144,490,435      

Finance cost (3,811,387)         

Income tax (26,267,258)       

Net profit for the year 114,411,790      
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 

24. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Cont’d) 
 

Property Property Carpark Investment

development investment operation holding Others Elimination Total

Group  RM  RM  RM  RM  RM RM RM

2021

Other information

Segment assets 2,655,609,292    1,012,139,907  2,031,778    1,304,039,500    2,167,133   (1,565,162,469)    3,410,825,141   

Consolidated total assets 3,410,825,141   

Segment liabilities 364,485,011       11,506,177       233,948       39,827,583         2,313,918   (123,668,574)       294,698,063      

Consolidated total liabilities 294,698,063      

Capital expenditure 588,245              -                        -                   195,340              -                 -                           783,585             

Depreciation of property, 

  plant and equipment 1,704,400           9,234,622         115,119       -                          -                 -                           11,054,141        

2020

Revenue

External sales

- Sales of properties 263,391,541       -                        -                   -                          -                 -                           263,391,541      

- Rental income -                         47,954,862       -                   -                          -                 (132,600)              47,822,262        

- Hotel, food and beverage -                         27,163,074       -                   -                          -                 -                           27,163,074        

- Carpark income -                         -                        1,320,318    -                          -                 -                           1,320,318          

- Other trade sales 976,888              -                        -                   -                          -                 -                           976,888             

Inter-segment -                         -                        -                   178,261,100       -                 (178,261,100)       -                         

264,368,429       75,117,936       1,320,318    178,261,100       -                 (178,393,700)       340,674,083      
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 

24. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Cont’d) 
 

Property Property Carpark Investment

development investment operation holding Others Elimination Total

Group  RM  RM  RM  RM  RM RM RM

Other income

- Rental income 5,745,692           104,561            -                   -                          -                 (218,064)              5,632,189          

- Others 10,726,127         1,432,791         29,241         704,868              9,618          -                           12,902,645        

Inter-segment 2,482,844           289,175            40,160         22,289,896         -                 (25,102,075)         -                         

18,954,663         1,826,527         69,401         22,994,764         9,618          (25,320,139)         18,534,834        

Results

Segment results 25,980,936         (71,156,173)      844,653       200,245,926       (474,026)    (202,502,075)       (47,060,759)       

Finance cost (4,645,258)         

Income tax (11,774,189)       

Net loss for the year (63,480,206)       

Other information

Segment assets 2,371,223,660    926,886,444     1,771,693    1,274,207,040    1,816,181   (1,271,313,595)    3,304,591,423   

Consolidated total assets 3,304,591,423   

Segment liabilities 1,319,664,102    50,424,063       253,036       16,457,662         2,012,833   (1,085,935,561)    302,876,135      

Consolidated total liabilities 302,876,135      

Capital expenditure 564,100              133,830            -                   -                          -                 -                           697,930             

Depreciation of property, 

  plant and equipment 1,659,678           9,400,028         119,973       -                          -                 -                           11,179,679        
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 
25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  

(a) Categories of financial instruments 
 

The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments categorised as follows: 
 
(i) Financial assets measured at amortised cost (‘FAAC’) 
(ii) Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (‘FLAC’) 
(iii) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’) 

 

2021 2020 2021 2020

Note RM RM RM RM

Financial assets

FAAC

Trade and other receivables,

  exclude prepayments

  and contract cost 8 184,665,821   89,166,123     -                      -                         

Amount due by subsidiaries 10 -                      -                      76,499,364     1,067,569,117   

Cash and bank balances, 

  exclude short-term investments 11 217,501,742   210,951,819   157,121          253,312             

402,167,563   300,117,942   76,656,485     1,067,822,429   

FVTPL

Other investment 6 1,482,759       1,268,094       -                      -                         

Cash and bank balances

- Short-term investments 11 35,339,524     72,923,323     -                      30,862,652        

438,989,846   374,309,359   76,656,485     1,098,685,081   

Financial liabilities

FLAC

Trade and other payables 14 (124,380,862)  (140,016,786)  (168,149)         (167,355)            

Amount due to subsidiaries 10 -                      -                      (40,716,113)    (14,636,270)       

Loans and borrowings 15 (108,663,276)  (100,492,624)  -                      -                         

(233,044,138)  (240,509,410)  (40,884,262)    (14,803,625)       

CompanyGroup

 

(b) Financial risk management 
 
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 
-  Credit risk 
-  Liquidity risk 
-  Market risk 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 
 
(b) Financial risk management (Cont’d) 

 
 Credit risk  

 
Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a 
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Group’s exposure to credit 
risk arises principally from the individual characteristics of its receivables from customers. The 
Company’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from loans and advances to subsidiaries 
and financial guarantees given to banks for credit facilities granted to subsidiaries. There are 
no significant changes as compared to prior periods. 

 
(i) Trade receivables and contract assets 

 
Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk 
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on 
an ongoing basis. 
 
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether any of the trade receivables and 
contract assets are credit impaired. 
 
The gross carrying amounts of credit impaired trade receivables and contract assets are 
written off (either partially or full) when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. 
Nevertheless, trade receivables and contract assets that are written off could still be 
subject to enforcement activities. 
 
Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral 
As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk arising from 
trade receivables and contract assets are represented by the carrying amounts in the 
statement of financial position. 
 
The Group does not require collateral in respect of trade receivables and contract assets. 
The Group does not have trade receivable and contract asset for which no loss 
allowance is recognised because of collateral. 
 
Concentration of credit risk 
The exposure to credit risk for trade receivables (Note 8) and contract assets (Note 9) by 
operating segments was as follows: 
 

2021 2020

 RM  RM 

Operating segments

Property development 210,433,530    83,503,875      

Property investment 14,553,118      10,652,635      

Others 154,343           68,023             

225,140,991    94,224,533      

 

Impairment losses 
 
(i) Credit risk arising from property development 

The Group does not have any significant credit risk as its services and products are 
predominantly rendered and sold to a large number of customers using financing 
from reputable end-financiers. Credit risks with respect to trade receivables are 
limited as the ownership and rights to the properties revert to the Group in the event 
of default. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 
25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 

 
(b) Financial risk management (Cont’d) 
 

Credit risk (Cont’d) 
 
(i) Trade receivables and contract assets (Cont’d) 

 
Impairment losses (Cont’d) 
 
(ii) Credit risk arising from property investment 

Credit risk arising from outstanding receivables from tenants is minimised by closely 
monitoring the limit granted to the tenants and their credit worthiness. In addition, 
the tenants have placed security deposits with the Group which act as collateral. 
 
As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the security deposits is 
approximately RM20,493,984 (2020: RM22,968,909). 

 
The Group does not have any significant exposure to any individual or counterparty nor 
does it has any major concentration of credit risk related to any financial instruments. 
 

Property 

development

Property 

investment Others Total

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

2021

Current (Not past due) 53,300,179       1,285,800      -                 54,585,979      

Past due 1 to 30 days 71,477,807       2,286,627      57,073        73,821,507      

Past due 31 to 60 days 28,986,415       1,297,090      36,119        30,319,624      

Past due 61 to 90 days 6,622,147         1,278,200      11,179        7,911,526        

Past due 91 to 120 days 15,851,575       383,400         18,857        16,253,832      

Past due more than 121 days 34,195,407       8,022,001      31,115        42,248,523      

210,433,530     14,553,118    154,343      225,140,991    

Trade receivables 157,466,594     14,553,118    154,343      172,174,055    

Contract assets 52,966,936       -                     -                 52,966,936      

210,433,530     14,553,118    154,343      225,140,991    

2020

Current (Not past due) 36,881,117       1,720,513      38,802        38,640,431      

Past due 1 to 30 days 14,955,602       6,700,656      23,621        21,679,879      

Past due 31 to 60 days 5,888,146         934,300         3,294          6,825,740        

Past due 61 to 90 days 8,264,368         298,656         2,306          8,565,329        

Past due 91 to 120 days 2,766,862         3,800             -                 2,770,662        

Past due more than 121 days 14,747,781       994,711         -                 15,742,492      

83,503,875       10,652,635    68,023        94,224,533      

Trade receivables 66,831,529       10,652,635    68,023        77,552,187      

Contract assets 16,672,346       -                     -                 16,672,346      

83,503,875       10,652,635    68,023        94,224,533      

 

No allowance is made for impairment for trade receivables that are neither past due nor 
credit impaired and contract assets based on the Group’s historical credit loss 
experience and forecast of economic conditions. 
 
The Group’s trade receivables that are past due but not credit impaired relate to 
customers for which there is low probability that the receivables are not fully recoverable. 
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 
 
(b) Financial risk management (Cont’d) 
 

Credit risk (Cont’d) 
 
(ii) Cash and bank balances 

 
The cash and bank balances are mainly held with bank and financial institution 
counterparties, which have financial strength and are reputable with high credit rating 
and no history of default. As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to 
credit risk is represented by their carrying amounts in the statement of financial position. 
 
Impairment on cash and bank balances has been measured on the 12-month expected 
loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Group and the 
Company consider that their cash and bank balances have low credit risk based on the 
creditworthiness of the counterparties. 
 

(iii) Other receivables 
 

Credit risk on other receivables are mainly arising from sundry debtors and deposits 
receivables. The Group monitors the repayment on an individual and 12-month expected 
loss basis. 
 
As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented 
by their carrying amounts in the statement of financial position. 
 
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group did not recognise any allowance for 
impairment losses. 

 
(iv) Financial guarantees 

 
The Company provides unsecured financial guarantees to banks in respect of banking 
facilities granted to certain subsidiaries. The Company monitors the ability of the 
subsidiaries to service their loan on an individual basis by using internal information 
available. 
 
The maximum exposure to credit risk is the outstanding banking facilities of the 
subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting period.  

 
As at the end of the reporting period, there was no indication that any subsidiary would 
default on repayment. 
 
The financial guarantees have not been recognised since the fair value on initial 
recognition was not material. 
 

(v) Inter-company loans and advances 
 
The Company provides unsecured loans and advances to subsidiaries. The Company 
monitors the results of the subsidiaries regularly.  
 
As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented 
by their carrying amounts in the statement of financial position. 
 
Generally, the Company consider amounts due from fellow subsidiaries as low credit risk. 
 
As at the end of the reporting period, there was no indication that the loans and advances 
to the subsidiaries are not recoverable. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 
  
(b) Financial risk management (Cont’d) 
 
 Liquidity risk 

 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they 
fall due. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises principally from its various payables, 
loans and borrowings. 
 
The Group and the Company actively manage their debt maturity profile, operating cash flows 
and the availability of funding so as to ensure that all refinancing, repayment and funding 
needs are met. As part of its overall liquidity management, the Group strives to maintain 
available banking facilities at a reasonable level to its overall debt position. As far as possible, 
the Group raises committed funding from both capital markets and financial institutions and 
balances its portfolio with some short-term funding so as to achieve overall cost effectiveness.  
 
It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly 
earlier or at significantly different amounts. 
 
Maturity analysis 
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial 
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period based on undiscounted contractual payments. 
 

Contrac- Contrac-

tual tual

Carrying interest cash Under 1 1-5 Over 5

Group amount  rate flows year years years

2021 Note RM RM RM RM RM

Non-derivative 

  financial liabilities

Trade and

 other payables 14 124,380,862  - 124,380,862  103,886,878  20,493,984    -                     

Revolving credit 15 20,000,000    2.10% 20,000,000    20,000,000    -                     -                     

Term loans 15 88,663,276    3.5% -3.8% 95,641,471    20,325,348    75,316,123    -                     

233,044,138  240,022,333  144,212,226  95,810,107    -                     

2020

Non-derivative 

  financial liabilities

Trade and

 other payables 14 140,016,786  - 140,016,786  116,996,420  23,020,366    -                     

3.48% -

Term loans 15 100,492,624  3.73% 114,284,399  15,243,800    90,486,076    8,554,523      

240,509,410  254,301,185  132,240,220  113,506,442  8,554,523      
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 
 
(b) Financial risk management (Cont’d) 
 

Liquidity risk (Cont’d) 
 

Contrac- Contrac-

tual tual

Carrying interest cash Under 1 1-5 Over 5

Company amount  rate flows year years years

2021 Note RM RM RM RM RM

Non-derivative 

  financial liabilities

Other payables 14 168,149         - 168,149        168,149        -              -              

Amount due to

 subsidiaries 10 40,716,113    2.15% 40,716,113   40,716,113   -              -              

40,884,262    40,884,262   40,884,262   -              -              

2020

Non-derivative 

  financial liabilities

Other payables 14 167,355         - 167,355        167,355        -              -              

Amount due to

 subsidiaries 10 14,636,270    2.15% 14,636,270   14,636,270   -              -              

14,803,625    14,803,625   14,803,625   -              -              
 

 
Market risk 

 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates that will affect the 
Company’s financial position or cash flows. 

Interest rate risk 
The Company’s variable rate borrowings are exposed to a risk of change in cash flows due 
to changes in interest rates. Short-term receivables and payables are not significantly 
exposed to interest rate risk. 

 
Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk 
The Company managed interest rate risk through effective use of its floating and fixed rate 
debts. 
 
Exposure to interest rate risk 
The interest rate profile of the Company’s significant interest-bearing financial instruments, 
based on carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period was: 
 

2021 2020 2021 2020

Note  RM  RM  RM  RM 

Fixed rate instruments

   Financial assets 11 145,617,988     143,480,645     -                      -                      

Floating rate instruments

   Financial assets 35,339,524       72,923,323       -                      1,098,431,769    

   Financial liabilities 15 (108,663,276)    (100,492,624)    -                      (14,636,270)        

(73,323,752)      (27,569,301)      -                      1,083,795,499    

Group Company
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 
 
(b) Financial risk management (Cont’d) 
 

Market risk (Cont’d) 
 
Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis 

• Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments 
The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss, and the Group does not designate derivatives as hedging 
instruments under a fair value hedge accounting model. Therefore, a change in interest 
rates at the end of the reporting period would not affect profit or loss. 

 

• Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 
  A change of 100 basis points (“bp”) in interest rates during the reporting period would 

have increased/(decreased) Group’s pre-tax profit or loss by approximately RM733,000 
(2020: RM276,000). 
 

(c) Fair value of financial instruments 
 
The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances, short-term receivables and payables, 
amount due by/(to) subsidiaries and short-term borrowings approximate fair values due to the 
relatively short-term nature of these financial instruments.  
 
The determination of fair value of other investment is categorised as Level 1, based on 
quoted prices in active markets. 
 
The carrying amount of the current portion of loans and borrowings are reasonable 
approximate of fair value due to the insignificant impact of discounting. 
 
The carrying amount of the non-current portion of term loans that carry floating interest rates 
approximate their fair value as they are re-priced to market interest rates on or near the 
reporting date.  

 
 

26. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 
 
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong 
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder 
value. 
 
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in 
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the 
dividend payment to shareholder, return capital to shareholder or issue new shares. No changes 
were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the financial year ended 31 December 
2021. 
 
The Group monitors capital using a debt-to-capital ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital 
plus net debt. Net debt comprises borrowings and trade and other payables, less cash and bank 
balances whereas total capital comprises the equity attributable to equity holders of the Company. 
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26. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

 
The gearing ratios were as follows: 
 

2021 2020 2021 2020

 RM  RM  RM  RM 

14 124,380,862       140,016,786       168,149             167,355             

Amount due to subsidiaries 10 -                         -                         40,716,113        14,636,270        

Loans and borrowings 15 108,663,276       100,492,624       -                         -                         

Less: Cash and

  bank balances 11 (252,841,266)     (283,875,142)     (157,121)            (31,115,964)       

Net debt (19,797,128)       (43,365,732)       40,727,141        (16,312,339)       

Total capital 3,116,127,078    3,001,715,288    1,264,211,917   1,257,749,378   

Capital and net debt 3,096,329,950    2,958,349,556    1,304,939,058   1,241,437,039   

Debt-to-capital ratio N/A N/A 3.12% N/A

Group Company

Trade and other payables 

Note

N/A = not applicable  
 
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. 
 
 

27. COMMITMENTS 
 
(i) Capital commitments 

 
This represents the balance of the contracted purchase price of land. 

 

2021 2020

 RM  RM 

Capital expenditure

  Contracted but not provided for: 

    Freehold land           1,118,812           9,564,956 

Group

 
 

(ii) Operating lease arrangements (as lessor) 
 
The Group has entered into non-cancellable operating leases agreements on its investment 
property. The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating 
leases contracted for as at the reporting date but not recognised as receivables, are as 
follows: 

 

2021 2020

 RM  RM 

Not later than 1 year 20,280,180        24,987,902        

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 5,761,260          13,650,056        

26,041,440        38,637,958        

Group
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28. RELATED PARTIES 

Identity of related parties 
 
For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group if 
the Group or the Company has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise 
significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or 
where the Group or the Company and the party are subject to common control or common 
significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or other entities. 

 
Related parties also include key management personnel defined as those persons having 
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group either 
directly or indirectly. The key management personnel include all the directors of the Group. 
 
The Group has related party relationship with its subsidiaries, significant investors, directors and 
key management personnel. 
 
Significant related party transactions 
 
The significant related party transactions of the Group and the Company are shown below: 
 

2021 2020

Group  RM  RM 

A. Companies in which certain directors have interest

B. Rental income from:

B. - Harapan Terang Motor Sdn. Bhd. (a) 20,400            20,400            

B. - Bestari Bestmart Sdn. Bhd. (b) 3,444,000       3,322,400       

B. Rental expense to:
B. - Bintang-Bintang Sdn. Bhd. (c) 200,000          200,000          

B. Key management personnel

D. Directors

B. - Fee 90,000            90,000            

B. - Other emoluments 26,214,012     19,646,754     

D. - Contribution to state plans 4,501,972       3,387,022       

30,805,984     23,123,776     

 
Company

A. Subsidiary companies

A. Management fees income           775,100           861,100 

A. Loan interest income           639,934      22,289,896 

A. Loan interest expense           570,672        2,812,179 

A. Dividend income        6,000,000    177,400,000 

B. Key management personnel

D. Directors

B. - Fee 90,000            90,000            

B. - Other emoluments 531,202          596,744          

D. - Contribution to state plans 74,700            85,350            

695,902          772,094          
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) 
 

28. RELATED PARTIES (Cont’d) 

Significant related party transactions (Cont’d) 
 
Note:  
 
(a) In which Ku Tien Sek has interest. 
(b) In which Ku Hwa Seng has interest. 
(c) In which Khoo Cheng Hai @ Ku Cheng Hai, Ku Hwa Seng, Ku Tien Sek and directors of 

certain subsidiary companies, Ku Wa Chong, Ku Keng Leong, Ku Ek Mei, Ku Keng Yaw have 
interest. 

 
Significant related party balances related to the above transactions are disclosed in respective 
notes to the financial statements. 

 

 

29. SIGNIFICANT EVENT DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR  
 
Coronavirus disease (“COVID-19”) pandemic 

 
The outbreak of COVID-19 has evolved into a global pandemic, adversely affecting economies 
worldwide due to the imposition of travel restrictions, constraints on the people’s movement and 
the suspension of many business operations to curb the spread of COVID-19 virus.  

 
The imposition of the various Movement Control Orders (“MCO”) had resulted in disruptions 
especially to the Group’s operation of hotel and shopping mall, due to the introduction of various 
standard operating procedures as well as restrictions placed on domestic and international 
travelling. 
 
The Group and the Company have performed assessments on the overall impact of the situation on  
the Group's and the Company’s operations and financial implications, including the recoverability of 
the carrying amount of assets and subsequent measurement of assets and liabilities, and 
concluded that the financial performance for the financial year ending 31 December 2022 is 
expected to remain challenging. Nevertheless, the Group holds sufficient capital and will continue to 
prudently manage risks to ensure that it remains resilient through this period of uncertainty. 
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